
  
 

 

 
 

Nevada Commission on Peace Officers’ 
 Standards and Training 

 
 

WORKSHOP 
 

MONDAY, OCTOBER 28, 2013 – 3:30AM 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT HEARING 
& 

POST COMMISSION MEETING 
 

TUESDAY, OCTOBER 29, 2013 – 5:00PM 
 
 

PALACE STATION HOTEL AND CASINO,  
2411 W. SAHARA AVENUE,  

SALON F, 
LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 

 



WORKSHOP ON PROPOSED REGULATIONS  
 

MONDAY OCTOBER 28, 2013 
 

3:30PM 
 



Notice of Workshop 1

 
 

 
 

STATE OF NEVADA 
COMMISSION ON PEACE OFFICERS’ STANDARDS AND TRAINING 

5587 Wa Pai Shone Ave 
Carson City, Nevada 89701 

 Brian Sandoval                                    (775) 687-7678                Richard P. Clark 
     Governor               Fax (775) 687-4911                       Executive Director 

 
August 28, 2013 

 
NOTICE OF WORKSHOP TO SOLICIT COMMENTS ON PROPOSED REGULATIONS  

 
The Commission on Peace Officers’ Standards and Training, 5587 Wa Pai Shone Avenue, Carson City, Nevada, Telephone 
Number (775) 687-7678, is proposing the Adoption, Amendment and Repeal of regulations pertaining to Chapter 289 of the 
Nevada Administrative Code.   
 
A workshop has been scheduled for 3:30 pm, on Monday October 28th, 2013, at the Palace Station Hotel and 
Casino, 2411 W. Sahara Avenue, Salon F, Las Vegas, Nevada.  
 
The purpose of the workshop is to solicit comments from interested persons on the following general topic that may be 
addressed in the proposed regulations: 
 
TOPIC NAC REGULATION 

A. The Commission to consider amending NAC 289.230, which establishes the 
requirements for mandatory annual continuing education, to include 
proposed changes to the annual 24 hour continuing education training 
requirement. The regulation changes are being considered in order to provide 
agencies more flexibility in meeting individual training needs and increasing 
overall professionalism. 

 

NAC 289.230 

 

 

 

 

 

 
A copy of all materials related to the proposal may be obtained at the workshop or by contacting the Commission on Peace 
Officers’ Training, 5587 Wa Pai Shone Avenue, Carson City, Nevada, Telephone Number (775) 687-7678.  A reasonable 
fee for copying may be charged. 
 
This Notice of Workshop to Solicit Comments on Proposed Regulation has been sent to all listed meeting locations, all 
persons on the agency’s mailing list for administrative regulations, all Nevada law enforcement agencies, law 
enforcement training academies, agency single points of contact, and posted on the POST web site at 
www.post.state.nv.us and at the following locations: 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Notice of Workshop 2

CARSON CITY LAS VEGAS 
Blasdel Building, 209 East Musser Street Grant Sawyer State Building, 555 Washington Avenue 
Nevada State Library, 100 Stewart Street  
Capitol Building, 101 N. Carson Street ELY 
POST Administration, 5587 Wa Pai Shone White Pine County Sheriff’s Office, 1785 Great Basin Rd  
Carson City Sheriff’s Office, 901 East Musser Street  
 

NOTE:  We are pleased to make reasonable accommodations for members of the public with disabilities who 
wish to attend the meeting.  If special arrangements for the meeting are necessary, please notify the POST 
Commission, in writing, at 5587 Wa Pai Shone Avenue, Carson City, Nevada, 89701 or call Scott Johnston,  
at (775) 684-7678, Extension 3335, no later than five working days prior to the meeting. 

  
 
 



 
 
 
 
 

STATE OF NEVADA 
COMMISSION ON PEACE OFFICERS’ STANDARDS AND TRAINING 

5587 Wa Pai Shone Ave 
Carson City, Nevada 89701 

Brian Sandoval (775) 687-7678 Richard P. Clark 
Governor Fax (775) 687-4911 Executive Director 

 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING (NRS 241) 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT STARTING AT 3:30 PM ON MONDAY, OCTOBER 28, 2013, THE 
COMMISSION ON PEACE OFFICERS’ STANDARDS AND TRAINING WILL HOLD A WORKSHOP 
AT PALACE STATION HOTEL AND CASINO, 2411 W. SAHARA AVENUE, SALON F, LAS VEGAS, 
NEVADA. 
 
THE WORKSHOP HAS BEEN PREVIOUSLY NOTICED PURSUANT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF 
NRS CHAPTER 233B.  THE PUBLIC CAN COMMENT ON THE PROPOSED REGULATIONS DURING 
THE WORKSHOP BY APPEARING AT THE LOCATION SET OUT ABOVE. 
 
The agenda will include the following items. The Commission, at their discretion, may take items out of 
order, combine two or more agenda items for consideration, and remove an item from the agenda or delay 
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. A request to have an item on the agenda heard out of 
order shall be made to the Commission’s secretary prior to the commencement of the meeting.  Prior to the 
commencement or conclusion of a contested case or a quasi-judicial proceeding that may affect the due 
process rights of an individual the Commission may refuse to consider public comment.  See NRS 233B.126. 
 
1. WORKSHOP ON PROPOSED REGULATIONS 

THE PURPOSE OF THIS PORTION OF THE AGENDA IS TO SOLICIT COMMENTS FROM 
INTERESTED PERSONS ON THE FOLLOWING GENERAL TOPICS THAT MAY BE ADDRESSED IN 
THE PROPOSED REGULATIONS:   

TOPIC NAC REGULATION 
A. The Commission to consider amending NAC 289.230, which establishes 

the requirements for mandatory annual continuing education, to include 
proposed changes to the annual 24 hour continuing education training 
requirement. The regulation changes are being considered in order to 
provide agencies more flexibility in meeting individual training needs 
and increasing overall professionalism. 

 NAC 289.230 
 
 
 

 
2. Public Comments. 

The Commission may not take action on any matter considered under this item until the matter is 
specifically included on an agenda as an action item. 
 

3. DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 
Adjournment. 
 



 
POSTED AT THE FOLLOWING LOCATIONS: 

 
POST Administrative Office, Carson City 

Nevada State Capitol, Carson City 
Blasdel State Building, Carson City 

Nevada State Library and Archives, Carson City 
Grant Sawyer Building, Las Vegas 

White Pine County Sheriff’s Office, Ely 
Carson City Sheriff’s Office 
http://www.post.state.nv.gov 

www.http://leg.state.nv.us 
 

Electronically Posted pursuant to NRS 241.020(4) 
 

Pursuant to NRS 241.020(2), a copy of supporting materials for the meeting may be obtained by contacting 
Scott Johnston at (775) 687-7678, Ext. 3335 Commission on Peace Officers’ Standards and Training at 5587 
Wa Pai Shone Avenue, Carson City, Nevada 89701. 
 
NOTE: We are pleased to make reasonable accommodations for members of the public who are disabled and 
wish to attend the meeting. If special arrangements for the meeting are necessary, please notify the 
Commission on Peace Officers’ Standards and Training at 5587 Wa Pai Shone Avenue, Carson City, Nevada 
89701 or call Scott Johnston at (775) 687-7678, Ext. 3335, no later than 2 working days prior to the meeting. 

 



AGENDA ITEM #1 
 

WORKSHOP ON PROPOSED REGULATIONS 
NAC 289.230 

 
A. The Commission to consider amending NAC 289.230, which establishes the requirements for 

mandatory annual continuing education, to include proposed changes to the annual 24 hour 
continuing education training requirement. The regulation changes are being considered in order to 
provide agencies more flexibility in meeting individual training needs and increasing overall 
professionalism. 



NOTATION:  Wording in bold italic is proposed draft changes. 

289.230  1.  To maintain a basic certificate or reserve certificate, the officer must annually 

demonstrate proficiency as provided in subsection 4, and complete  12   24 hours of additional 

agency in-service training which may include, but not limited to, topics consisting of legal 

issues, agency policies and procedures, driving, first aid, cardiopulmonary resuccitation, 

bloodborne pathogens, sexual harassment or any other agency in-service training as may be 

prescribed by the administrator of the employing agency of the officer. and approved by the 

Executive Director. The employing agency shall ensure that its officers receive the required 

training. The employing agency shall notify each officer of the requirements of this section and 

the penalties set forth in subsection 3 for failure to comply with this section. After an officer 

completes such training, the employing agency shall submit verification of completion of 

training to the Executive Director by any means approved by the Executive Director. 

Verification must be submitted before December  January 31 following the year in which 

training was required. 

 

 

 



AGENDA ITEM #2-3 
 

WORKSHOP ON PROPOSED REGULATIONS 
 

2. Public Comments 
 

3. Adjournment 
 



I.  PUBLIC COMMENT HEARING 
 

TUESDAY OCTOBER 29 
 5:00PM 

 



1 
 

 
 

 
 

STATE OF NEVADA 
COMMISSION ON PEACE OFFICERS’ STANDARDS AND TRAINING 

5587 Wa Pai Shone Ave 
Carson City, Nevada 89701 

 Brian Sandoval                                (775) 687-7678                 Richard P. Clark 
       Governor           Fax (775) 687-4911                        Executive Director 

 
09/3/2013 

 
 

NOTICE OF INTENT TO ACT UPON A REGULATION  
 

Notice of Hearing for the Adoption, Amendment and Repeal 
 

Of 
 

Regulations of the Commission on Peace Officers’  
Standards and Training 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT HEARING NOTICE: The Peace Officers’ Standards and Training 
Commission will hold a public hearing at 5:00 pm, on October 29, 2013, at the Palace Station Hotel 
and Casino, 2411 W. Sahara Las Vegas, Nevada, Salon rooms F and G. The purpose of the hearing 
is to receive comments from all interested persons regarding the adoption, amendment and repeal of 
regulations that pertain to Chapter 289 of the Nevada Administrative Code.  
 
The following information is provided pursuant to the requirements of NRS 233B.0603:  
 
1.  A statement of the need for and purpose of the proposed regulations.  This proposed regulation involves 
the amendment of following NAC Chapters. 

 
A.  Amend NAC 289.230 to permit the Executive Director to approve various methods, including 
electronic submission, for law enforcement agencies to report to the Commission continuing education 
compliance by its peace officers.  Amend NAC 289.230 to authorize the Executive Director to 
temporarily reinstate the certification of a peace officer whose certification has been previously 
suspended for failure to complete required mandatory annual continuing education upon receiving 
documentation showing the officer has completed the mandatory continuing education.  The temporary 
reinstate expires on the date the Commission considers whether the peace officer’s certification should be 
reinstated.   
 
B.  Amend NAC 289.240, which establishes the minimum requirements for an Intermediate Certificate, to 
re-align the education, training, and time of service eligibility requirements for officers. 

 
C.  Amend NAC 289.250, which establishes the minimum requirements for an Advanced Certificate, to 
re-align the education, training, and time of service eligibility requirements for officers.  
 



2 
 

D.  Amend NAC 289.310(1)(6)(7)(8)(9), which establishes the requirement to report certain information 
for courses above level of basic training, to include that an agency or training provider may apply for 
course certification utilizing the electronic submission format.   
 
E.  Under subsection 6 to require private training providers to maintain and make available for inspection 
upon request of the Commission or its designee certain training records outlined under this section. 
 
F.  Under subsection 7 to require agencies that are not required to submit courses for certification to l 
maintain and make available for inspection upon request of the Commission or its designee a roster of 
attendees, examination results and course evaluations. 
 
G.  Under section 8 to require an agency or training provider whose course has been certified to issue a 
certificate of completion to all peace officer attendees who successfully complete the training.  The 
certificate of completion shall contain the POST Commission certification number, course name, course 
hours, and date course presented. 
 
H.   Addition of new section 9 to require an employing agency whose peace officer attends a certified 
course upon receipt of a certification of completion, to report the attendance via electronic form approved 
by the Executive Director for importation into the POST Commission training record. 

 
2.  A copy of the proposed permanent regulations that have been prepared and approved by the Legislative 
Counsel pursuant to NRS 233B.063 can be found at the State Library, 100 Stewart Street, Carson City, 
Nevada.  The approved text of the proposed regulations can also be found in the Nevada Register of 
Administrative Regulations which is prepared and published monthly by the Legislative Counsel Bureau 
pursuant to NRS 233B.0653, on the internet at http://www.leg.state.nv.us and on the POST website at 
http:/www.post.state.nv.gov.  A copy of the LCB approved proposed permanent regulations will be available 
at the POST Commission Administrative Offices, 5587 Wai Pai Shone Avenue, Carson City, Nevada  89701, 
and in all counties in which an office of the agency is not maintained, at the main public library for inspection 
and copying by members of the public during normal business hours.  
  
3.  To our knowledge, these regulations do not overlap or duplicate the regulations of other state or local 
governmental agencies. 
 
4.  These regulations are not required pursuant to federal law.  
 
5.  These regulations do not include provisions which are more stringent than federal regulations that regulate 
the same activity.   
 
6.  These regulations do not establish any new fee or increase an existing fee. 
 
7.  The estimated economic effect of the regulation on the business which it is to regulate and on the public.  
Both adverse and beneficial effects, immediate and long-term effects:  
 

Immediate and Long-term Effects: 
 

A.   Adverse effects:  
There are no anticipated adverse effects. 

 
B.  Beneficial effects:  
 



3 
 

The amendment to the regulations should lead to an increased level of professionalism among peace 
officers employed by law enforcement agencies.  The amendment will authorize the Executive Director to 
temporarily reinstate an officer’s certificate who has come into compliance with the continuing education 
requirements so they can return to work prior to the next Commission meeting.  The Amendment 
restructures the training, education and time of service requirements to qualify for the Intermediate and 
Advanced Certificates providing merit for education and time of service.  The amendment requires 
training providers to maintain and make available for inspection upon request of the Commission certain 
training records.  The amendment should increase the efficiency of agencies and the Commission by 
permitting electronic submission of training records.  

 
Persons wishing to comment upon the proposed action of the Peace Officers’ Standards and Training 
Commission may appear at the scheduled public hearing or may address their comments, data, views or 
arguments, in written form, to Richard Clark, Executive Director, POST Commission, 5587 Wa Pai 
Shone Avenue, Carson City, Nevada 89701.  Written submissions must be received by the POST 
Commission on or before 5:00 pm on October 17, 2013.  If no person who is directly affected by the 
proposed action appears to request time to make an oral presentation, the Peace Officers’ Standards and 
Training Commission may proceed immediately to act upon any written submissions. 
 
A copy of this notice and the regulations to be adopted, amended or repealed will be on file at the State 
Library, 100 Stewart Street, Carson City, Nevada for inspection by members of the public during 
business hours.  Additional copies of the notice and regulations to be adopted, amended or repealed will 
be available at the POST Commission Administrative Offices, 5587 Wai Pai Shone Avenue, Carson City 
89701, and in all counties in which an office of the agency is not maintained, at the main public library, 
for inspection and copying by members of the public during business hours.  This notice and the text of 
the proposed regulations are also available in the State of Nevada Register of Administrative 
Regulations, which is prepared and published monthly by the Legislative Counsel Bureau pursuant to 
NRS 233B.0653, and on the Internet at http://www.leg.state.nv.us and on the POST web site at 
http://www.post.state.nv.gov.  Copies of this notice and the proposed regulation will also be mailed to 
members of the public upon request.  A reasonable fee may be charged for copies if it is deemed 
necessary. 
 
Upon adoption of any regulation, the agency, if requested to do so by an interested person, either before 
adoption or within 30 days thereafter, will issue a concise statement of the principal reasons for and 
against its adoption and incorporate therein its reason for overruling the consideration urged against its 
adoption. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 
 

 
 
 
The Notice of Hearing has been mailed to all criminal justice agencies on the Nevada POST mailing list 
and posted at the following locations:  
 
CARSON CITY    LAS VEGAS 
Blasdel Building, 209 East Musser Street Grant Sawyer State Building, 555 Washington Avenue 
Nevada State Library, 100 Stewart Street   
Capitol Building, 101 N. Carson Street  ELY 
NV POST, 5587 Wa Pai Shone Avenue White Pine County Sheriff’s Office, 1785 Great Basic Blvd 

COUNTY LIBRARIES (MAIN BRANCHES) 
 
CARSON CITY LIBRARY  CHURCHILL COUNTY LIBRARY LAS VEGAS-CLARK COUNTY   
900 NORTH ROOP STREET  553 SOUTH MAINE STREET  833 LAS VEGAS BLVD - NORTH 
CARSON CITY, NEVADA 89702  FALLON, NEVADA 89406  LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89101 
  
DOUGLAS COUNTY LIBRARY ELKO COUNTY LIBRARY  ESMERALDA COUNTY LIBRARY 
1625 LIBRARY LANE  720 COURT STREET   FOURTH AND CROOK STREETS 
MINDEN, NEVADA 89423  ELKO, NEVADA 89801  GOLDFIELD, NEVADA 89013 
 
EUREKA COUNTY LIBRARY  HUMBOLDT COUNTY LIBRARY LANDER COUNTY LIBRARY 
10190 MONROE STREET  85 EAST 5TH STREET  625 BROAD STREET 
EUREKA, NEVADA 89316  WINNEMUCCA, NEVADA 89445 BATTLE MOUNTAIN, NEVADA 89820 
 
LINCOLN COUNTY LIBRARY  LYON COUNTY LIBRARY  MINERAL COUNTY LIBRARY 
93 MAIN STREET   20 NEVIN WAY   FIRST AND A STREETS 
PIOCHE, NEVADA 89043  YERINGTON NEVADA 89447  HAWTHORNE, NEVADA 89415 
 
TONOPAH LIBRARY DISTRICT PERSHING COUNTY LIBRARY STOREY COUNTY LIBRARY 
167 CENTRAL STREET  1125 CENTRAL STREET  95 SOUTH R STREET 
TONOPAH, NEVADA 89048  LOVELOCK, NEVADA 89419  VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA  
 
WASHOE COUNTY LIBRARY  WHITE PINE COUNTY LIBRARY 
301 SOUTH CENTER STREET  950 CAMPTON STREET 
RENO, NEVADA 89520  ELY, NEVADA 89301 
 
NOTE:  We are pleased to make reasonable accommodations for members of the public with disabilities 
who wish to attend the meeting.  If special arrangements for the meeting are necessary, please notify the 
POST Commission, in writing, at 5587 Wai Pai Shone Avenue, Carson City, Nevada 89701, or call 
Scott Johnston at (775) 687-7678, Extension 3335, no later than five working days prior to the meeting.  

 
 
 

 SEE ATTACHED COPIES OF THE PROPOSED 
REGULATIONS 

 
 

 

 



5 
 

PROPOSED REGULATION OF THE PEACE OFFICERS’ 
STANDARDS AND TRAINING COMMISSION 

LCB File No. R188-12 
June 21, 2013 

EXPLANATION – Matter in italics is new; matter in brackets [omitted material] is material to be omitted. 
 
AUTHORITY: §§1-5, NRS 289.510. 
 
A REGULATION relating to peace officers; revising provisions governing the training of peace 

officers; authorizing the Executive Director of the Peace Officers’ Standards and 
Training Commission to temporarily reinstate a basic or reserve certificate under 
certain circumstances; revising the requirements for obtaining intermediate and 
advanced certificates; revising provisions governing courses of training above the level 
of basic training; and providing other matters properly relating thereto. 

 
 Section 1.  NAC 289.230 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
 289.230  1.  To maintain a basic certificate or reserve certificate, the officer must annually 

complete 24 hours of additional training prescribed by the administrator of the employing 

agency of the officer and approved by the Executive Director. The employing agency shall 

ensure that its officers receive the required training. The employing agency shall notify each 

officer of the requirements of this section and the penalties set forth in subsection 3 for failure to 

comply with this section. After an officer completes such training, the employing agency shall 

submit verification of completion of training to the Executive Director [on a form approved by 

the Commission.] by any means approved by the Executive Director. Verification must be 

submitted before January 31 following the year in which training was required. 

 2.  If the Executive Director has not received verification of completion of training 

pursuant to subsection 1 before January 31 following the year in which training was required, the 

Executive Director shall notify the administrator of the employing agency that he or she has not 

received the verification required by subsection 1 and that if the verification is not received on or 

before March 1 of that year, the Executive Director will place the administrator on the agenda 

for the next scheduled meeting of the Commission to explain the delay in the submission of the 



6 
 

verification. If the Executive Director has not received verification of completion of training 

pursuant to subsection 1 on or before March 1 following the year in which training was required, 

the Executive Director shall place the administrator of the employing agency on the agenda for 

the next scheduled meeting of the Commission. 

 3.  Upon the request of the Commission or its designee, the employing agency shall 

make available for inspection the records of all officers to verify that they have complied with 

the continuing education requirement. The Commission will notify each officer and his or her 

employing agency of any noncompliance. The Commission will suspend the certificate of any 

officer who does not obtain the required training within 60 days after the date on which he or she 

received the notice of noncompliance. The Executive Director may temporarily reinstate the 

suspended certificate of an officer upon receiving documentation from the officer which 

demonstrates that he or she has complied with the continuing education requirement. The 

temporary reinstatement of the suspended certificate is effective upon the Executive Director’s 

approval of the temporary reinstatement and expires on the date on which the Commission 

determines whether to reinstate the certificate. The Commission will reinstate the suspended 

certificate or temporarily reinstated certificate of an officer upon receiving documentation from 

the officer which demonstrates that he or she has complied with the continuing education 

requirement. 

 4.  Except as otherwise provided in subsections 6 and 7, as part of the continuing 

education required pursuant to subsection 1, an officer must: 

 (a) If the officer is authorized to use a firearm, at least biannually demonstrate a 

minimum level of proficiency in the use of each firearm he or she is authorized to use. An officer 

who does not demonstrate a minimum level of proficiency with the use of any firearm he or she 



7 
 

is authorized to use may not carry or use the firearm until he or she participates in a remedial 

course established by the employing agency to ensure that the officer achieves and maintains a 

satisfactory level of proficiency. 

 (b) If the officer is authorized to use an impact weapon, chemical weapon, electronic 

incapacitating device or other less than lethal weapon, at least annually demonstrate a minimum 

level of proficiency in the use of each such weapon or device he or she is authorized to use. An 

officer who does not demonstrate a minimum level of proficiency with the use of any such 

weapon may not carry or use that weapon until the officer participates in a remedial course 

established by the employing agency to ensure that the officer achieves and maintains a 

satisfactory level of proficiency. 

 (c) If the duties of an officer require him or her to use defensive tactics, demonstrate 

annually a minimum level of proficiency in the use of defensive tactics, including, without 

limitation, techniques related to applying handcuffs, taking down suspects, self-defense and 

retention of weapons. 

 (d) If the employing agency of the officer authorizes the use of a carotid restraint or 

lateral vascular neck restraint, demonstrate annually a minimum level of proficiency in those 

techniques. 

 (e) Review annually each policy of the employing agency which addresses the use of 

force in any situation in which the agency or the officer may become involved. 

 5.  Each employing agency shall establish and provide the courses set forth in 

subsection 4 to its officers and establish the minimum level of proficiency that an officer must 

demonstrate in each course. 

 6.  An officer: 



8 
 

 (a) Who voluntarily leaves his or her employment as a peace officer for at least 12 

consecutive months but not more than 60 consecutive months; 

 (b) Whose employment as a peace officer is terminated for any reason for at least 12 

consecutive months but not more than 60 consecutive months; or 

 (c) Who, during a period of continuous employment as a peace officer, is absent from his 

or her duties as a peace officer because of medical leave, military leave or other approved leave 

for at least 12 consecutive months, 

 must satisfy the requirements of paragraphs (b) to (e), inclusive, of subsection 4 and 

demonstrate a minimum level of proficiency in the use of each firearm he or she is authorized to 

use before resuming his or her duties as a peace officer. 

 7.  An officer who instructs a course pursuant to subsection 4 is not required to comply 

with the continuing education requirements of subsection 4 to which the instruction applies if the 

officer: 

 (a) Instructs a course in the subject for which the officer is qualified and approved by the 

administrator of the officer’s agency during each calendar year; 

 (b) Participates at least once every 3 years in a course of training for instructors that is 

approved by the Executive Director; and 

 (c) Demonstrates to the Commission or its designee at least once every 3 years 

proficiency in the subject that he or she instructs. 

 8.  Each agency shall maintain documentation of the courses provided pursuant to 

subsection 4. Such documentation must include, without limitation, the qualifications of each 

instructor who provides training, a description of the training provided and a list on a form that 

has been approved by the Executive Director of each officer who completes the training. 



9 
 

 Sec. 2.  NAC 289.240 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
 289.240  The Executive Director shall grant an intermediate certificate to an officer upon 

submission of proof satisfactory to the Executive Director that the officer [meets the following 

minimum requirements: 

 1.  Forty hours of training concerning the skills of officers, consisting of courses 

certified by the Executive Director relating to the physical and technical aspects of the 

requirements of duty, including, without limitation: 

 (a) Firearms; 

 (b) Self-defense; and 

 (c) Use of equipment. 

 2.  Forty hours of training concerning investigative skills, consisting of courses certified 

by the Executive Director covering various aspects and types of investigation, including, without 

limitation: 

 (a) Homicide; 

 (b) Interview and interrogation; 

 (c) Arson; 

 (d) Scientific methods; and 

 (e) Other investigative studies. 

 3.  Forty hours of training concerning human development, consisting of courses 

certified by the Executive Director relating to the human aspects of the duties of a peace officer, 

including, without limitation: 

 (a) Stress; 

 (b) Leadership; and 



10 
 

 (c) Community relations and other related fields. 

 4.  Forty hours of courses certified by the Executive Director in legal subjects such as 

civil liability and criminal law. 

 5.  Forty hours of elective training in any courses relating to peace officers. These 

courses may include excess courses from the categories set out in subsections 1 to 4, inclusive. 

 6.  Six units of credit from an accredited college or university, including three units of 

English composition. 

 7.  A] : 

 1.  Has a valid basic certificate [. 

 8.  Three] ; 

 2.  Is currently employed as a peace officer by an agency; and 

 3.  Meets the minimum requirements set forth in one of the following paragraphs: 

 (a) The officer: 

  (1) Has 2 years of experience as a peace officer employed by a Nevada agency [. 

 9.  Current employment as a peace officer by an agency.] ; 

  (2) Holds a bachelor’s degree or a higher degree from a college or university 

accredited by a national or regional accrediting body recognized by the United States 

Department of Education; and 

  (3) In addition to the training required by NAC 289.230, has successfully 

completed 20 hours of training in courses concerning the duties of peace officers, consisting 

of courses certified pursuant to NAC 289.310. 

 (b) The officer: 

  (1) Has 4 years of experience as a peace officer employed by a Nevada agency;  



11 
 

  (2) Holds an associate’s degree from a college or university accredited by a 

national or regional accrediting body recognized by the United States Department of 

Education; and 

  (3) In addition to the training required by NAC 289.230, has successfully 

completed 40 hours of training in courses concerning the duties of peace officers, consisting 

of courses certified pursuant to NAC 289.310. 

 (c) The officer: 
  (1) Has 6 years of experience as a peace officer employed by a Nevada agency; 
  (2) Has earned 45 units of credit from a college or university accredited by a 
national or regional accrediting body recognized by the United States Department of 
Education; and 
  (3) In addition to the training required by NAC 289.230, has successfully 
completed 80 hours of training in courses concerning the duties of peace officers, consisting 
of courses certified pursuant to NAC 289.310. 
 (d) The officer: 
  (1) Has 8 years of experience as a peace officer employed by a Nevada agency; 
  (2) Has earned 30 units of credit from a college or university accredited by a 
national or regional accrediting body recognized by the United States Department of 
Education; and 
  (3) In addition to the training required by NAC 289.230, has successfully 
completed 120 hours of training in courses concerning the duties of peace officers, consisting 
of courses certified pursuant to NAC 289.310. 
 (e) The officer: 
  (1) Has 10 years of experience as a peace officer employed by a Nevada 
agency; 
  (2) Has earned 15 units of credit from a college or university accredited by a 
national or regional accrediting body recognized by the United States Department of 
Education; and 
  (3) In addition to the training required by NAC 289.230, has successfully 
completed 160 hours of training in courses concerning the duties of peace officers, consisting 
of courses certified pursuant to NAC 289.310. 
 (f) The officer: 
  (1) Has 12 years of experience as a peace officer employed by a Nevada 
agency; and 
  (2) In addition to the training required by NAC 289.230, has successfully 
completed 200 hours of training in courses concerning the duties of peace officers, consisting 
of courses certified pursuant to NAC 289.310. 
 
 
 



12 
 

 Sec. 3.  NAC 289.250 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
 289.250  The Executive Director shall grant an advanced certificate to an officer upon 

submission of proof satisfactory to the Executive Director that the officer : [meets the following 

minimum requirements:] 

 1.  [A] Has a current basic certificate ; [.] 

 2.  [A] Has a current intermediate certificate ; [.] 

 3.  [Six] Is currently employed as a peace officer by an agency; and 

 4.  Meets the minimum requirements set forth in one of the following paragraphs: 

 (a) The officer: 

  (1) Has 4 years of experience as a peace officer [. 

 4.  Six units of credit from an accredited college or university in addition to the units 

required for the intermediate certificate, including three units of courses related to 

communication, including, without limitation, public speaking and development of instructors. 

 5.  Two hundred hours of training in any courses relating to peace officers in addition to 

the training completed for the basic and intermediate certificates.] ; 

  (2) Holds a bachelor’s degree or a higher degree from a college or university 

accredited by a national or regional accrediting body recognized by the United States 

Department of Education; and 

  (3) In addition to the training required by NAC 289.230, has successfully 

completed 40 hours of training in courses concerning the duties of peace officers, consisting 

of courses certified pursuant to NAC 289.310. 

 (b) The officer: 

  (1) Has 6 years of experience as a peace officer; 



13 
 

  (2) Holds an associate’s degree from a college or university accredited by a 

national or regional accrediting body recognized by the United States Department of 

Education; and 

  (3) In addition to the training required by NAC 289.230, has successfully 

completed 80 hours of training in courses concerning the duties of peace officers, consisting 

of courses certified pursuant to NAC 289.310. 

 (c) The officer: 
  (1) Has 8 years of experience as a peace officer; 
  (2) Has earned 45 units of credit from a college or university accredited by a 
national or regional accrediting body recognized by the United States Department of 
Education; and 
  (3) In addition to the training required by NAC 289.230, has successfully 
completed 160 hours of training in courses concerning the duties of peace officers, consisting 
of courses certified pursuant to NAC 289.310. 
 (d) The officer: 
  (1) Has 10 years of experience as a peace officer; 
  (2) Has earned 30 units of credit from a college or university accredited by a 
national or regional accrediting body recognized by the United States Department of 
Education; and 
  (3) In addition to the training required by NAC 289.230, has successfully 
completed 240 hours of training in courses concerning the duties of peace officers, consisting 
of courses certified pursuant to NAC 289.310. 
 (e) The officer: 
  (1) Has 12 years of experience as a peace officer; 
  (2) Has earned 15 units of credit from a college or university accredited by a 
national or regional accrediting body recognized by the United States Department of 
Education; and 
  (3) In addition to the training required by NAC 289.230, has successfully 
completed 320 hours of training in courses concerning the duties of peace officers, consisting 
of courses certified pursuant to NAC 289.310. 
 (f) The officer: 
  (1) Has 14 years of experience as a peace officer; and 
  (2) In addition to the training required by NAC 289.230, has successfully 
completed 400 hours of training in courses concerning the duties of peace officers, consisting 
of courses certified pursuant to NAC 289.310. 
 
 
 
 
 



14 
 

 Sec. 4.  NAC 289.310 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
 289.310  1.  An agency or other provider of training may apply for certification above the 

level of basic training for a course by submitting to the Executive Director [:] , by any means 

approved by the Executive Director, a request to certify the course on a form approved by the 

Executive Director and: 

 (a) A concise synopsis of the course, including, without limitation, the title of the course, 

the intended goals of the course and specific objectives for the students in the course; 

 (b) A detailed lesson plan, including, without limitation, a chronological list of the major 

subject headings; 

 (c) A list of the intended instructors, including, without limitation, a brief resume of 

experience in the subject area and experience in instructing for each instructor; 

 (d) The total amount of hours of instruction; 

 (e) A description of the written or practical examinations on the material covered by the 

course which is to be graded on a pass or fail basis and which measures accomplishment of the 

objectives by the students, including, without limitation, an examination at the beginning and 

end of the course; and 

 (f) A bibliography of all resource materials used to prepare the course. 

 2.  The Executive Director shall award certification of a course to an agency or other 

provider of training which did not comply with the provisions of subsection 1 for a course 

which has been certified by another state or other comparable agency if the submitting agency or 

other provider of training presents the supporting documents concerning the subject matter and 

instructors. 



15 
 

 3.  A request to certify a course must be approved [and signed] by the administrator of 

the agency or other provider of training or the administrator’s designee. If the course offers 

training in legal issues and subjects relating to legal liability, the legal adviser of the agency or 

other provider of training must approve the course . [and sign the request for certification.] 

 4.  The Executive Director shall review courses certified pursuant to this section 

periodically for compliance with the provisions of this section. The Executive Director shall 

notify an agency or other provider of training that provides such a course of any 

noncompliance.  

 5.  The Executive Director shall revoke the certification of a course if the agency or 

other provider of training that provides the course: 

 (a) Requests revocation of the certification of the course; 

 (b) Has not provided the course during any period of 24 consecutive months; or 

 (c) Does not comply with the provisions of this section. 

 6.  [A training course offered by a private vendor must be sponsored by a law 

enforcement agency or an accredited university or college. 

 7.]  An agency or other provider of training whose course has been certified shall [, 

within 15 working days after the completion of the course and on a form that has been approved 

by the Executive Director, submit to the Executive Director:] maintain on file, and make 

available for inspection upon the request of the Commission or its designee: 

 (a) A roster of the peace officers who attended the course; 

 (b) Each officer’s results on the examination; and 

 (c) An evaluation of the course by each peace officer who attended the course. 



16 
 

 [8.] 7.  An agency or other provider of training whose course is currently accredited by 

an organization, such as the National Accreditation Committee or the American Correctional 

Association, which: 

 (a) Is nationally recognized; and 

 (b) Gives accreditation to courses for peace officers, 

 is not required to apply to the Executive Director for accreditation of the course. Such an 

agency or other provider of training shall [, within 15 working days after the completion of a 

course and on a form that has been approved by the Commission, submit to the Executive 

Director] maintain on file, and make available for inspection upon the request of the 

Commission or its designee, a roster of the peace officers who attended the course , [and] each 

officer’s results on the examination [.] and an evaluation of the course by each peace officer 

who attended the course. 

 8.  An agency or other provider of training whose course has been certified shall issue 
a certificate of completion to all peace officers who successfully complete the course of 
training. The certificate must contain: 
 (a) The certification number assigned to the course by the Commission; 
 (b) The name of the course; 
 (c) The hours of training earned for the course; and 
 (d) The date on which the course was presented. 
 9.  The employing agency of a peace officer who attends a course certified pursuant to 
this section shall, upon receipt of the certificate of completion issued to the peace officer 
pursuant to subsection 8, report the peace officer’s successful completion of the course to the 
Executive Director by any means approved by the Executive Director. 
 
 Sec. 5.  NAC 289.320 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 289.320  Upon making a final decision to deny the certification of a course pursuant to 

NAC 289.300 or 289.310, the Executive Director shall provide the affected agency or other 

provider of training with written notification of that decision. The agency or other provider of 

training may appeal the decision by filing a written request for appeal with the Executive 

Director within 30 days after the date set forth on the written notification. The request for appeal 



17 
 

must set forth specific reasons why the agency or other provider of training believes the denial 

is improper. The Commission will place the matter on the next available agenda for a meeting of 

the Commission. 

 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 

STATE OF NEVADA 
COMMISSION ON PEACE OFFICERS’ STANDARDS AND TRAINING 

5587 Wa Pai Shone Ave 
Carson City, Nevada 89701 

Brian Sandoval (775) 687-7678 Richard P. Clark 
Governor Fax (775) 687-4911 Executive Director 

 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING (NRS 241) 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT STARTING AT 5:00 PM ON TUESDAY, OCTOBER 29, 2013, THE 
COMMISSION ON PEACE OFFICERS’ STANDARDS AND TRAINING WILL HOLD A REGULARLY 
SCHEDULED MEETING AT PALACE STATION HOTEL AND CASINO, 2411 W. SAHARA, 
SALONS F&G, LAS VEGAS, NEVADA. 
 
The agenda will include the following items. The Commission, at their discretion, may take items out of 
order, combine two or more agenda items for consideration, and remove an item from the agenda or delay 
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. A request to have an item on the agenda heard out of 
order shall be made to the Commission’s secretary prior to the commencement of the meeting.  Prior to the 
commencement or conclusion of a contested case or a quasi-judicial proceeding that may affect the due 
process rights of an individual the Commission may refuse to consider public comment.  See NRS 233B.126. 

 
I.  PUBLIC COMMENT HEARING 
 

1. Call to order. 
 
2. Roll call of Commission Members. 

  
THE PURPOSE OF THIS PORTION OF THE AGENDA IS TO RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM ALL 
INTERESTED PERSONS REGARDING THE AMENDMENT OF REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO 
THE NEVADA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE AS THEY RELATE TO THE COMMISSION ON PEACE 
OFFICERS’ STANDARDS AND TRAINING.  A COPY OF THE PROPOSED REGULATIONS WILL BE 
AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST AT THE MEETING OR THEY CAN BE INSPECTED AT THE MAIN 
PUBLIC LIBRARY IN EACH COUNTY.  The Public Comment Hearing has been previously noticed 
pursuant to the requirements of NRS Chapter 233B. 
 

A. Amend NAC 289.230 to permit the Executive Director to approve various methods, including 
electronic submission, for law enforcement agencies to report to the Commission continuing 
education compliance by its peace officers.  Amend NAC 289.230 to authorize the Executive 
Director to temporarily reinstate the certification of a peace officer whose certification has been 
previously suspended for failure to complete required mandatory annual continuing education upon 
receiving documentation showing the officer has completed the mandatory continuing education.  
The temporary reinstate expires on the date the Commission considers whether the peace officer’s 
certification should be reinstated. 

 
B. Amend NAC 289.240, which establishes the minimum requirements for an Intermediate Certificate, 

to re-align the education, training, and time of service eligibility requirements for officers. 



C. Amend NAC 289.250, which establishes the minimum requirements for an Advanced Certificate, to 
re-align the education, training, and time of service eligibility requirements for officers.  

 
D. Amend NAC 289.310(1)(6)(7)(8)(9) as follows: 

 
1. Under subsection 1 which establishes the requirement to report certain information for courses 

above level of basic training, to include that an agency or training provider may apply for course 
certification utilizing the electronic submission format. 
 

2. Under subsection 6 to require private training providers to maintain and make available for 
inspection upon request of the Commission or its designee certain training records outlined under 
this section. 

 
3. Under subsection 7 to require agencies that are not required to submit courses for certification to 

 maintain and make available for inspection upon request of the Commission or its designee a 
roster of attendees, examination results and course evaluations. 

 
4. Addition of new subsection 8 to require an agency or training provider whose course has been 

certified to issue a certificate of completion to all peace officer attendees who successfully 
complete the training.  The certificate of completion shall contain the POST Commission 
certification number, course name, course hours, and date course presented. 

 
5. Addition of new subsection 9 to require an employing agency whose peace officer attends a 

certified course upon receipt of a certification of completion, to report the attendance via 
electronic form approved by the Executive Director for importation into the POST Commission 
training record. 



ITEM #1 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
 
 
 
 

ITEM #2 
 

ROLL CALL OF MEMBERS 
 



II. REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETING 
 



 
 
II. REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETING AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1. Commission Chairman Ron Pierini 
a. Farewell, retirement of Commissioner Assistant Sheriff Marshall Emerson of the Washoe 

County Sheriff’s Office. 
b. Welcome new Commissioner, Director James M. Wright of the Nevada Department of Public 

Safety  
 

2. DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 
Approval of the minutes from the July 24 Workshop and July 25, 2013 POST Commission meeting. 

 
3. Executive Director’s Report. 

a. INFORMATION ITEM Bureau updates. 
b. INFORMATION ITEM POST Budget. 
c. INFORMATION ITEM 1st Quarter Report/Performance Indicators. 
d. INFORMATION ITEM Certificates issued. 
e. INFORMATION ITEM Courses certified. 

 
4. DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 
 The Commission will discuss, receive public comment and possibly take action to adopt proposed 

amendments. 
 
TOPIC NAC REGULATION 

A.  Amend NAC 289.230 to permit the Executive Director to approve various 
methods, including electronic submission, for law enforcement agencies to 
report to the Commission continuing education compliance by its peace 
officers. Amend NAC 289.230 to authorize the Executive Director to 
temporarily reinstate the certification of a peace officer whose certification 
has been previously suspended for failure to complete required mandatory 
annual continuing education upon receiving documentation showing the 
officer has completed the mandatory continuing education.  The temporary 
reinstatement expires on the date the Commission considers whether the 
peace officer’s certification should be reinstated. 
   

NAC 289.230 

B.  Amend NAC 289.240, which establishes the minimum requirements for an 
Intermediate Certificate, to re-align the education, training, and time of 
service eligibility requirements for officers. 

 

NAC 289.240 

C.  Amend NAC 289.250, which establishes the minimum requirements for an 
Advanced Certificate, to re-align the education, training, and time of service 
eligibility requirements for officers.  

 

NAC 289.250 

D.  Amend NAC 289.310(1)(6)(7)(8)(9) as follows:  

1. Under subsection 1 which establishes the requirement to report certain 
information for courses above level of basic training, to include that an 
agency or training provider may apply for course certification utilizing 
the electronic submission format.   

 

NAC 289.310(1) 

2. Under subsection 6 to require private training providers to maintain and 
make available for inspection upon request of the Commission or its 
designee certain training records outlined under this section. 

NAC 289.310(6) 



TOPIC NAC REGULATION 

 
3. Under subsection 7 to require agencies that are not required to submit 

courses for certification to maintain and make available for inspection 
upon request of the Commission or its designee a roster of attendees, 
examination results and course evaluations. 

 

NAC 289.310(7) 

4. Addition of new subsection 8 to require an agency or training provider 
whose course has been certified to issue a certificate of completion to 
all peace officer attendees who successfully complete the training. The 
certificate of completion shall contain the POST Commission 
certification number, course name, course hours, and date course 
presented. 

 

NAC 289.310(8) 

5. Addition of new subsection 9 to require an employing agency whose 
peace officer attends a certified course upon receipt of a certification of 
completion, to report the attendance via electronic form approved by 
the Executive Director for importation into the POST Commission 
training record. 

 

NAC 289.310(9) 

 
5. DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 

The Commission will discuss and possibly take action to continue the rulemaking process to amend 
NAC 289.230, which establishes the requirements for mandatory annual continuing education, to include 
proposed changes to the annual 24 hour continuing education training requirement. 

 
 
 
6. DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 

Hearing pursuant to NAC 289.290(1)(g) on the revocation of Aaron Hughes, formerly of the Elko Police 
Department, for a felony conviction of Incest.  The Commission will decide whether to revoke 
Mr. Hughes’s Category I Basic Certificate which was previously suspended upon the original Criminal 
Information. 

 
7. DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 

Hearing pursuant to NAC 289.290(1)(g) on the suspension of Armando Flores, formerly of the Clark 
County Juvenile Justice Services, for felony indictment of Attempted Theft.  The Commission will 
decide whether to suspend the Category II Basic Certification. 
 

8. DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 
Hearing pursuant to NAC 289.290(1)(g) on the revocation of Edward Lattin III, formerly of the 
Nevada Department of Public Safety, for a felony conviction of Reckless Driving.  The Commission 
will decide whether to revoke the Category I Basic Certification. 

 
9. DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 

Hearing pursuant to NAC 289.290(1)(g) on the revocation of James Segura, formerly of the Las Vegas 
Metropolitan Police Department, for  felony conviction of Attempted Discharge of Firearm in a Structure. 
The Commission will decide whether to revoke the Category I Basic Certification. 

 
10. DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 

POST Commission to consider a request from the Henderson Police Department for an Executive 
Certificate for Captain Bobby Long. 

 
11. DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 



POST Commission to consider a request from the Douglas County Sheriff’s Office for an Executive 
Certificate for Captain Joseph Duffy. 

 
12. DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 
 POST Commission to consider a request from the Department of Public Safety for an Executive 
 Certificate  for Captain Chad Hastings. 
 
13.  DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 
 POST Commission to consider a request from the Department of Public Safety for an Executive 
 Certificate  for Captain Susan K. Aller-Schilling.. 
 
14. DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 

Request from the Mineral County Sheriff’s Office requesting a six-month extension of time pursuant 
to NRS 289.550 to complete the certification process for a peace officer that has not completed the 
process within the one year time period for their employee Deputy Jason Graves. 

 
15. DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 

Request from the Pyramid Lake Police Department requesting a six-month extension of time pursuant 
to NRS 289.550 to complete the certification process for a peace officer that has not completed the 
process within the one year time period for their employee Morgan Blake. 

 
16. PUBLIC COMMENTS  

The Commission may not take action on any matter considered under this item until the matter is 
specifically included on an agenda as an action item. 

 
17. DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 

Schedule upcoming Commission meetings. 
 
18. DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 

Adjournment. 
 

POSTED AT THE FOLLOWING LOCATIONS: 
 

POST Administrative Office, Carson City 
Nevada State Capitol, Carson City 

Blasdel State Building, Carson City 
Nevada State Library and Archives, Carson City 

Grant Sawyer Building, Las Vegas 
White Pine County Sheriff’s Office, Ely 

Carson City Sheriff’s Office 
http://www.post.nv.gov 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/ 
 

Electronically Posted pursuant to NRS 241.020(4) 
Pursuant to NRS 241.020 (2c), a copy of supporting materials for the meeting may be obtained by contacting 
Scott Johnston at (775) 687-7678, Ext. 3335 Commission on Peace Officers’ Standards and Training at 5587 
Wa Pai Shone Avenue, Carson City, Nevada 89701. 
 
NOTE: We are pleased to make reasonable accommodations for members of the public who are disabled and 
wish to attend the meeting.  If special arrangements for the meeting are necessary, please notify the 
Commission on Peace Officers’ Standards and Training at 5587 Wa Pai Shone Avenue, Carson City, Nevada 
89701 or call Scott Johnston at (775) 687-7678, Ext. 3335, no later than 2 working days prior to the meeting.  



AGENDA ITEM #1 
 

a.   Retirement of Commissioner Assistant Sheriff Marshall Emerson of the Washoe County 
Sheriff’s Office. 

 
b. Welcome new Commissioner, Director James M. Wright of the Nevada Department of Public 

Safety. 
 

 







AGENDA ITEM #2 
 

DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 
 

  Approval of the minutes from the July 24, 2013 Workshop and July 25, 2013 POST   
  Commission meeting. 

 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PEACE OFFICERS’ STANDARDS AND TRAINING 

WORKSHOP 

July 24, 2013 

9:33 a.m. 

 

Peace Officers' Standards And Training 
Prospector Hotel and Casino 

1501 East Aultman 
Ghost Train Room 

Ely, Nevada 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

2 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Ronald Pierini, Sheriff – Chairman, 
  Douglas County Sheriff's Office 
 
  Karen Coyne, Chief Officer 
  Public Safety, City of Las Vegas 
 
  Marshall Emerson, Assistant Sheriff 
  Washoe County Sheriff’s Office 
 
  Troy Tanner, Chief of Police  
  City of Mesquite Police Department 
 
  Dan Watts, Sheriff 
  White Pine County Sheriff's Office 
 
     
 
STAFF PRESENT: Richard P. Clark, Executive Director, 
  Commission on Peace Officers’  
  Standards and Training 
 

Michael Jensen, Senior Deputy 
Attorney General 
Department of Motor Vehicles and 
Department of Public Safety 

 
  Scott Johnston, Bureau Chief, 
  Commission on Peace Officers’  
  Standards and Training 
 
  Michael Sherlock, Audits and  
  Compliance 
  Peace Officers' Standards and  
  Training 
 
  Elaine Moore-Cerda 
  Commission on Peace Officers’ 
  Standards and Training 

 
   
 
   
 



 

3 

RONALD PIERINI:  Okay, we're going to get 1 

started, if we could, and one of the things -- and 2 

the audience, if you would please sign up over to my 3 

left.  If you haven’t done that, we’d ask you to do 4 

that.  Today we’re having a July -- oh, excuse me, 5 

just a second, Wednesday, July 24th, and we’re 6 

having a workshop in reference to a couple of items 7 

that we’re going to discuss.  And before -- we have 8 

a couple of new members with our Commission that we 9 

want to go over some of the rules if we could or 10 

least advise them what this workshop’s all about.  11 

We are in Ely and we’re at the Prospector 12 

Hotel and what I’d like to do is to start off with a 13 

roll call, if we could, and we’ll start with you, 14 

Dan, if you could say who you are.  15 

DAN WATTS:  Dan Watts, White Pine County. 16 

MARSHALL EMERSON:  Marshall Emerson, 17 

Washoe County. 18 

RONALD PIERINI:  Ron Pierini, Sheriff, 19 

Douglas County.  20 

KAREN COYNE:  Karen Coyne, City of Las 21 

Vegas. 22 

TROY TANNER:  Troy Tanner, Mesquite Police 23 

Department.  24 

RICHARD CLARK:  Dick Clark, P.O.S.T.  25 



 

4 

MICHAEL JENSEN:  Mike Jensen, Attorney 1 

General’s Office.  2 

MICHAEL SHERLOCK:  Mike Sherlock, P.O.S.T.  3 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Scott Johnston, P.O.S.T. 4 

ELAINE MOORE-CERDA:  Elaine Moore-Cerda, 5 

P.O.S.T. 6 

RONALD PIERINI:  Okay.  Thank you.  I’d 7 

like to remind the public, as I just said, there’s 8 

an attendance roster to my left.  If you haven’t 9 

filled that out, please do so.  And, also, this is a 10 

public event meeting more than anything is getting 11 

input on some of the issues that we want to bring 12 

forward.  If anybody in the audience wishes to do 13 

that, come up to the table and you go ahead and say 14 

your name and who you represent.  And, as a courtesy 15 

to others, we ask that all cell phones are turned 16 

off or least-wise on vibrate.  Remind the 17 

Commissioners that they state their name before you 18 

speak, so we can get that on the record.  And that 19 

also as a reminder that the -- the microphones are 20 

very sensitive, so if you happen to be talking to 21 

your -- one of the Commissioners next to you, it may 22 

be picked up for that, so be very careful of that.  23 

And then we’re not going to do any -- any motions 24 

right now as we’re -- on these particular topics, 25 



 

5 

but in the future if there’s any motions that are 1 

made, be sure to say your name and clearly what your 2 

motion is.  3 

I’d like to start off with Scott Johnston, 4 

if I could, and -- and for the record, talk about 5 

where we actually posted this as a way that people 6 

know that we were having this workshop.  7 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Thank you.  Scott 8 

Johnston for the record.  The notice for this 9 

workshop was posted at the P.O.S.T. administrative 10 

office in Carson City, the Nevada State Capitol, 11 

Carson City, Blasdel State Building in Carson City, 12 

Nevada State Library and Archives, Carson City, 13 

Grant Sawyer Building, Las Vegas, White Pine County 14 

Sheriff's Office, Ely, Carson City Sheriff’s Office, 15 

at the P.O.S.T. website at www.post.nv.gov and at 16 

the legislative state website at www.leg.state.nv.us 17 

and notices were sent out electronically to all 18 

agencies that it affected in the State. 19 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you, Scott.  Also, 20 

for the record, the two topics that we’re going to 21 

talk about is affecting the NAC’s 289, which is 22 

dealing with the annual 24-hour continuing education 23 

training requirement and then, secondly, dealing 24 

with the Management Certificate process.  I would 25 



 

6 

like to spend just a second or two with Mr. Jensen 1 

and talk about what a workshop is so everybody has a 2 

clear understanding of why we’re doing this and what 3 

we expect.  4 

MICHAEL JENSEN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  5 

Mike Jensen for the record.  I guess the easiest way 6 

to just give a quick overview about what we’re doing 7 

here to today is to start with the statute that 8 

creates the Commission in 289, Chapter 289.  It 9 

provides that the Commission shall adopt certain 10 

regulations that deal with training and 11 

certification requirements.  As part of that, the 12 

Commission has adopted regulations that deal with 13 

continuing education.  Those are found in NAC in the 14 

Nevada Administrative Code, Chapter 289.230.   15 

The rule -- the statutes provide that if a 16 

Commission is going to change its regulations or its 17 

rules, it has to follow certain procedures to do so 18 

and those -- those rules are found in Chapter 233B 19 

of the NRS.  And part of that process to change a 20 

regulation is to have a workshop.  And the workshop 21 

is basically designed just to allow interested 22 

parties, stakeholders, to come together to talk 23 

about a topic that affects regulations.  In some 24 

cases, you will have a draft -- a set of draft 25 



 

7 

language in front of you.  In other cases, you may 1 

not.  It’s not required that there be actual draft 2 

language for a regulation when you meet.  It can be 3 

just an opportunity to talk about your regulations 4 

and a particular topic of interest under the 5 

regulations that maybe needs to be changed or 6 

revised.   7 

So that’s the -- the purpose today is to 8 

allow the Commission and members of the public, 9 

interested parties, to discuss these two topic areas 10 

that are outlined in the agenda. 11 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you.  And just as a 12 

suggestion, again, for all of our Commissioners, 13 

this is the time that you feel free about discussing 14 

this issue.  You know, sometimes at workshops, 15 

nobody wants to say anything.  Well, that’s not what 16 

our intent is.  If we’re going to be changing some 17 

NACs, we need to really talk about those and to be 18 

able to get that information out, what you feel 19 

about that and which direction we should go.   20 

To back up for a minute, I want to make 21 

sure that we get for the record is that Nevada 22 

Department of Corrections Director Greg Cox and Tony 23 

DeMeo from Nye County Sheriff’s Office and Gary 24 

Schofield from Metro are not present.   25 



 

8 

What I’d like to do is that -- a little 1 

bit of a history.  Back in May, we had, if I recall 2 

right, it was -- we did a workshop about this very 3 

topic and we didn’t feel very comfortable about 4 

that, only to make a decision at that time and move 5 

forward because we had some concerns about it, so 6 

that’s why we’re revisiting it again today.  I know 7 

that we got some correspondence and, Scott, you have 8 

one from a sheriff that sent a letter in.  9 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Yes, sir.  That’s right.  10 

Scott Johnston for the record.  After the May 11 

meeting, we did -- we got some feedback and we got a 12 

letter from the Sheriff at Churchill County, Sheriff 13 

Trotter, expressing his views on this issue and as 14 

well as two of his captains, Captain Joseph and 15 

Captain Matheson.  And this is under tabbed agenda 16 

item number one.  There’s a copy of the letter from 17 

the Commissioners in their book.  And at this time, 18 

I would like to read this letter into the record.  I 19 

do not see a representative here present from the 20 

agency.  The letter is dated July 3, 2013, and it 21 

was addressed to Mr. Richard Clark, Executive 22 

Director of P.O.S.T. 23 

“Dear Sir:  I am sending this letter in 24 

support of the recommendation to amend NAC 289.230.  25 



 

9 

In particular, I wish to address the provision, 1 

which provides for the annual 24-hour training 2 

requirement.  I am in favor of allowing individual 3 

agencies more flexibility in this training 4 

requirement.  I would support an amendment that 5 

specified that individual employees be required to 6 

exhibit proficiency in training, rather than a set 7 

24 hours of training.  I am including the signatures 8 

of my division captains to express their support for 9 

this measure.”  And it is signed by Sheriff Ben 10 

Trotter and by Captain Mark Joseph and Captain 11 

Michael Matheson. 12 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you, Scott.  I 13 

think the one thing, just for new the Commissioners 14 

that are here, and some of the dialogue that we had 15 

in May and if you read some of the minutes from the 16 

last one, you’ll see that it was kind of torn in 17 

between different directions, which way we were 18 

going, and one of which was that Pool Pact had made 19 

a statement about the importance of having records 20 

of training to make sure that if there is a civil 21 

litigation, they can pull those records and say that 22 

agency was up to the standard.   23 

What I heard out of that at least was -- 24 

is that they didn’t feel comfortable about erasing 25 



 

10 

all the hour numbers.  They wanted to have a hard 1 

number of what are we doing and where are we going 2 

and how many hours is somewhat suggested to be done 3 

or at least modify some of the -- maybe not all 24 4 

hours have to be spelled out, but at least half of 5 

them to say to a judge if there happens to be a 6 

legal litigation that these officers are well 7 

trained.  That was one of the things that got us to 8 

where we are today is that we need to review that.   9 

And under the first one under A, under 10 

Topic is amending NAC 289.230, which establishes the 11 

requirements of mandatory annual continuing 12 

education, to include proposed changes to the annual 13 

24-hour continuing education training requirement. 14 

The regulation changes are being considered in order 15 

to provide agencies more flexibility in meeting the 16 

individual training needs and increasing overall 17 

professionalism.   18 

And what we did ask was that there was 19 

three different kinds of categories that we were 20 

going to look at.  One of which is that we don’t 21 

even have hours down, that we are saying that they 22 

provide that training for those certain situations 23 

or those certain classes, if they’re completed, 24 

that’s good enough.  The other one was is they’ll 25 



 

11 

split it in half and say in one of them 12 hours of 1 

professional training and then the others was 2 

something that just had to be signed off that they 3 

were proficient in.  Or number three was we’ll keep 4 

it exactly what it is.   5 

And I see Mike Sherlock is here and he’s 6 

going to give us a presentation and kind of go 7 

through all the different categories and so we can 8 

discuss those and see which way we’re going to go 9 

with them.  So, Mike, you’re up. 10 

RICHARD CLARK:  Mr. Chairman. 11 

RONALD PIERINI:  I’m sorry.  12 

RICHARD CLARK:  Dick Clark for the record.  13 

It might be easier for Mike’s presentation if the -- 14 

the P.O.S.T. Commissioners moved to the area there.  15 

Do you think?   16 

RONALD PIERINI:  I do. 17 

RICHARD CLARK:  Because are you going to 18 

be showing from there or -- 19 

MICHAEL SHERLOCK:  I don’t want anyone to 20 

throw their back out, but, yeah.  21 

RICHARD CLARK:  Okay.  Because you’re 22 

actually -- you’re going to be --  23 

MICHAEL SHERLOCK:  Whatever works.  It’s 24 

going to -- yeah, it’s a PowerPoint, so.  25 



 

12 

RICHARD CLARK:  Then I think it probably 1 

would -- might be easier if we move to the chairs. 2 

MICHAEL SHERLOCK:  Okay.  Mike Sherlock 3 

for the record.  I apologize for the clarity, it’s 4 

not us, it’s the screen, so you may not even be able 5 

to read it from back here, but we’ll give it a shot.  6 

At the last workshop, it was pretty clear that, at 7 

least from our perspective, that there’s still some 8 

misunderstanding as to what 289.230 is and what it 9 

requires.  And so we wanted to try to go through 10 

this and try to explain it better, perhaps better 11 

than I did last time.   12 

I just want to remind everyone that 13 

289.230 addresses the requirements to maintain a 14 

Basic Certificate.  Okay?  It’s -- we have a 15 

separate process for professional development.  It 16 

has -- that is not what it addresses and, again, we 17 

have a process for that.  But 289.230 applies to the 18 

Basic Certificate and how you maintain the Basic 19 

Certificate and what is required.   20 

Under the current regulation, I know you 21 

can’t read that, but I just want to point out a 22 

couple things.  Under the current regulation, it 23 

starts out and tries to address the need for 24 24 

hours of additional training.  That in alone is 25 



 

13 

confusing because it’s in addition to what?  You 1 

know, it just says additional training.  Then the 2 

section goes on to state than an officer must attend 3 

continuing education, so it goes from training to 4 

continuing education.  And as -- then as you go 5 

further into the regulation, it states that an 6 

officer, as part of the continuing education, must 7 

demonstrate proficiency.  So we’re looking at three 8 

different things and one regulation.  It’s training, 9 

it’s education or it’s proficiency.  And this is 10 

causing confusion as far as what we can tell from -- 11 

for agencies.   12 

So one of the problems that’s been brought 13 

forward to us is the section, again, states both 14 

continuing education and demonstrate proficiency.  15 

Most agencies agree that those are two different 16 

things.  Some agencies interpret proficiency as not, 17 

you know, it’s not being education and they do not 18 

count proficiency towards the 24 hours.  Proficiency 19 

is testing, it’s not training and it doesn’t count.  20 

While others simply call each critical skill, 21 

firearms, those kind of things, as a random number, 22 

five hours.  Generally, it’s five hours because we 23 

have five critical skills and if they’re five hours 24 

each, when you’re done, you’re at 24 hours -- you’re 25 



 

14 

at 25 hours and you’ve met the 24-hour requirement. 1 

In either case, agents from our 2 

perspective, the agencies are simply conducting 3 

training to meet the regulation rather than, you 4 

know, to the benefit of the organization.  They’re 5 

trying to meet that 24 hours.  Under the NAC, 6 

training used to comply with 230 cannot be used 7 

towards professional development hours.   8 

So, last year, we -- we did a quick study 9 

and we determined there were 11,000, approximately 10 

11,000, it was 10,800 hours, something like that, in 11 

training that was simply used for compliance alone 12 

cannot be used for professional development and none 13 

of those hours could apply towards professional 14 

development.  And that’s because the section is 15 

about maintaining a Basic Certificate, so these 16 

extra hours really do not make sense.  It forces 17 

agencies to either use, you know, limited value 18 

training simply to meet the 24 hours or use, you 19 

know, important professional development hours to 20 

meet the 24 hours.   21 

The other problems that we see, many 22 

agencies don’t practice all critical skills.  So we 23 

have an arbitrary 24 hours that includes critical 24 

skills, but the agency, you know, they may not carry 25 



 

15 

less lethal.  They may not carry firearms.  So what 1 

happens for these agencies is they are scrambling to 2 

meet the 24-hour requirement.  They don’t get to 3 

arbitrarily say we do five hours on firearms because 4 

they don’t carry firearms.  And so they’re -- 5 

they’re at a disadvantage.  They have to somehow 6 

make up that 24 hours in other ways.  And, again, 7 

anything they do to make up those 24 hours will not 8 

count towards professional development.   9 

Again, demonstrating proficiency is in 10 

conflict with the hourly requirement.  So, you know, 11 

agencies are reporting hours simply because the 12 

current regulation requires hours.  And, you know, 13 

there was a lot of talk about liability, but I think 14 

the question becomes why did it take the officer 15 

five hours to demonstrate proficiency, while in 16 

other agencies it only took one hour to demonstrate 17 

proficiency?  Because the regulation says 18 

demonstrate proficiency.   19 

And just -- just to throw up some of the 20 

inconsistencies, if you can see that -- that we see 21 

with this -- these hour requirements and I just have 22 

them up here.  DPS, for example, they report to 23 

P.O.S.T. either two or three hours depending if, you 24 

know, they’re using long guns or what not for 25 



 

16 

firearms training, three hours for less lethal, 1 

seven for DTs and one hour for use of force policy.  2 

You go to Metro.  They’re doing four hours, 3 

reporting four hours for firearms, six hours for 4 

less lethal, eight hours for DTs and two hours for 5 

use of force policy.  So you can see there, it’s all 6 

over the board.  There’s no consistency in what 7 

proficiency is and how long it takes an agency to 8 

demonstrate proficiency.   9 

Again, why the inconsistency is because 10 

agencies are simply looking at what it takes to meet 11 

the 24-hour requirement, rather than recording 12 

proficiency or they’re including hours that lead up 13 

to proficiency as part of that -- what they’re 14 

reporting to P.O.S.T.  And, you know, again these 15 

are then reported to P.O.S.T. as hours because we 16 

require hours.   17 

We took a look at what surrounding states 18 

do.  Arizona requires eight hours of professional 19 

development per year and eight hours of critical 20 

skills every three years.  I wouldn’t recommend 21 

this.  They’re -- they’re pretty loose.  They -- 22 

that eight hours can be anything you want, any of 23 

the critical skills you want.  So, in Arizona, if 24 

you do eight hours of firearms once every three 25 



 

17 

years, you’re in compliance.  You don’t have to do 1 

DTs; you don’t have to do any of that.  So that’s 2 

what they do.  California, again, I -- you know, I 3 

know everybody hates California, but, as I said 4 

before, California has more attorneys than we have 5 

population and you can see what they do.  They 6 

require 24 hours every two years, 12 of which must 7 

include tactical firearms, arrest control and 8 

driving and must also include two hours of 9 

communication.  They have special level for command 10 

staff.  They reduce those hours and that kind of 11 

thing.  The remaining 10 hours in California is used 12 

to cover legislative and P.O.S.T. mandated specific 13 

subjects.  So that 24 hours includes every year 14 

their legislature or their P.O.S.T. Commission 15 

mandates specific training and that’s what that 16 

extra 10 hours is about. 17 

RICHARD CLARK:  California provides money.  18 

MICHAEL SHERLOCK:  And California pays for 19 

it, yeah.  But, again, you can see what they require 20 

and that is based on liability and they’ve done 21 

studies.  Idaho, again, they simply require 40 hours 22 

every two years.  They don’t care what it is.  No 23 

critical skills requirement, no perishable skills 24 

requirement, anything like that, just 40 hours and 25 



 

18 

you’re done in two years.  Oregon requires 28 hours 1 

per year, eight of which must be firearms.  That’s 2 

their only requirements.  Utah is 40 hours of what 3 

they call in-service training per year.  There’s no 4 

critical skill requirements.  None of it counts 5 

towards professional development and almost anything 6 

counts towards the 40 hours.  So you could take 7 

underwater basket weaving and it would count towards 8 

their 40 hours.  They give you five hours just for 9 

participating in a physical fitness program and 10 

that’s Utah’s.  And Washington requires 24 hours per 11 

year.  They have no critical skills requirement and 12 

they don’t issue professional development 13 

certificates.  They have no process for professional 14 

development.  You do 24 hours and you maintain your 15 

position as a sworn officer.   16 

So after looking at what -- what P.O.S.T. 17 

staff is recommending is that we remember the 18 

regulation addresses what is necessary to maintain a 19 

Basic Certificate.  And the recommendation is to 20 

maintain a Basic Certificate, an officer should 21 

demonstrate proficiency in the each of the critical 22 

skills yearly and twice for firearms, it’s already 23 

in the regulation that way.  No hourly requirement 24 

for maintaining the Basic Certificate, just those 25 



 

19 

perishable skills.  And demonstrate proficiency is 1 

saying that they are proficient in those critical 2 

skills and that’s what you would report to P.O.S.T.  3 

Any additional training could be at the discretion 4 

of the employing agency and it would be used for 5 

professional development, not for maintaining the 6 

Basic Certificate or trying to meet the, you know, 7 

the regulatory requirement.  It would remove 8 

confusion and focus on those critical skills.  9 

Allows training to an agency standard rather than to 10 

meet a regulation and, of course, for us it would 11 

allow for more accurate reporting.  Again, when we 12 

see that it took eight hours, because you have to 13 

report eight hours to demonstrate proficiency, we 14 

see that as a problem.   15 

And if you look at the other states, it 16 

would really put Nevada at or above the requirements 17 

of all surrounding states.  No state requires 18 

critical skills every year proficiency, not one.  19 

So, we’d be above the surrounding states just by 20 

doing this.   21 

I know you can’t read that.  We threw in a 22 

sample -- sample wording of the recommendation.  It 23 

would read almost identical to what it does now, 24 

just taking out the 24-hour requirement.  We'd leave 25 



 

20 

the -- proficiency would be at the discretion of the 1 

agency.  An agency would decide and determine what 2 

proficiency, as based on the type of weapon, the, 3 

you know, methods they use, that kind of thing.  4 

We’d leave that discretion in there, but would 5 

simply say to maintain a Basic Certificate, an 6 

officer must show that they are proficient in these 7 

critical skills and they -- and they can maintain 8 

their Basic Certificate that way.  And, again, we 9 

have a separate system that values professional 10 

development and that’s not what this section is 11 

about.  And, again, you know, I won’t read the whole 12 

thing, but the wording is -- is essentially the 13 

same, just removing that 24-hour requirement, 14 

removing the confusion between additional training, 15 

continuing education and demonstrating proficiency.   16 

I did put in here, at the last workshop, 17 

it was recommended that we look at what we call 18 

extended absence, so I’ve included that in there.  19 

Basically, that is dropping from the one 12-month to 20 

the four month.  If an officer is absent for four 21 

months or more, they have to do any training that 22 

they missed as a result of that four-month absence 23 

and that’s all that is.  And the same exemptions 24 

would apply for those who are range masters or DT 25 



 

21 

instructors, that kind of thing.  That wouldn’t 1 

change if -- if we were to adopt this type of 2 

regulation.   3 

And I throw in another idea.  There was 4 

lot of lip service paid to liability.  Another idea 5 

would be to research what the appropriate hourly 6 

requirements are to maintain proficiency in each 7 

critical skill and any of the other high liability 8 

areas that the Commission might identify.  The 9 

problem with that is, as -- as Mr. Clark pointed 10 

out, as opposed to California, they have a different 11 

budget structure and they’re able to do that.  And 12 

if we were to go this way, it would require a 13 

substantial research project to try to determine 14 

what would be a common number of hours to place on 15 

those critical skills.  It would require us to 16 

mandate those hours for every agency and take a lot 17 

of discretion away from agencies and could result in 18 

a higher cost for training simply to maintain the 19 

Basic Certificate.   20 

I put that in there because of the 21 

California regulation where they have done extensive 22 

studies on liability and what training should be 23 

done.  And, again, they also zero in on critical 24 

skills.  Of course, they add driving, but I throw 25 



 

22 

that in there based on the comments related to 1 

liability. 2 

The other thing I want to point out, I 3 

know it was mentioned that there were -- there’s 4 

some benefit in the mind of some that the 24 hours 5 

allows for legal update.  I just want to point out 6 

again that the current regulation does not require 7 

legal update training at all.  It is not specific, 8 

it is not targeted training, it is simply 24 hours, 9 

so that is not in there.  And if we were to change 10 

this regulation, it would not take that discretion 11 

away from an agency that wanted to mandate legal 12 

update training every year for their agency.  We’re 13 

simply looking at the confusion between proficiency 14 

and training and reminding that this regulation 15 

applies to Basic Certificate maintenance, not 16 

professional development.  And that’s it.  17 

Questions? 18 

RICHARD CLARK:  Let me make a comment 19 

based on the fact that, I mean, I just -- I became 20 

aware of this when I looked at it, but we have been 21 

using the term continuing education and that 22 

actually is a confusing term in reality because it 23 

bridges the need to maintain proficiency to maintain 24 

basic skills and professional development.  The 25 



 

23 

truth is we really have "maintaining critical 1 

skills" to maintain a Basic Certificate and 2 

"professional development" is a whole different 3 

thing.  And when you make that division, it makes us 4 

a little more clear.  When you start using the term 5 

continuing education, it kind of marries those 6 

things together, which has become confusing.  So, 7 

anyway, I think you probably have some questions for 8 

Mike. 9 

MICHAEL SHERLOCK:  If there’s any 10 

questions, I’ll try to clear it up.  I don’t know if 11 

I can, but. 12 

RONALD PIERINI:  Any of the Commissioners 13 

have any questions?  14 

DAN WATTS:  Dan Watts for the record.  15 

Well, we talked about cost and I know with the 16 

insurance company, Pool Pact, was here last time and 17 

they’re not really in favor of this.  Is that going 18 

to cause our insurance rates to go up?  Is it going 19 

to cost us more in the long run there?  20 

RONALD PIERINI:  I don’t -- I don’t think 21 

it would increase probably the cost unless there was 22 

some litigation and because of not having that kind 23 

of documents, it lost cases that would increase the 24 

amount of money that people would pay or agencies 25 



 

24 

that would have to pay, but I don’t think that right 1 

off the bat, it would increase that.  That’s just my 2 

own -- I’m not an attorney, but Mr. Jensen, that’s 3 

probably pretty fair to say, I think.  4 

MICHAEL JENSEN:  I’m not familiar enough 5 

with how Pool Pact works to be able to answer a 6 

question on that. 7 

RONALD PIERINI:  I’m going to ask to the 8 

public.  Is there anybody in the audience that would 9 

like to make a comment on this?  Okay.  Seeing none, 10 

go on to Karen.  11 

KAREN COYNE:  Mr. Chair, Karen Coyne.  12 

Mike, who -- is this presentation going to be given 13 

at the regular meeting tomorrow afternoon? 14 

MICHAEL SHERLOCK:  No.  We’re not on the 15 

agenda.   16 

KAREN COYNE:  I -- I would just like to 17 

say this.  Thank you for putting that together 18 

because I think it was incredibly informative and 19 

clarified a number of things that were questionable 20 

during our last presentation.  And I appreciate that 21 

we got a letter from one of those who had either, I 22 

can’t recall if he had representatives present or if 23 

it was expressed by others who were against this 24 

adjustment that -- that he was also against it, but 25 



 

25 

I think that this presentation could be very helpful 1 

to others who may have the same questions in mind as 2 

we did.  3 

MICHAEL SHERLOCK:  Uh-huh.  Sure.  4 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Scott Johnston for the 5 

record.  Mr. Chairman, we do -- it is an agenda item 6 

tomorrow to either move forward continuing the 7 

rulemaking process and if it’s the Commission’s 8 

desire, we could present this PowerPoint 9 

presentation at the Commission meeting tomorrow. 10 

RONALD PIERINI:  I think we should do 11 

that, if we could.  So if, Mike, you could have that 12 

here again and go over that in case there’s people 13 

from the audience or the Sheriffs and Chiefs that 14 

are completed with that tomorrow morning, would like 15 

to stay and see that, we could -- we could maybe do 16 

that. 17 

MICHAEL SHERLOCK:  Sure. 18 

MARSHALL EMERSON:  One comment.   19 

RONALD PIERINI:  Yeah. 20 

MARSHALL EMERSON:  Marshall Emerson for 21 

the record.  Regarding the concern of Pool Pact or 22 

any other insurance carrier, regardless of who that 23 

may be, my belief is -- is that that’s between the 24 

insurance carrier and the insured.  So I think what 25 



 

26 

this does is it provides the agencies across the 1 

state the opportunity to -- to determine the type of 2 

training past the basic skills level that they want 3 

to provide to their -- to their officers.  And, 4 

additionally, it puts the onus, quite frankly, back 5 

on the agency.   6 

And so if the agency, for example, if the 7 

executive staff of a particular agency is in favor 8 

of this and they -- and their insurance carrier and 9 

a lot of counties or some counties are self insured, 10 

others are not, come to the agreement that -- that 11 

this standard is -- is appropriate and the 12 

proficiency, demonstration of proficiency, is what’s 13 

required, then that’s fine between that agency and 14 

their carrier.   15 

On the other hand, if a particular 16 

insurance carrier says, well, we know what -- what 17 

the State standard is, however, we want everybody 18 

that we insure to meet this standard, and that’s 19 

adopted, then that’s an administrative decision 20 

that’s between that agency and their carrier and so 21 

be it.  They’re still meeting the standard.  That’s 22 

my comment. 23 

RONALD PIERINI:  Any other comments from 24 

the Commission? 25 



 

27 

RICHARD CLARK:  Mr. Chairman, I just 1 

wanted to mention that I -- I believe we can 2 

probably get a printout of what was not readable on 3 

the screen, which I think would be beneficial for 4 

everybody to be able to read and review, so maybe we 5 

can get a printout on some of those things and then 6 

hand -- hand that out to people. 7 

MICHAEL SHERLOCK:  Everybody should have  8 

-- all the Commissioners have one of these.   9 

RICHARD CLARK:  Oh, okay. 10 

MICHAEL SHERLOCK:  And there’s some for -- 11 

RICHARD CLARK:  Oh, okay, so you really 12 

already have it in front of you in a packet? 13 

MICHAEL SHERLOCK:  Yeah. 14 

RONALD PIERINI:  Now, let me -- let me 15 

outline some of the things that are my concerns 16 

and/or whatever and just -- just as a personal 17 

thing.  The (inaudible) proficiency thing.  I do 18 

truly -- truly understand that.  I understand that 19 

agencies were spending a lot of time dealing with 20 

their training to get those hours in so they could 21 

complete the 24 hours or help them get to that -- 22 

that number.  And we also know that during that 23 

training, a lot of them are done and they’re still 24 

waiting because they got to stay until 1:00 and then 25 



 

28 

we’re paying overtime and I realize the money issue 1 

in dealing with that.  And what I think what we’re 2 

trying to do, and correct me if I’m wrong, is that 3 

what we would do is we would have a -- a form that 4 

would sit there and say the firearm’s done and 5 

completed, you check it off.  It doesn’t have how 6 

many hours down there.  Going to next one.  Yeah, he 7 

did that one, he did this one, he did whatever, so 8 

that the agency is then absolutely saying that they 9 

had the training to complete that and they were 10 

successful in that particular event.  11 

Where I have a problem with all of it is, 12 

is that we don’t have a number of training to be on 13 

those critical proficiencies.  That’s where I have 14 

the problem.  And our past commissioner and -- and 15 

director of DPS made it real clear at our last 16 

meeting was the fact that, you know what, we really 17 

need to make sure agencies are training people.   18 

You know, the mission of P.O.S.T., in my 19 

opinion is, is not there for -- really for the 20 

individual officers, in a way it is, but on the 21 

other side of it is we’re here to bring safety to 22 

the residents and the visitors coming through the 23 

State of Nevada.  That’s what we’re trying to do is 24 

make a standard so that we are proud of our law 25 



 

29 

enforcement doing a successful job and doing the 1 

right thing in our communities.   2 

And I don’t have a problem with the fact 3 

of splitting this and it’s not a compromise.  Make 4 

no mistake about it.  I think this critical 5 

proficiency thing, the check-off list is great.  No 6 

problem.  I still think we need to tag on hours that 7 

need to be done for training outside that.  Some 8 

agencies may say, well, there’s not any real 9 

requirement.  Well, then on the other hand, if they 10 

get caught like Marshall said, was that, you know, 11 

they get into a liability and they never had any 12 

training, then guess what, there’s a problem, isn’t 13 

there?   14 

I think that we are, again, trying to get 15 

the professional standard up pretty high.  And in 16 

order to do that, you have to have regulations to 17 

make sure that it’s done.  And what I’m trying to 18 

say is 12 hours a year is nothing when you think 19 

about it.  I mean, how many hours in Washoe County, 20 

Marshall, you guys teach -- I mean, I’m sure it’s in 21 

the 40s-50 hours.  I’m sure every year and I’m sure 22 

at Highway Patrol, same thing.  I know Douglas 23 

County’s the same, so it’s not a big issue.  And, 24 

yeah, we can put it on paper and say they went 25 



 

30 

through all these different things.   1 

What I’m fearful of is the agency in the 2 

smaller rural areas that do not have the ability, 3 

the money, to do that, say, well, you know, we’ll do 4 

the best we can, we’re doing the critical, we’ll put 5 

on some classes, but we’re really not getting in the 6 

direction we really want to be to be as high as 7 

professional officers as we want.   8 

And I’m kind of siding for, and it’s okay 9 

if I lose the motion if we go forward with that, is 10 

that we still do 12 hours of training to make sure 11 

that there is accountability to a certain point for 12 

every agency.  That’s -- that’s my thought.  Again, 13 

it’s not a compromise, it’s more of forcing agencies 14 

to continue with that, for lack of a better term, is 15 

a cloud over their head saying we got to get that 16 

training done.  Well, that’s good because we need to 17 

have training.  So that’s kind of where I am at and 18 

if you don’t agree or you have other things, then 19 

you need to bring it up now.  That’s what this 20 

workshop’s about is talking about this and what we 21 

think.  Mike?  22 

MICHAEL SHERLOCK:  Mr. Chairman, Mike 23 

Sherlock for the record.  Just so I can address that 24 

a little because I have had comments on that.  Just 25 



 

31 

last weekend in Las Vegas, this came up at one of my 1 

meetings.  Some of the concerns on doing that, 2 

currently agencies value education by either 3 

providing incentive pay for intermediate advance or 4 

making it a requirement that you have your 5 

intermediate or advanced to, for example, test for 6 

sergeant or something like that.   7 

The comments I received were if we mandate 8 

training as part of the Basic Certificate, you 9 

devalue the intermediate and advanced.  And the 10 

other comments were, if we’re going to say someone 11 

has to have an intermediate to test for sergeant, 12 

but we’re going to force them to get their 13 

intermediate, there’s no self initiative at all, 14 

they’re getting 12 hours a year, it applies towards 15 

their intermediate.  You know, if they have a 16 

degree, in two years they have their intermediate 17 

without ever applying any self initiative.   18 

And that -- I just want to bring that up 19 

because that did come up last week and that were -- 20 

those were the comments that I received in regards 21 

to requiring professional development hours or 22 

training hours as part of the Basic Certificate is 23 

that it would devalue the intermediate and advanced.  24 

And I just bring that up as -- as a comment that was 25 



 

32 

brought to me. 1 

RONALD PIERINI:  Mike, I appreciate that, 2 

but on the other side of it is if somebody already 3 

gets those certificates and does not need to go 4 

further with those, this is saying, well, I’m all 5 

done, I don’t have to worry about it.  6 

MICHAEL SHERLOCK:  True. 7 

RONALD PIERINI:  And I don’t need to worry 8 

about any more training.  So, I mean, you’re still  9 

-- you’re still directing them, because I’m sure the 10 

majority of the officers that we have are really 11 

going forward with that, especially if they’ve been 12 

in the system for a long time.  They are getting 13 

extra pay through the unions or, you know, the 14 

contracts, you know, and they’re trying to build 15 

that.  But what happens is that, you know, I got 16 

intermediate, I’m not going to go any further, I’m 17 

not going to worry about.   18 

So where would we hurt ourselves by saying 19 

12 hours?  Where -- what -- what was going to cause 20 

a big problem for the majority of employees for 21 

every law enforcement agency?  Is that something we 22 

really are concerned about or are we saying the 23 

State of Nevada has standards that we’re doing the 24 

critical proficiency end of it and we’re also 25 



 

33 

mandating other training?  Is that really a 1 

difficult thing?   2 

So, I don’t know, that’s just my points.  3 

So I don’t know.  For whatever it’s worth, does 4 

anybody want to throw some -- you know, we have to 5 

kind of look at this, where are we going to go 6 

tomorrow because tomorrow do we go forward with this 7 

and what direction do we give staff how to -- to 8 

then put it on the agenda again to make this NAC, 9 

you know, valid.  And we’re going to have to as a 10 

group of people either say we’re just going to stay 11 

the way we’ve been or we’re going to split it in 12 

half, we’re going to not even have any hours.  13 

So, I mean, tomorrow we’re going to have 14 

to make that decision and something to think about 15 

and I think that all of us need to talk about that 16 

even today is what direction, kind of, do you like 17 

the best and -- and you know what, that’s a -- it’s 18 

a system here as Commissioners that vote on that and 19 

that’s the way we’ll go.  So, I don’t know.  I guess 20 

that’s what I’m trying to say.  Karen.  21 

KAREN COYNE:  Karen Coyne.  So I’m torn.  22 

I’ll be perfectly honest.  I do share your concerns 23 

and expressed the same at our last meeting that 24 

particularly for those smaller agencies who constant 25 



 

34 

-- I mean, we all constantly battle for our budget 1 

dollars, but the smaller agencies, when they don’t 2 

have something to point to that says I am required 3 

and we have an obligation and a responsibility to 4 

provide this training for our staff and it’s going 5 

to cost “X” amount of dollars, I think that that is 6 

a disadvantage for those organizations.   7 

And the very issue here that we’re talking 8 

about with those who are hanging around to get the 9 

hours in, do they have the means to produce or 10 

develop the training that would be required to -- to 11 

fill those hours if we mandated them?  So I’m -- I’m 12 

really torn.  I’m -- I’m curious if any outreach was 13 

done with those who testified against this during 14 

our last meeting.  Were they involved in any way, 15 

shape or form as -- as you’ve progressed through to 16 

where we’re at today?  Because I’d just like to take 17 

advantage of the time we have between today and 18 

tomorrow and circle back with those folks in 19 

particular and reach out to a few others to see how 20 

they -- how they really feel about this.  21 

MICHAEL SHERLOCK:  Mike Sherlock for the 22 

record.  I did not reach out to them, partly because 23 

there was some confusion.  I think one comment was 24 

made, and I don’t recall who, that they were in 25 



 

35 

favor of maintaining the 24 hours because it allows 1 

when there’s a lateral hire, they know that they’ve 2 

been trained.  And, again, the reason we didn’t 3 

really address it is there’s some confusion with 4 

that.  Under the current regulation, that 24 hours 5 

is not specific, so I don’t know how it helps with a 6 

lateral hire because you don’t -- there is no 7 

mandated training.  You don’t know what training 8 

fulfilled that 24 hours, which kind of goes to our 9 

whole point is much of that training is not valuable 10 

training.  It’s simply to meet the regulations.   11 

So that’s one comment from -- from one of 12 

the -- I believe it’s a sheriff and we did not reach 13 

out because there’s a confusion on what really the 14 

regulation requires and we kind of addressed that 15 

today and lateral -- at least that you would know 16 

that they are proficient in critical skills, you 17 

know, for lateral hire, so.  18 

RICHARD CLARK:  Mr. Chairman, Dick Clark 19 

for the record.  Just to sort of reiterate what Mike 20 

was just saying is that the subcommittee that we -- 21 

looking at this issue took into consideration the 22 

resistance, comments and concerns of those people 23 

who had testified and came to the meeting and -- and 24 

-- and surfaced to some degree the fact that a lot  25 



 

36 

-- some of what was said wasn’t really valid because 1 

it was based out of confusion about what’s going on 2 

now and wasn’t really even accurate.   3 

That, for instance, the Pool Pact issue of 4 

needing to make sure that there was a certain amount 5 

of hours so that legal updates would be viable and 6 

could be -- force agencies to -- budgets would be 7 

forced to pay for that.  That -- that is -- there’s 8 

no reality in that right now because there isn’t 9 

anything in the regulations that mandates that they 10 

have to do that.  So that really isn’t even valid.   11 

And it isn't valid, the other that Mike 12 

just brought up about the transferring because there 13 

isn’t specifics in what has to be done, so agencies 14 

vary on how they train anyway and there’s no way to 15 

validate that.  The only thing that would be 16 

possible is if P.O.S.T. was to undertake a 17 

tremendous effort and expense to do a study to 18 

validate to find out what is proficiency in -- in 19 

less lethal.  What exactly is -- level do you have 20 

to do and what -- what needs to be in that 21 

performance objectives in order to equalize all of 22 

those things?  And that takes it away from the 23 

agencies because then they have to -- you know, 24 

obviously, we would try and come to some agreement 25 



 

37 

statewide with subject matter experts in each one of 1 

those fields.  That would be a major undertaking to 2 

do that, but it would then set specific hours which 3 

probably liability-wise wouldn’t be a bad idea, but 4 

I think expense-wise and -- and the ability to do 5 

that and taking away the, you know, the agency’s 6 

ability to set their own standards would be 7 

affected. 8 

RONALD PIERINI:  Well, just as another 9 

comment, if I could.  The only thing that I’m saying 10 

is I don’t think that we -- we should rely on each 11 

agency to be professional, have good trainers, know 12 

exactly what the expectations of what we want do out 13 

of our training dealing with the critical 14 

proficiency.  I don’t think we need to get involved 15 

with that.  I think that, you know what, we’ve got 16 

some great professionals out there doing a great 17 

job.  They’re all trained, they’re -- they’ve been 18 

through, you know, programs and they’re either 19 

dealing with weapons or dealing with a host of other 20 

things or experts and I think we allow them to do 21 

that.  That’s their responsibility.  They should do 22 

that.   23 

So, you know, I -- I don’t think on that 24 

particular one, I would hate to see us go and -- and 25 



 

38 

start all this all over again and trying to say 1 

hours.  That’s not what I’m saying.  I just -- just 2 

want to reiterate the fact that I still think that 3 

training is a very important thing and that’s where 4 

I’m coming from.  Marshall? 5 

MARSHALL EMERSON:  Marshall Emerson for 6 

the record.  Supporting what Sheriff Pierini brought 7 

up here just awhile back about the additional 8 

training hours that would ensure the professional -- 9 

professionalism of peace officers across the state.  10 

Maybe a consideration may be to expand the list of 11 

critical proficiencies and knowledge for this 12 

proposal, meaning that you don’t necessarily have to 13 

attach hours to the proposal, but rather expand the 14 

list of required courses or proficiencies, I guess, 15 

for a lack of a better word, that an officer has to 16 

demonstrate.   17 

So, for example, passed firearms and 18 

driving and things such as that, which we all are 19 

aware of, it might be appropriate to add an area of 20 

legal or legislative updates.  You know, search, you 21 

know, rest, search and seizure, etc., etc., so that 22 

you know -- we know as a -- as a Commission, that 23 

every agency in the State at least is required to, 24 

in some way, provide that level of proficiency or 25 



 

39 

validation for their officers that they’re receiving 1 

that and then leave the number of hours away from 2 

that.   3 

And, again, short of mandating that people 4 

sit in a classroom and receive “X” number of hours, 5 

I again believe that it -- that that responsibility 6 

falls on those agencies, but I think that if you 7 

make it reasonable enough for the organizations, 8 

regardless of how large they are, it seems to me 9 

that, for example, most agencies on the legal 10 

updates have access to either their district 11 

attorney’s office or some other legal counsel for 12 

their agency.  And that person or somebody that’s 13 

authorized by them to provide that -- that level of 14 

training and then validate the proficiency or the 15 

knowledge of their officers, whether it be given the 16 

form of a -- of a quiz, a test or whatever.   17 

And, again, when it comes to, again, 18 

liability issues where lawsuits and complaints and 19 

things like that come forward, you know, that onus 20 

rests on the shoulders of the agency.  So, 21 

basically, what you’re doing is you’re self-policing 22 

yourself, but you’re setting the standards by which 23 

you’re policing yourself. 24 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you.  Dan, do you 25 



 

40 

have any more?  1 

DAN WATTS:  I agree.  Dan Watts for the 2 

record.  I agree with him.  I think we need to put 3 

something in there to continue that people 4 

understand that -- of what we’re doing.  I think, 5 

you know, and as I talk about proficiency, I look at 6 

firearms and what’s proficient?  If he fires one 7 

shot, hits a target, is that proficient for that 8 

agency?  I think we need to have something down that 9 

-- to back it up a little more.  I think if you just 10 

leave it to proficient, it’s going to be interpreted 11 

by whoever is teaching them at that time.   12 

RONALD PIERINI:  Okay.  Karen, would you 13 

like to add anything more?  14 

KAREN COYNE:  No, sir. 15 

RONALD PIERINI:  Okay.  Anybody else?  Mr. 16 

Tanner, do you want to add something? 17 

TROY TANNER:  Sure.  I thought about this 18 

while I was over at training for awhile.  Oh, Troy 19 

Tanner.  And, anyway, the P.O.S.T. requirements, you 20 

know, proficiency’s what we’re looking for.  I don’t 21 

know how many times trainers have told me that the 22 

range -- that we’re not really doing training, you 23 

need to allow this other time for training, we’re 24 

doing, you know, a qualification, which just makes 25 



 

41 

them proficient, using their guns.   1 

But I think it’s the agency’s 2 

responsibility to develop their people and, of 3 

course, we require, you know, like Mike just talked 4 

about, to move up almost anywhere, to any special 5 

assignment, any advancement or organization, they 6 

have to have a certain amount of training in 7 

different areas, you know.  And I think it’s the 8 

agency’s responsibility to develop their people and 9 

I think every agency will definitely see it a little 10 

different like what Mike showed on his PowerPoint, 11 

everyone has different concerns of training and they 12 

put a little bit more time to this area and some put 13 

it to a different area.  And I think as long as we 14 

have a requirement they’re proficient in all those 15 

areas of concern, it’s still going to be up to the 16 

agency to, you know, find areas to highlight and 17 

things that are important to them.  Everyone’s got 18 

different opinions.  There’s a lot of different 19 

personalities out there.  So that’s all I have to 20 

add. 21 

RONALD PIERINI:  Okay.  Thank you.  Okay.  22 

I’m going to reach out one more time out to the 23 

public.  Is there anybody would like to make any 24 

comments or suggestions?  Okay.  Seeing none.  All 25 



 

42 

right.  We’ll go onto Number B, which is the NAC 1 

289, which establishes the minimum requirements for 2 

a Management Certificate to include the removal of 3 

the wording “in addition to the units required for 4 

the intermediate and advanced certificates.”  Scott, 5 

is that up to you?  6 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  7 

Scott Johnston for the record.  This went before the 8 

Commission in a workshop for discussion at the last 9 

meeting.  And this is -- we need to realign some of 10 

the wording in the Management Certificate 11 

requirements, so they don’t conflict with 12 

intermediate and advanced.  Currently, the wording 13 

in question here says “in addition to the units 14 

required for the intermediate and advanced 15 

certificate.”  That’s the way the current standard 16 

is.  You do so many hours of training for the 17 

intermediate, then so many more above and beyond 18 

that for the advanced and so many more above and 19 

beyond for the management.   20 

However, with the new standard that is -- 21 

has been discussed and approved to move forward with 22 

language on the intermediate, advanced and all the 23 

professionals, it’s a total number of hours, which 24 

is inclusive of all of the levels of certificate.  25 



 

43 

So the total of number of hours increased, but it’s 1 

-- when you look at the intermediate certificate, 2 

it’s on a sliding scale based on education and 3 

experience, same with the advanced.  And if we leave 4 

the language in addition to the units required for 5 

the intermediate and advanced, it’s going to create 6 

a conflict because you could potentially not need 7 

hardly any training for the intermediate and 8 

advanced in exchange for a lot of years of 9 

experience and really higher education into the 10 

four-year, five, six-year degrees.  So it creates a 11 

conflict with the other two certificates.  So by 12 

moving forward for language to remove that, we’d 13 

clean that up and make it fall in line and be 14 

consistent. 15 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you, Scott.  Any 16 

questions from the Commissioners?  Seeing none, 17 

anybody in the public like to talk about this topic?  18 

Okay.  Thank you, Scott.  All right.  Any -- the 19 

next one is dealing with public comments again.  20 

This is our legislature mandating certain things, so 21 

we’re just doing what we are told.  So I’m going to 22 

ask you and anybody in the public have any other 23 

comments on a subject that we haven’t discussed 24 

today?  Seeing none, we’re going into adjournment.  25 



 

44 

And just for the record, before that is tomorrow.  1 

We will continue our regular P.O.S.T. Commission 2 

meeting in this very building at 1:30 tomorrow and 3 

to go over a different agenda and also include these 4 

two.  So I’m looking for a motion for adjournment.  5 

KAREN COYNE:  Karen Coyne.  I’ll make a 6 

motion to adjourn. 7 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you, Karen.  Do I 8 

have a second?  9 

DAN WATTS:  Dan Watts, second. 10 

RONALD PIERINI:  Dan Watts, second.  All 11 

in favor? 12 

COMMISSIONERS:  Aye. 13 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you. 14 

 15 

 16 

(MEETING ADJOURNED AT 10:26 A.M.)   17 

 18 

 19 

 20 

 21 

 22 

 23 

 24 

 25 



 

45 

 
  DENISE SHOEMAKER 
  COURT REPORTING SERVICES 

 1 

 2 

     C-E-R-T-I-F-I-C-A-T-I-O-N 3 

 4 

I certify that the foregoing is a true and accurate 5 

transcript of the electronic audio recording from 6 

the meeting in the above-entitled matter. 7 

 8 

 9 

 10 

 11 

 12 

 13 

      _8/7/13                     14 

 15 

 16 

 17 

 18 

 19 

 20 

 21 

 22 

 23 

 24 

 25 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PEACE OFFICERS’ STANDARDS AND TRAINING 

REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETING 

July 25, 2013 

1:31 p.m. 

 

Peace Officers' Standards And Training 
Prospector Hotel And Casino 

1501 East Aultman 
Ghost Train Room 

Ely, Nevada 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

2 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Ronald Pierini, Sheriff – Chairman, 
  Douglas County Sheriff's Office 
 
  Greg Cox, Director 
  Department of Corrections 
 
  Karen Coyne, Chief Officer 
  Public Safety, City of Las Vegas 
 
  Anthony DeMeo, Sheriff 
  Nye County Sheriff's Office 
 
  Marshall Emerson, Assistant Sheriff 
  Washoe County Sheriff’s Office 
 
  Troy Tanner, Chief of Police  
  City of Mesquite Police Department 
 
  Dan Watts, Sheriff 
  White Pine County Sheriff's Office 
 
     
 
STAFF PRESENT: Richard P. Clark, Executive Director, 
  Commission on Peace Officers’  
  Standards and Training 
 

Michael Jensen, Senior Deputy 
Attorney General 
Department of Motor Vehicles and 
Department of Public Safety 

 
  Scott Johnston, Bureau Chief, 
  Commission on Peace Officers’  
  Standards and Training 
 
  Michael Sherlock, Audits and  
  Compliance 
  Peace Officers' Standards and  
  Training 
 
  Elaine Moore-Cerda 
  Commission on Peace Officers’ 
  Standards and Training 
   
 
   
 



 

3 

RONALD PIERINI:  Okay, we’ll get started 1 

if we could.  Today is Thursday, July 25th, and 2 

we’re having a P.O.S.T. meeting here at the 3 

Prospector Hotel and Casino in Ely, Nevada.  Got a 4 

couple of things to go over as an introduction is to 5 

make sure that -- remind the public if anybody has 6 

the intention or wishes to make comments, we’d ask 7 

you to sign off to my left over here and be sure to 8 

put your name and the agency that you work for.  We 9 

remind the public that -- that if you come up to 10 

that table that you state your name and the agency 11 

again, who you are representing, if that applies.  12 

For the courtesy of others, we ask that all cell 13 

phones be turned off or at least on vibrate.  Remind 14 

the Commissioners that -- to say their name before 15 

that you start your speaking presentation.  Remind 16 

the Commissioners that the microphones are very 17 

sensitive, so whatever you say in there could be 18 

recorded.  And then, finally, this to Commissioners, 19 

if you’re going to make a motion, please clarify the 20 

motion and who made that motion.   21 

So we’re going to start with call to the 22 

order and, Mr. Watts, if you could start off.  23 

DAN WATTS:  Dan Watts, Sheriff, White Pine 24 

County.  25 



 

4 

GREG COX:  Greg Cox, Director of 1 

Department of Corrections. 2 

MARSHALL EMERSON:  Marshall Emerson, 3 

Assistant Sheriff, Washoe County.  4 

ANTHONY DEMEO:  Tony DeMeo, Nye County 5 

Sheriff. 6 

RONALD PIERINI:  Ron Pierini, Douglas 7 

County.  8 

KAREN COYNE:  Karen Coyne, City of Las 9 

Vegas. 10 

TROY TANNER:  Troy Tanner, City of 11 

Mesquite.  12 

RICHARD CLARK:  Dick Clark, P.O.S.T.  13 

MICHAEL JENSEN:  Mike Jensen, Office of 14 

the Attorney General.  15 

MICHAEL SHERLOCK:  Mike Sherlock, P.O.S.T.  16 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Scott Johnston, P.O.S.T. 17 

ELAINE MOORE-CERDA:  Elaine Moore-Cerda, 18 

P.O.S.T. 19 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you.  And we just 20 

want to make note that Gary Schofield from Metro 21 

Police Department is not present.  We’ll start off 22 

with an Information Item, the Governor’s appointment 23 

for new P.O.S.T. Commissioners.  We have two of 24 

them.  Marshall Emerson from Washoe County Sheriff’s 25 



 

5 

Office and Chief Troy Tanner from Mesquite Police 1 

Department.  We welcome the both of you.  Great to 2 

have you on board.   3 

The other thing on information is that -- 4 

a good thing for us is the Governor reappointed some 5 

P.O.S.T. Commissioners.  Dan Watts from Washoe -- or 6 

excuse me, from White Pine County Sheriff’s Office, 7 

Director Greg Cox, Nevada Department of Corrections 8 

and Karen Coyne, City of Las Vegas, Department of 9 

Public Safety.  So we have the three that’s been 10 

with us for a while and appreciate that you wanted 11 

to sign up again. 12 

Discussion and public comment and for 13 

possible action.  Approval of the minutes from the 14 

May 2, 2013, P.O.S.T. Commission meeting.  All of 15 

the Commissioners have had the time to review that.  16 

Looking for a motion or if there’s any corrections 17 

to be made, we need to know now.   18 

KAREN COYNE:  Karen Coyne.  I’ll make a 19 

motion for approval. 20 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you, Karen.  Do I 21 

have a second?  22 

DAN WATTS:  Dan Watts, second. 23 

RONALD PIERINI:  Dan Watts, second.  Any 24 

other discussion?  All in favor? 25 



 

6 

COMMISSIONERS:  Aye. 1 

RONALD PIERINI:  Anybody opposed?  So 2 

carried.  Mr. Clark.  3 

RICHARD CLARK:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  4 

Dick Clark for the record.  For the Executive 5 

Director report, make it fairly brief here.  We have 6 

an academy starting on Monday.  There’s 32 people 7 

actually lined up.  As I mentioned before, we’re 8 

only funded for 24, so we always need to cannibalize 9 

other parts of our agency to make it through.  So 10 

we’ll hopefully make it through this one and then if 11 

there’s still a fiscal problem, we may have to be 12 

going to the Governor’s Office Budget Director to 13 

try and find out how we can get some funds to 14 

continue to run academies bigger than what we’re 15 

funded for. 16 

The -- on Item B, it’s just a -- the best 17 

thing to do is just look at the graph there.  It 18 

kind of shows the flow of the income.  The first 19 

line is our authority, the second is our income and 20 

the -- and then the third line, the white one, is 21 

what we’ve spent.  And it just gives a very clear 22 

indication that even though we have authorization 23 

throughout the year, we don’t get the -- the court 24 

assessments are not coming in like they’re supposed 25 



 

7 

to, so we don’t actually get funded, even though 1 

we’re authorized.  Therefore, we don’t spend the 2 

money, we don’t buy equipment, we do without and it 3 

pushes us farther and farther into the hole over the 4 

last couple of years.  So we’re going to -- 5 

actually, the Chairman and I are going to meet with 6 

the Budget Director the first week in September to 7 

see if we can get some sort of relief through the 8 

budget office.  So we’ll report back on where we are 9 

with that. 10 

On the next item is -- under C, it’s just 11 

the quarterly report.  And, of course, you can 12 

always peruse that and look at it more closely, but 13 

I have provided this time around our annual report.  14 

I try and get that done at the end of the last 15 

quarter and we didn’t get them back from the 16 

printer, but I did the best that I could to just 17 

kill a few trees and get at least a Xerox copy for 18 

each of the Commissioners to review.   19 

And then I’ll show you the year in review 20 

for 2014, so you can look at that at your leisure.  21 

You can see if -- when you do look at the -- at the 22 

quarterly report, you’ll see that we continued to 23 

expand our use of technology and spreading the 24 

ability throughout the State for E-learning and web-25 



 

8 

based computer-based trainings. 1 

After that, under D, is the certifications 2 

that have been issued.  Since the last meeting, 258 3 

Basics have been issued, 220 Intermediate, 194 4 

Advanced, 35 Supervisory, 4 Management and no 5 

Executives.  And we’ve certified 36 courses.   6 

And I think that -- actually, that is my 7 

report, Mr. Chairman. 8 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you, Mr. Clark.  9 

Does the Commissioners have any questions for Mr. 10 

Clark?  Okay.  Seeing none, we’ll go onto Number 6 11 

and that’s our legal advisor, Mike Jensen.  12 

MICHAEL JENSEN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  13 

I understand you had some legislative updates 14 

yesterday and probably some fun and exciting law.  15 

I’m not going to be talking to you about anything 16 

fun and exciting for the next little bit.  We’re 17 

talking Open Meeting Law changes, but they are 18 

important for you to understand, so I thought I 19 

better give you a quick overview of some of those 20 

changes. 21 

Behind tab number six, there’s a 22 

memorandum that’s put out by George Taylor from our 23 

office.  It’s a pretty good outline of the -- of the 24 

changes that have been made to the Open Meeting Law.  25 



 

9 

They’re basically found in three bills:  the 1 

Assembly Bill 65, Assembly Bill 445 and Senate Bill 2 

74.   3 

The first one I’m going to be talking to 4 

you about, just to hit the highlights because I know 5 

you guys have that in front of you and you can, at 6 

your leisure, read through that.  And if you really 7 

want some exciting reading, you actually go read the 8 

bills, but the -- the first few sections of the -- 9 

of SB 65 I think are important for me to highlight. 10 

In Section 3 of AB 65, which is effective 11 

July 1st or was effective July 1st of this year, it 12 

provides that a member of a public body essentially 13 

can’t have a proxy vote on the Commission.  That’s a 14 

position that I’ve taken and the Commission has 15 

taken for a long time that a member can’t have 16 

someone sit by designation at a Commission meeting, 17 

but that’s now formalized in the statute.   18 

The next section is Section 4 and it 19 

provides for what I -- I call, and it is a cure 20 

process which essentially is that if there’s an Open 21 

Meeting Law violation that takes place at one of 22 

your meetings, that there’s an opportunity for the 23 

Commission to cure that violation by within 30 days 24 

re-noticing a meeting and putting on that meeting 25 



 

10 

that you’re going to take a corrective action.  If 1 

the Commission had an issue with that and they -- 2 

and they followed that procedure, the Attorney 3 

General has the discretion now under statute not to 4 

proceed to take any action if the Commission does 5 

that.  So it provides an opportunity for the 6 

Commission.  Fortunately, knock on wood, we haven’t 7 

had an issue with the Open Meeting Law violations, 8 

but if that were to occur, there’s a procedure in 9 

place to fix that.   10 

Section 5 formalizes and clarifies that 11 

Commission members in appropriate circumstances, it 12 

really doesn’t say what type of circumstances, but 13 

it allows for appearance by video conference or 14 

teleconference as long as the members of the public 15 

and the members of the Commission are able to be 16 

involved in the discussion and participate in the 17 

discussion that’s taking place at the meeting.  I 18 

know over the years we’ve had a few meetings with 19 

teleconference and this just formalizes the fact 20 

that that can take place.   21 

Section 6 provides that -- well, to start 22 

off with, you may know that a -- a meeting that 23 

requires a notice and agenda is defined in the Open 24 

Meeting Law as a gathering of members of a public 25 



 

11 

body at which a quorum is present, and they’ve added 1 

whether in person or by electronic communication, to 2 

deliberate toward a decision or to take action on 3 

any matter over which the public body has 4 

supervision, controlled jurisdiction or advisory 5 

power.  In the past, there wasn’t a definition of 6 

what it meant to deliberate and the legislature 7 

added a definition for deliberate and you’ll see 8 

that in the material.  It basically says that 9 

deliberate means to collectively examine, weigh, 10 

reflect upon the reasons for or against an action 11 

that the Commission might take.  It includes a 12 

collective discussion or exchange of facts 13 

preliminary to an ultimate decision.   14 

So that would include any time there were 15 

a quorum of members of this Commission and you were 16 

talking about an action that might be taken by the 17 

Commission, that would be considered deliberating if 18 

you’re talking about reasons for and against.  That 19 

would include, and I try to warn against this, 20 

situations where you might send out an email to 21 

everybody and, you know, have a reply all when you 22 

respond to it.  That’s kind of a mine field that you 23 

can find yourself in if you start doing email kinds 24 

of discussions with the Commission.  But there’s a 25 



 

12 

good definition of what it means to deliberate now 1 

to help clarify what a meeting is when you need to 2 

have a meeting agendaized. 3 

Section 7 provides for the notice to 4 

include contact information for where people can get 5 

a copy of the supporting materials.  Supporting 6 

materials are all the -- are the documents that you 7 

guys have in your packets in front of you that 8 

you’re looking at for each of the action -- or items 9 

that you’re looking at during the meeting.  It 10 

requires that we put on the actual notice or the 11 

agenda who is the person that the public can contact 12 

to get a copy of those supporting materials.  And 13 

you’ll see on our agenda today, we complied with 14 

that requirement and we have a person, a contact 15 

person, that’s Scott Johnston, who is the contact 16 

person for the Commission with contact information 17 

for him.  That’s all with regard to AB 65. 18 

AB 445 provides that beginning on January 19 

the 1st of next year, that the public body is 20 

required to post their agendas, their public 21 

notices, on a state official website.  That website 22 

is going to be established and maintained by the 23 

State’s Department of Administration and that should 24 

be easy enough to comply with. 25 



 

13 

Finally, SB 74 provides that the 1 

Commission and other public bodies are required to 2 

provide a copy of their minutes or audio recordings 3 

to the public at no charge.  And so that’s something 4 

that I guess could have a fiscal impact.  We haven’t 5 

had a real run on people asking for copies of our -- 6 

our minutes or audio recordings, but this bill 7 

requires that you -- you cannot have a charge for 8 

those minutes or recordings. 9 

And that’s the end of my report, Mr. 10 

Chairman. 11 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you, Mr. Jensen.  12 

Do the Commissioners have any questions?  In 13 

reviewing that, I did not ask Scott Johnston to give 14 

us a list of the postings where they were -- the 15 

notifications were about this meeting in different 16 

places across the State.  17 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  I can do that now, if 18 

you’d like. 19 

RONALD PIERINI:  If you would, please.  20 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Scott Johnston for the 21 

record.  This meeting and agenda was posted at the 22 

P.O.S.T. administrative office in Carson City, 23 

Nevada State Capitol in Carson City, Blasdel 24 

Building, Carson City, Nevada State Library and 25 



 

14 

Archives, Carson City, Grant Sawyer Building, Las 1 

Vegas, White Pine County Sheriff's Office, Ely, 2 

Carson City Sheriff’s Office, P.O.S.T. website at 3 

www.post.nv.gov and in conformance with the new -- 4 

new requirements with the legislative site that’s 5 

been established at www.leg.state.nv.us. 6 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you, sir.  Going to 7 

ask the Commissioners if anyone has any questions 8 

for Mr. Jensen.  Okay.  Thank you very much.   9 

Number 7.  Discussion, public comment and 10 

for possible action.  The Commission will discuss 11 

and possibly take action to start the rulemaking 12 

process to amend NAC 289.230, which establishes the 13 

requirements for mandatory annual continuing 14 

education, to include proposed changes to the annual 15 

24-hour continuing education training requirement.  16 

And we got Mike Sherlock going to present that, if 17 

you would, please.  18 

MICHAEL SHERLOCK:  Yes.  Mike Sherlock for 19 

the record.  I’ll just let this warm up here and 20 

hopefully you won’t get blinded.   21 

RONALD PIERINI:  Going to have to move and 22 

watch it on that side. 23 

UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER:  Mr. Chairman.  24 

Excuse me.  Can I have a copy of the -- the booklet 25 



 

15 

again?  I don’t have one with me. 1 

RONALD PIERINI:  Do we have another book? 2 

UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER:  I’ve got one. 3 

UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER:  Yeah, I’m 4 

sharing.  I’m getting where I don’t see as well. 5 

UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER:  I know that 6 

feeling.  7 

RONALD PIERINI:  Sir. 8 

MICHAEL SHERLOCK:  Okay.  Now we had two 9 

workshops previously on this subject, 289.230.  We 10 

put this together hopefully to clear up any 11 

confusion on what 289.230 of the NAC requires.  One 12 

thing we’d like to make sure that the Commission 13 

understands is 289.230’s intent is to address the 14 

requirements to maintain the Basic Certificate.  15 

That’s what 289.230 addresses.  We have a separate 16 

process for professional development classes and a 17 

process for that with the intermediate and advanced 18 

certificates.   19 

Currently, under 289.230, if you look at 20 

that current regulation, some of the confusion that 21 

we see around the State is, first, you notice that 22 

the regulation calls for additional training.  We 23 

don’t know additional to what, but it says 24 

additional training.  Then it speaks of continuing 25 



 

16 

education and then it goes to demonstrating a 1 

minimum level of proficiency, really different 2 

things.  And so we looked at some of the problems 3 

that we’re seeing in compliance with the regulation.  4 

Again, the section states really three things, but 5 

both continuing education and demonstrating 6 

proficiency, which are two different things, some 7 

agencies interpret proficiency as not being training 8 

or education and they do not count that towards the 9 

24 hours required under the regulation.  Others -- 10 

other agencies will just simply arbitrarily assign 11 

hours to critical skills, mostly to ensure that 12 

they’re meeting the 24-hour requirement.  So some 13 

agencies will say, you know, range is five hours, 14 

the defensive tactics or arrest control’s five 15 

hours, you know, those -- let’s leave those five 16 

hours just to make sure they get to the 24 hours.   17 

In either case, agencies are reporting, I 18 

say conducting, they are reporting training simply 19 

to meet the regulation rather than to the benefit of 20 

the organization and it -- and it’s a problem.   21 

Some other problems with the current 22 

regulation, any training hours used to comply with 23 

230 cannot be used towards professional development 24 

hours.  So we identified last year about 11,000 25 



 

17 

hours in training that was specifically and only 1 

used for compliance and that’s not including 2 

critical skills.  So it was only used for compliance 3 

and could not be used for professional development 4 

reasons.  So it wouldn’t -- it doesn’t apply towards 5 

their intermediate and advanced.   6 

And because the section is about 7 

maintaining a Basic Certificate, these extra hours 8 

just don’t make sense to the agencies.  It forces 9 

agencies to either use, you know, limited value-type 10 

training, whatever it may be, because it’s -- it is 11 

at the discretion of the agency or to use important 12 

professional development hours to meet the Basic 13 

Certificate requirements.  So they’re sending people 14 

to training that’s really quality training, but 15 

because they haven’t met the 24 hours, they have to 16 

use it towards the 24 hours and it can’t be used 17 

towards the intermediate and advanced.   18 

The other issue that -- other issues we 19 

see, many agencies don’t practice all critical 20 

skills.  So they may not carry guns or specific -- 21 

less lethal.  They’re at a disadvantage, as compared 22 

to agencies that carry everything, because they are 23 

scrambling to meet that 24 hours requirement.  They 24 

can’t use range time because they don’t have 25 



 

18 

firearms.  So it’s a bit of a struggle for those 1 

agencies and those agencies are the ones that we see 2 

more often using normally what would be professional 3 

development type training.  They’re having to use 4 

that for the 24 hours because of that 24-hour 5 

requirement.   6 

Again, the demonstrating proficiency is in 7 

conflict with the hourly requirement.  Proficiency 8 

is more about testing and the agencies are reporting 9 

hours to us, P.O.S.T., simply because the current 10 

regulation requires hours.  So the question often 11 

becomes why did it take the officer five hours to 12 

demonstrate proficiency, that’s a testing, while 13 

some other agencies are reporting one hour and 14 

there’s a -- there’s a inconsistency there.   15 

I have this up here just to give you an 16 

idea of the different reporting that we receive at 17 

P.O.S.T.  Just an example, you see DPS.  They’ll 18 

report either two or three hours for firearms 19 

proficiency, three for less lethal, seven for DTs 20 

and an hour for use of -- use of forced policy 21 

review and you can see the difference there.  Metro 22 

will do four, six, eight and two and it goes to the 23 

entire gamut.  Every agency reports different hours 24 

for proficiency.  And, again, it’s proficiency which 25 



 

19 

causes some -- some problems.   1 

And, again, they’re doing this, agencies 2 

are reporting this simply -- they’re looking at the 3 

proficiency requirement simply as it applies to the 4 

24 hours and what it takes to meet the 24-hour 5 

requirement.  So they’re either recording the 6 

proficiency that includes the training or 7 

maintenance that gets them to proficiency just 8 

simply to make that 24 hours.   9 

We took a quick look around the -- the 10 

surrounding states on what they require for Basic 11 

Certificates.  Arizona requires eight hours of 12 

professional development per year and eight hours of 13 

critical skills every three years and they don’t 14 

care which critical skill.  You have to do at least 15 

one every three years for eight hours.   16 

California requires 24 hours every two 17 

years and they specify what the hours must be.  18 

Twelve must be -- it must include, you see there, 19 

tactical firearms, arrest control and driving at 20 

four hours each.  They also must have two hours of 21 

communication and they break it down if their 22 

command level staff, they reduced hour requirements 23 

based on what their assignment is.  The remaining 10 24 

hours in that 24 hours is used to cover legislative 25 



 

20 

and P.O.S.T. mandated hours, so that’s why you see 1 

the 24 there.   2 

Idaho requires 40 hours every two years 3 

and they have no critical or perishable skills 4 

requirement at all.  Oregon, you have to have 28 5 

hours per year and eight of which must be firearms.  6 

And Utah requires 40 hours of in-service training 7 

per year.  None of it counts towards professional 8 

development, but it can be pretty much anything that 9 

you want it to be.  There’s no requirement there.   10 

Washington requires 24 hours per year.  11 

They’re a little different, though, than the rest of 12 

the states in that they do not issue professional 13 

development certificates.  They don’t do 14 

intermediate and advanced.  So just to maintain your 15 

ability as a sworn officer, you have to have 24 16 

hours a year.   17 

So after looking at these -- these 18 

problems, P.O.S.T. is recommending a regulation that 19 

-- that zeros in on what is the minimum necessary to 20 

maintain a Basic Certificate.  And the 21 

recommendation is to maintain a Basic Certificate, 22 

an officer should demonstrate proficiency in each of 23 

the critical skills yearly, twice for firearms with 24 

no hours attached to that proficiency.  And -- and 25 



 

21 

one thing I’ll say on that is that the issue is 1 

reporting hours to P.O.S.T.  Internally, you will 2 

report hours that it takes for maintenance to 3 

maintain proficiency, but you’re reporting to 4 

P.O.S.T. that they are proficient and that’s what’s 5 

important to P.O.S.T.  Internally, obviously, the 6 

training hours are important to your agency.   7 

Any additional training would be at the 8 

discretion of the employing agency and then would be 9 

used towards professional development, intermediate, 10 

advanced, that kind of thing, not for maintaining 11 

the Basic Certificate.  It would remove some of the 12 

confusion that we see out there between the -- those 13 

three designations and focus on those critical 14 

skills, allows training to an agency standard rather 15 

than to meet the regulation and, again, it is more 16 

accurate reporting because you’re reporting 17 

proficiency.   18 

And if you looked at those other states, 19 

surrounding states, it would put us above the 20 

requirements of the surrounding states.  If you 21 

notice that none of them require critical skills 22 

proficiency every year.  Not one.  The ones that 23 

mention it are either two years, which would be 24 

California, and the other ones don’t designate.  25 



 

22 

Either it’s firearms every three years or one every 1 

three years.  We would require it every single year. 2 

I think we handed out, and there’s some on 3 

the table over here, because you can’t read that, 4 

just the sample wording what the recommendation 5 

would be.  As far as the NAC, it’s basically the 6 

same as we have now.  The discretion would still be 7 

with the agency.  We just remove the 24 hours and we 8 

emphasize that each officer must demonstrate 9 

proficiency in those critical skills every year.   10 

The only other thing I’ll mention also, 11 

based on a previous workshop and Commission meeting, 12 

is changing the -- what we called extended absence.  13 

It was one year was the -- was the cutoff and we’ve 14 

moved that back to four months.  If an officer is 15 

absent for whatever reason, FMLA, medical, military, 16 

if they’re gone for four months or more, upon return 17 

and before resuming duties, they have to make up 18 

those critical skills that they missed as a result 19 

of that absence.  And we just changed that to make 20 

that a little -- a little clearer.   21 

The same exemption would apply to those 22 

who instruct, you know, your range masters and that 23 

kind of thing.  There would be no change in that 24 

area than what is in the current regulation if this 25 



 

23 

recommendation is adopted.  And that’s it, in a 1 

nutshell. 2 

RONALD PIERINI:  Okay.  I’d like to maybe 3 

start off with the public comment first.  Is there 4 

anybody in the audience that’d like to make a 5 

comment on this possible change?  Okay.  Seeing 6 

none, how about the Commissioners?  Is there any 7 

Commissioners that would like to -- to make comments 8 

on what we just saw? 9 

DAN WATTS:  I only have one comment.  Dan 10 

Watts for the record.  Sheriff Antinoro approached 11 

me.  He couldn’t be here, but he would like for us 12 

to refer back to his comments from the previous 13 

meeting in Carson City that he would -- he would 14 

like to see it stay the way it is.   15 

RONALD PIERINI:  Okay.  Thank you, Dan.  16 

Any of the other Commissioners want to make 17 

comments?  Okay.  So what we’re doing right now is 18 

we’re going to take action or possibly not, in 19 

looking at this process, rulemaking process, to see 20 

if we want to go forward with that change and what 21 

we have today.   22 

So, you know, there again, not to belabor 23 

this, we had talked about it yesterday at the 24 

workshop as you have several options on this, one of 25 



 

24 

which is not to change what we presently have.  The 1 

other one is -- is to not have any hours recorded 2 

and the third is to split it in half and have the 3 

critical training have to be done, completed, on 4 

their own without an hour type of accounting and 5 

then, plus that, have some kind of training outside 6 

the certificate program.  I guess what I’m looking 7 

at is maybe a motion or maybe more discussion.  I 8 

don’t know.   9 

Okay.  Then I’ll talk a little bit more 10 

then.  One of which is what I think what I’d like to 11 

see is what I mentioned before was the fact that, 12 

I’m not -- I’m not here compromising, I just feel 13 

more comfortable the fact that they have some 14 

training that is provided outside the certificate 15 

program that the agency feels it needs to be 16 

necessary for those officers to have that 17 

information.  That could include that of legislative 18 

updates.  It could do anything that’s dealing with 19 

inside the organization that we have not done well 20 

with and we need to correct that.  It could be a 21 

host of different things.  It does not have to be 22 

certified by P.O.S.T.  It’s just training inside the 23 

house.  Or if they send them to locations for 24 

whatever kind of training, that could be -- could 25 



 

25 

account for the 12 hours.   1 

I have personally have mentioned that.  I 2 

-- I know that some don’t want to go this way, but I 3 

felt that it was good to have some kind of a 4 

accountability on -- on training.  I’d hate to see 5 

some agencies that say, well, we’re going through 6 

the critical process and get that done, but not 7 

worry about any other training.  I think that we 8 

still have that labeled that there has to be some 9 

training by each one of the agencies and it should 10 

be 12 hours.  There’s nothing over a period of 12 11 

months, so you’re talking one hour a month.  And 12 

you’re talking about even in briefing, you could do 13 

an hour once a month in each one of the briefings 14 

before changeover.  Just things that we want to make 15 

our agency as professional as we possibly can be. 16 

So that’s my thoughts and I mentioned that 17 

yesterday and I’m just in favor of that.  But I’m 18 

looking for any other inputs or any kind of 19 

suggestions that some of the Commissioners may have.  20 

ANTHONY DEMEO:  Well, I have to -- I have 21 

to agree that -- I have to agree with you that -- 22 

Mr. Chair.  Tony DeMeo for the record.  I have to 23 

agree.  You know, deputies are also being cheated in 24 

the process.  I mean, as far as everybody’s trying 25 



 

26 

to make the 24 hours, make that fit, and once that’s 1 

accomplished, then -- then there isn’t anything else 2 

outside of any kind of training and especially 3 

legislative or any kind of -- or anything else.   4 

So I think that I appreciate the work that 5 

you put into this, Mike.  I think that we should be 6 

looking at some way of changing that and make it 7 

more rounded to the individual agencies to just -- 8 

once they get the proficiency levels addressed and 9 

firearms proficiencies addressed is get involved in 10 

more -- more different kind of training in a 11 

different area.   12 

My other question is how to put that in -- 13 

I was going to make a motion.  I just was here 14 

trying to figure out how to make that into a motion, 15 

you know.  So I think that we should move -- in my 16 

opinion, I -- I think we should move forward in that 17 

-- that direction.  It’s not out of the norm.  Other 18 

agencies are doing it.  I think that it would 19 

challenge the agencies to get -- to expand some of 20 

the training for their -- for their officers into 21 

more current stuff and once they get the criticals 22 

out of the way. 23 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you, Tony.  24 

ANTHONY DEMEO:  My pleasure.  Thank you. 25 



 

27 

TROY TANNER:  Troy Tanner.  I had a 1 

comment.  I sort of stole this from Karen.  We were 2 

discussing it.  I like the idea of not having hours 3 

required, but make sure proficient on those areas 4 

and maybe adding a list, a list the Board comes up 5 

with, with additional things of importance of 6 

several and you have to pick two off there, off that 7 

list, to maybe add for additional training like you 8 

guys are talking about. 9 

RONALD PIERINI:  Okay.  Thank you, Troy.  10 

I think a big comment on that is that the downside 11 

of doing that is that our P.O.S.T. staff then would 12 

have to circle around a lot of different agencies 13 

and to have input from different agencies to be able 14 

to say which ones do we really need to outline to 15 

have done.  And when you only have less than 15 16 

people that work for P.O.S.T., that’s going to be 17 

very difficult at best to do that.  Yes, Dick.  18 

RICHARD CLARK:  Yeah.  Mr. Chairman, Dick 19 

Clark for the record.  I agree the -- to -- to try 20 

and maintain the flexibility for the agencies, if we 21 

went to a specific list, there’s always that 22 

possibility that we’re going to be leaving off the 23 

ability for a particular agency to use certain 24 

trainings.  If we just said if you wanted to do it 25 



 

28 

that way and just say additional training and not do 1 

a list, you’re not -- you’re not limiting a -- 2 

whatever we happen to come up with, a menu.  It 3 

would broaden that to whatever the agency felt was 4 

important at that particular time. 5 

RONALD PIERINI:  And I think that’s 6 

exactly what we’re doing here.  I’m hoping that we  7 

-- we send a real clear message.  One of which is 8 

that we’re not going to -- to go the hour thing 9 

dealing with the critical situations.  What we’re 10 

going to do is we’re going to allow those agencies 11 

to say that if an employee can go through those 12 

steps to do those exercises and whatnot, that we 13 

don’t have to have four hours on it, it can be 30 -- 14 

30 minutes.  And we’re saving the agencies a lot of 15 

time of overtime and -- and holding those officers 16 

accountable in a room that they’re done and are 17 

completed, but they’re just looking at the rest of 18 

the officers going through it.   19 

Secondly, is I’d like the fact that the 20 

topics are under the management of each one of these 21 

law enforcement agencies to say these are the issues 22 

that we have and we want to address them without 23 

interference with P.O.S.T. saying this is the list 24 

that we have to have.  I’d like to have the 25 



 

29 

discretion of those officers, rather those agencies, 1 

being able to determine where their weaknesses are 2 

and how we’re going to correct those through 3 

training.  That’s -- that’s my philosophy on that. 4 

MARSHALL EMERSON:  Mr. Chair? 5 

RONALD PIERINI:  Yes.  6 

MARSHALL EMERSON:  Marshall Emerson for 7 

the record.  I -- I think I prepared some language 8 

that might fit what you had suggested, if that would 9 

be okay -- 10 

RONALD PIERINI:  Absolutely.  11 

MARSHALL EMERSON:  -- if I could bring 12 

that forward and maybe some for discussion and maybe 13 

a move -- a move. 14 

RONALD PIERINI:  Okay.  Sounds good.  15 

MARSHALL EMERSON:  So what -- what I’m -- 16 

what I would recommend is, is eliminate the existing 17 

24-hour in-service requirement in exchange for 18 

proficiency training in each of those critical skill 19 

areas and require an additional 12 hours of 20 

professional development training, as mandated by 21 

the officer’s agency.  Is that -- is that what you 22 

had in mind? 23 

RONALD PIERINI:  It is.   24 

MARSHALL EMERSON:  Okay. 25 



 

30 

RONALD PIERINI:  But it isn’t all about 1 

me, guys, so I’m trying to say if that is -- we’ve 2 

had discussion of what Marshall just had presented.  3 

Is this okay?  Then go into -- to actually take 4 

action or is there things that we’d want to have 5 

changed?  6 

KAREN COYNE:  Sir, Karen Coyne.  I have a 7 

question for you, Mike.  What -- I notice in your 8 

overview of the surrounding states you mentioned 9 

that a few do have requirements for continuing ed on 10 

an annual basis.  What is ours if we have one 11 

presently?  I don’t mean to put you on the spot,  12 

but --  13 

MICHAEL SHERLOCK:  Currently?  14 

KAREN COYNE:  Yes.  15 

MICHAEL SHERLOCK:  It’s 24 hours with the 16 

proficiency included in that 24 hours.  17 

KAREN COYNE:  Okay.  Okay.  And, Marshall, 18 

then could you -- could you just restate what you 19 

said that -- when you get to the 12 hours?  20 

MARSHALL EMERSON:  Yeah.  In the -- and 21 

require 12 hours of professional development 22 

training as mandated by officer’s agency.  23 

KAREN COYNE:  Okay.  Thank you.   24 

MICHAEL JENSEN:  Mr. Chair, Mike Jensen 25 



 

31 

for the record.  Maybe another thing might help move 1 

things along a little bit.  This action that’s being 2 

taken today is only to go to the next step in the 3 

rulemaking process.  You don’t even have to vote on 4 

language.  In fact, it might not be appropriate to 5 

vote on language yet.  I think from your discussion 6 

what staff can do is take that back and create some 7 

language that would come back in a -- in a public 8 

comment hearing, which would be the next step in the 9 

rulemaking process.  And that’s very helpful for 10 

staff, I know, to have kind of an idea where the -- 11 

the Commission wants to go.  But, at this point, you 12 

wouldn’t be voting on specific language. 13 

RONALD PIERINI:  Yes.  And I -- I think, 14 

Mr. Jensen, what I think what I was trying to do was 15 

to give -- send a message of what we really kind of 16 

want to develop that rulemaking process so that you 17 

can actually present at the next meeting and say 18 

this is the wording we came up with.  So we’d maybe 19 

be exactly what you’re saying, Mr. Jensen.  What we 20 

could do is, Marshall, that’s kind of the philosophy 21 

we want to go if that’s -- if that’s what the 22 

Commission wishes and that gives you direction how 23 

to then script out something that would maybe fit 24 

that.  So, with that said, do we have any other 25 



 

32 

Commissioners who'd like to comments?  Now, again, 1 

that doesn’t mean that next time when we -- we meet, 2 

you know, if I could say is that it doesn’t -- the 3 

more you think about it, you have other changes.  4 

That’s what this next step would be.  This is not in 5 

concrete.  It would at least give direction to staff 6 

to able to -- to form that formula to make it 7 

possibly fit that.   8 

ANTHONY DEMEO:  Mr. Chair.  I’d like to 9 

echo what you said before referencing training 10 

because my training staff is kind of hindered by 11 

this mandatory hours that they have in proficiency.  12 

Some people are so proficient, like you said, 30 13 

minutes, but we have class sitting there for about 14 

four hours then trying to fill in time when that 15 

time could be better used in more professional 16 

develop areas.   17 

So -- so we’ve been wrestling with this 18 

for -- for years already with this.  It’s been 19 

coming, you know, when we have classroom people that 20 

can show handcuffing skills very quickly and very 21 

proficiently.  So we would like to move on in other 22 

areas of professional development.  And you’re 23 

right.  Right now, budget’s getting tight and we’re 24 

trying to fit every type of the training we can into 25 



 

33 

the budget and any overtime and make -- to keep that 1 

down.  And when it comes down to expanding their 2 

knowledge, unfortunately, those -- that time is cut 3 

-- cut. 4 

RONALD PIERINI:  Okay.  Thank you, Tony.  5 

ANTHONY DEMEO:  Thank you. 6 

RONALD PIERINI:  But I think -- Marshall, 7 

if we could, is there anybody else who'd like to 8 

make comments?  9 

GREG COX:  I’d just like -- 10 

RONALD PIERINI:  I’m sorry. 11 

GREG COX:  -- to make a comment, Mr. 12 

Chairman.  Greg Cox.  Looking at the proficiency, I 13 

think that’s very valuable.  I do -- I do agree with 14 

the Commission, in fact, that some people, of 15 

course, are more proficient, say in application of 16 

restraints.  I think what people fail to recognize 17 

is those that aren’t, let’s say, if someone ran to 18 

another state, we saw that our people on, let’s say, 19 

the graveyard or midnight shift weren’t as 20 

proficient at applying restraints, of course, as 21 

first or second shift because inmates went outside 22 

their cells.  So we spend a significant amount of 23 

more time on that shift training them and, actually, 24 

because they weren’t as proficient over the time 25 



 

34 

because they’ve been on those shifts a long period 1 

of time and not taking inmates out of the cells.  So 2 

I also see where you’re going to increase your 3 

training by looking at the proficiency.   4 

The other thing that we’re dealing with in 5 

corrections across the country is communications.  6 

So it does allow the agency or specifically what 7 

issue you believe you’re having in your agency or 8 

your office and how you can better your staff and 9 

train them, let’s say on communications or some 10 

other items, so I think it makes sense. 11 

RONALD PIERINI:  Okay.  Any other comment?  12 

Marshall, could we do a overall on what we think we 13 

want to do instead of actually having -- I guess 14 

we’re still looking for a motion.  We still have to 15 

have one.   16 

KAREN COYNE:  I’ll make a motion. 17 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you.  18 

KAREN COYNE:  So -- Karen Coyne for the 19 

record.  I move to follow staff’s recommendation to 20 

proceed in the rulemaking process with respect to 21 

discussing the 24-hour requirement in continuing 22 

education requirement demonstrating proficiency for 23 

the maintenance of the Basic P.O.S.T. Certificate. 24 

TROY TANNER:  Second. 25 



 

35 

RONALD PIERINI:  Troy? 1 

TROY TANNER.  Troy Tanner for the record.  2 

I’ll second the motion. 3 

RONALD PIERINI:  Okay.  Are -- if I could 4 

-- comment then from the Commissioners.  Are you -- 5 

Mike clear on what that was?  6 

MICHAEL JENSEN:  Not fully.  7 

KAREN COYNE:  So let me restate it.  I am 8 

making a motion to move forward with staff’s 9 

recommendation --  10 

MICHAEL JENSEN:  Right.  Okay.  Okay.  11 

KAREN COYNE:  -- to proceed in the 12 

rulemaking process where the specific language will 13 

be -- to be determined in a future meeting, I guess 14 

is what I heard from you, Scott, or Mike, with 15 

respect to the maintenance requirements for the 16 

Basic Certificate. 17 

RONALD PIERINI:  Mr. Jensen, do you 18 

understand that?  19 

MICHAEL JENSEN:  I do.  Just one question.  20 

You -- you certainly in your motion if you want it 21 

could include that you’d like the language to 22 

reflect the Commission’s desire to have different 23 

components to that, if that’s where you want to go 24 

with your motion.  25 



 

36 

KAREN COYNE:  I’d prefer not to and we can 1 

-- we can -- we can bring language forward in the 2 

next meeting.   3 

RONALD PIERINI:  Okay.  Good.  Thank you.  4 

Any other questions from Commissioners?  Okay.  All 5 

in favor? 6 

COMMISSIONERS:  Aye. 7 

RONALD PIERINI:  Anybody opposed?  So 8 

carried.  Thank you.  Number 8.  Discussion, public 9 

comment and for possible action.  Commission will 10 

discuss and possibly take action to start the 11 

rulemaking process for NAC 289.260 minimum 12 

requirements for a Management Certificate to 13 

removing the wording “in addition to the units 14 

required for the intermediate and advanced 15 

certificates”.  Mike is that yours or is that you, 16 

Scott?  17 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  I’ll take that. 18 

RONALD PIERINI:  Scott.  Thank you.  19 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Scott Johnston for the 20 

record.  As we discussed in the workshop yesterday, 21 

I’ll just reiterate.  The highlights of that is 22 

currently the Management Certificate requirement has 23 

the caveat of wording of "in addition to the units 24 

required for the intermediate and the advanced 25 



 

37 

certificates."  The intermediate and advanced 1 

certificate criteria has -- has been updated.  And 2 

as most of you might recall, it deals with 3 

education, time of service, as well as training.  4 

And that may vary depending on the time -- the years 5 

of service and the amount of education a person has.   6 

And the intermediate and the advanced 7 

certificates deal with a total number of hours that 8 

the officer has in their career.  Instead of 200 for 9 

each one, 200 for the next certificate, that has 10 

gone away to a total lump sum.  Everything is 11 

inclusive.  So when you would get to one level of 12 

certificate, it includes everything that you had 13 

before, plus a little bit more to make that 14 

accomplishment.   15 

The current wording in the Management 16 

Certificate, the "in addition to the units required" 17 

is -- creates a wording conflict and by eliminating 18 

that, it realigns the management certificate in 19 

succession with the intermediate, advanced and so 20 

forth so that it’s consistent.  This is a 21 

maintenance situation dealing with the Management. 22 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you, Scott.  Any 23 

comments from the Commissioners?  Questions?  Go to 24 

the public.  Is there anybody in the audience who 25 



 

38 

would like to address this issue?  Seeing none, then 1 

I’m looking for a motion.  2 

DAN WATTS:  Dan Watts for the record.  I 3 

would like to make a motion to amend NAC 289.260 to 4 

remove the words “in addition to the units required 5 

for the intermediate and advanced certificates.”  6 

MICHAEL JENSEN:  And, Mr. Chairman, just 7 

to clarify that.  That motion -- this amendment -- 8 

amending process is just starting the rulemaking to 9 

do that. 10 

RONALD PIERINI:  The process.  Yeah.  So, 11 

Dan, what we need to say is we want to go forward 12 

with the rulemaking process and in reference to this 13 

issue.  14 

MICHAEL JENSEN:  To amend, right. 15 

RONALD PIERINI:  Yeah.  That’s really all 16 

we have to say.  Is that okay?  17 

DAN WATTS:  That’s okay. 18 

RONALD PIERINI:  Do I have a second?  19 

KAREN COYNE:  Karen Coyne, second. 20 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you, Karen.  Do I 21 

have any discussion?  All in favor? 22 

COMMISSIONERS:  Aye. 23 

RONALD PIERINI:  Anybody opposed?  So 24 

carried.  All right.  We’re going to Number 9.  I’m 25 



 

39 

going to be a little bit easier.  Mr. Jensen, if I’m 1 

incorrect on this, will you please tell me?  This is 2 

discussion, public comment and for possible action.  3 

The P.O.S.T. Commission is to review and vote on 4 

proposed changes to the Statewide Standardized 5 

Performance Objectives, including possibly 6 

establishing an effective date, if any, for the 7 

revised Performance Objectives, for Categories I, 8 

II, and III and upgrade In-Lieu of the minimum 9 

standards of training for the following course 10 

topics.  And what I was hoping to do, it would take 11 

time, is talk about the law and legal procedures, 12 

but patrol operations investigations, performance 13 

skills and functions of a peace officer and give 14 

that to Scott to go through each one of those.  That 15 

would be great.   16 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  17 

This is a complete revamping of the performance 18 

objectives for Category I, II and the II to I 19 

upgrade and the In-Lieu training programs.  And some 20 

of these, the Commission has approved changes 21 

earlier and last year and this is what staff has 22 

done, again not developing these in a bubble, but 23 

working with the academies and subject matter 24 

experts is we have done another final last-minute 25 



 

40 

adjustment to it and the finished product is what we 1 

have now.   2 

And our goal here is to get all of the 3 

objectives approved on a given date so we have a 4 

baseline for future management of the objectives, 5 

which also will later on tie into our State 6 

certification examination questions.   7 

So the first section, Law and Legal, the 8 

topic areas are Civil Liability, Constitutional Law, 9 

Crimes Against Persons, Crimes Against Property, 10 

Juvenile Law, Laws Governing Coroners, Laws of 11 

Arrest, Laws Relating to Drugs and Current Drug 12 

Trends, Miscellaneous Crimes, Probable Cause, Rights 13 

of Victims, Search and Seizure, Traffic Laws and Use 14 

of Force. So did you want to take action -- 15 

RONALD PIERINI:  Any questions on that?  16 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  -- on that now or read 17 

them all in for the record? 18 

RONALD PIERINI:  I think we could do it 19 

collectively, so go ahead.  20 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Okay.  Patrol Operations 21 

and Investigations:  Abuse of Elderly, Accident 22 

Investigations, Basic Patrol Procedures, Child Abuse 23 

and Sexual Abuse of a Child, Domestic Violence and 24 

Stalking, Investigation of Crime Scenes Collection 25 



 

41 

and Preservation of Evidence and Fingerprinting, 1 

Principles of Investigation, Techniques of 2 

Interviewing and Interrogation, the DWI Detection 3 

and Standardized Field Sobriety Testing Course 4 

Approved by the National Highway Traffic Safety 5 

Administration and Unknown and High Risk Vehicle 6 

Stops. 7 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you.   8 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Any questions? 9 

RONALD PIERINI:  Any questions from the 10 

Commissioners?  11 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Okay.  Performance 12 

Skills:  Health Fitness and Wellness, Interpersonal 13 

Communications, Operation of Emergency Vehicles, 14 

Provisions for Emergency First Aid and CPR, 15 

Searching of Buildings, Tactics for Arresting 16 

Control of Suspects, including without limitation, 17 

Methods of arrest and the Use of Less than Lethal 18 

Weapons, Training Concerning Active Assailant, 19 

Training in the Use of Firearms, and Writing of 20 

Reports.  Any questions? 21 

RONALD PIERINI:  Any questions from 22 

Commissioners?  Okay, Scott.  23 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Okay.  The last section.  24 

Functions of a Police Officer -- Peace Officer:  25 



 

42 

Care and Custody, Care of Persons in Custody, 1 

Community Policing, Counter-Terrorism and Weapons of 2 

Mass Destruction, Courtroom Demeanor, including, 3 

without limitations, The Giving of Testimony, Crisis 4 

Intervention, Ethics in Law Enforcement, Handling of 5 

Persons with Mental Illness, History and Principles 6 

of Law Enforcement, Management of Stress, National 7 

Crime Information Center of Procedures, Survival of 8 

Peace Officers, Systems of Criminal Justice and 9 

Realities of Law Enforcement.  That would conclude 10 

Item Number 9. 11 

RONALD PIERINI:  Any other comments or 12 

questions from Commissioners?  I’d like to go to the 13 

public now.  Is there anybody in the public audience 14 

that would like to make comment on any of those?  15 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Mr. Chairman, I have one 16 

more comment to throw to the Commission.  With this 17 

big change, there may be some concern about when 18 

should there be an effective date.  And in our 19 

dealings with the academies, they’re on board so far 20 

with all of the performance objectives that this 21 

adjustment should not create any type of a 22 

significant hindrance.   23 

Staff’s recommendation would be that could 24 

be a -- one recommendation would be that would be a 25 



 

43 

policy decision for staff that if an academy is 1 

currently in session at the time the Commission 2 

approves these, that compliance with the new 3 

objectives doesn’t go into effect until they start 4 

their next academy.  An academy that’s not in 5 

session right now would be required to make the 6 

updated changes before commencing their next one.  7 

Unless the Commission has another idea of an 8 

effective date, this is what the staff’s 9 

recommendation would be. 10 

RONALD PIERINI:  If I recall right, Scott, 11 

I think what we did last time in these types of 12 

issues, we went to January 1, starting the new date, 13 

did we not?  14 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  That was when we first 15 

set the topic areas in the NACs that then led to the 16 

performance objectives. 17 

RONALD PIERINI:  Okay.  18 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  This isn’t as drastic of 19 

a change over; this is merely a readjustment or 20 

realignment that the academies will have to do.  21 

RONALD PIERINI:  Okay.  22 

RICHARD CLARK:  Mr. Chair, Dick Clark for 23 

the record.  How I would also help out with that is 24 

that the -- if the Commission approves these changes 25 



 

44 

in the performance objectives, they can be 1 

immediately implemented without any penalty or 2 

problem for academies that are in session.  We’re 3 

the ones that do the audit on those academies that 4 

we don’t hold them responsible until if these 5 

changes occurred while that academy was going on.  6 

So it does give a more effective timeframe for -- to 7 

make appropriate changes as we go, but we don’t 8 

penalize academies by trying to catch them short 9 

because we do the audits on them and we don’t audit 10 

or -- or have them in compliance if that academy was 11 

already started by the time that these changes are 12 

made. 13 

RONALD PIERINI:  Okay.  Now is there 14 

enough time to change that --  15 

RICHARD CLARK:  Yeah. 16 

RONALD PIERINI:  -- to make sure that this 17 

is in there?  Let’s say that you had a community 18 

college starting one in -- in a month from now.  Can 19 

they divert back to this and be able to get that 20 

accomplished without any problem?  Does that make 21 

sense?  22 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Scott Johnston for the 23 

record.  I believe so and, again, to reiterate what 24 

Mr. Clark had just mentioned, that’s where the 25 



 

45 

staff’s discretion on how rapidly that an academy 1 

can make this adjustment.  The issue of the last 2 

time or the -- when we first implemented mandatory 3 

performance objectives, because that is not an NAC 4 

revision, that is an approval process by the 5 

Commission, it wouldn’t require drafting any NAC or 6 

effective date.  If we were changing the titles of 7 

each of the topics in the NACs, that would require a 8 

regulation change and maybe possibly even a greater 9 

change. 10 

RONALD PIERINI:  Okay.  Any other 11 

questions from Commissioners?  Want to go back to 12 

the audience who really didn’t have an opportunity.  13 

Is there anybody in the audience that’d like to talk 14 

about this issue?  Okay.  Seeing none, I’m looking 15 

for a motion. 16 

MARSHALL EMERSON:  Marshall Emerson for 17 

the record.  I’ll make a motion to accept these 18 

standards, as indicated here under Agenda Item 19 

Number 9, Discussion of Public Comment and for 20 

Possible Action.  The P.O.S.T. Commission in review 21 

on proposed changes to the Statewide Standardized 22 

Performance Objectives, including possibly 23 

establishing an effective date, if any, for the 24 

period Performance Objectives in Categories I, II, 25 



 

46 

II to I upgrade and In-Lieu of reciprocity minimum 1 

standards of training for the following category 2 

topics as discussed. 3 

RONALD PIERINI:  Okay.  We’re going back 4 

to this effective date, though.  We need to address 5 

that just in the motion; do we not?    6 

MICHAEL JENSEN:  Mike Jensen for the 7 

record.  Only if you want to set an effective date 8 

per the -- the regulations.  When the Commission 9 

approves the performance objective, it’s technically 10 

effective upon approval, but what staff is saying, 11 

as I understand it, is that they’re going to 12 

exercise discretion in how they audit academies in 13 

implementing those performance objectives. 14 

RONALD PIERINI:  Karen, did you want to 15 

say something?  No?  Okay.  We have a motion.  Do I 16 

have a second?  17 

ANTHONY DEMEO:  Tony DeMeo second. 18 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you, Tony.  All in 19 

favor? 20 

COMMISSIONERS:  Aye. 21 

RONALD PIERINI:  Anybody opposed?  So 22 

carried.  Number 10.  Discussion and public comment 23 

for the -- for -- and for possible action.  Finally.  24 

We have flies around here and she’s trying to use my 25 



 

47 

gavel.  Would you mind taking care of that, Tony?  1 

Thank you very much.  2 

ANTHONY DEMEO:  No problem (inaudible).  3 

Until the fly gets over here. 4 

RONALD PIERINI:  Okay.  Number 10 is the 5 

P.O.S.T. Commission to review and to vote on 6 

proposed changes in the Statewide Standardized 7 

Performance Objectives, including possibly 8 

establishing an effective date, if any, for the 9 

revised Performance Objectives, for Category III, 10 

minimum standards of training for the following 11 

course topics.  And I’ll give that back to Scott.  12 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  13 

Scott Johnston for the record.  First topic area is 14 

Legal Subjects.  And we have Civil Rights of 15 

Offenders, Searches of Offender Institutions, Laws 16 

Relating to Correctional Institutions, Laws Relating 17 

to Stalking and Aggravated Stalking, and Use of 18 

Force.  Any questions? 19 

RONALD PIERINI:  Any comment from the 20 

Commission?  All right.  Go ahead. 21 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  A second area Procedures 22 

in the Field.  Topic areas are Gangs and Cults, 23 

Supervision of Offenders, Classification and 24 

Receiving of Offenders, Transportation of Offenders, 25 



 

48 

Crisis Intervention, Records of Offenders in 1 

Institutions, and Games Offenders Play. 2 

RONALD PIERINI:  Any comments from the 3 

Commissioners?  Go ahead, Scott.  4 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  The third area is -- next 5 

area is Skills of Officers dealing with Writing of 6 

Reports for Correctional Institutions, Fire Safety 7 

and Use of Emergency Equipment, Fingerprinting, 8 

Defensive Tactics, Introduction of Restraints, 9 

Physical Conditioning, and Training concerning 10 

Active Assailants. 11 

RONALD PIERINI:  Any comment from 12 

Commissioners?  13 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Next area is 14 

Investigations.  Topics:  Crime Scene and Evidence, 15 

Investigation of Narcotics and Abuse of Controlled 16 

Substances, Investigation of Allegations of Stalking 17 

and Aggravated Stalking, Personality Disorders and 18 

Preventions of Suicide. 19 

RONALD PIERINI:  Commissioners, any 20 

questions?  Okay.  21 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Next is Community 22 

Relations.  Topics:  Ethics for Correctional 23 

Officers, Cultural Awareness, Interpersonal 24 

Communications, and Public and Media Relations. 25 



 

49 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you.  Any questions 1 

from the Commissioners?  Go ahead, Scott.  2 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Last Topic, Miscellaneous 3 

Subjects:  Modern Correctional Philosophy, First 4 

Aid, Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation, and Criminal 5 

Justice System. 6 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you.  Any other 7 

questions from the Commission?  Reaching out to the 8 

public in the audience.  Does anyone like to address 9 

this issue?  Seeing none, looking for a motion.  Mr. 10 

Cox? 11 

GREG COX:  Make a motion to accept the 12 

Commission’s view and vote on the proposed changes 13 

of the Statewide Standardized Performance Objectives 14 

including possibly establishing an effective date, 15 

again, in regards to -- with the motion indicating 16 

reflective to what the Commission or the -- the 17 

P.O.S.T. staff believes appropriate, if any, for the 18 

revised performance objectives for Category III, 19 

minimum standards of training for the following 20 

course topics as listed below. 21 

RONALD PIERINI:  Okay.  Thank you, Mr. 22 

Cox.  Do I have a second?  23 

DAN WATTS:  Dan Watts, second. 24 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you, Dan.  Any 25 



 

50 

other discussion?  All in favor? 1 

COMMISSIONERS:  Aye. 2 

RONALD PIERINI:  Anybody opposed?  So 3 

carried.  Scott, we got one more to go here on 4 

Number 11, okay?  This is discussion, public comment 5 

and for possible action.  P.O.S.T. Commission to 6 

review and vote on proposed changes to the Statewide 7 

Standardized Performance Objectives, including 8 

possibly establishing an effective date, if any, for 9 

the revised Performance Objectives, for Reserve, 10 

minimum standards of training for the following 11 

courses.  12 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Thank you.  Scott 13 

Johnston for the record.  Law and Legal Procedures.  14 

Topics are Civil Liability, Constitutional Law, 15 

Crimes Against Persons, Crimes Against Property, 16 

Juvenile Law, Laws of Arrest, Laws Relating to Drugs 17 

and Current Drug Trends, Miscellaneous Crimes, 18 

Probable Cause, Search and Seizure, Traffic Laws and 19 

Use of Force. 20 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you, Scott.  Any 21 

questions?  Seeing none, go ahead.  22 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Next, Patrol Operations 23 

and Investigations.  Topics:  Abuse of Elderly, 24 

Basic Patrol Procedures, Child Abuse and Sexual 25 



 

51 

Abuse of a Child, Domestic Violence and Stalking, 1 

Investigation of Crime Scenes in Collection, 2 

Preservation of Evidence and Fingerprinting, 3 

Principles of Investigation, and Unknown and High 4 

Risk Vehicle Stops. 5 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you, Scott.  Any 6 

questions from the Commission?  Go ahead.  7 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Performance Skills.  8 

Topics:  Health Fitness and Wellness, Provisions of 9 

Emergency First Aid and CPR, Tactics for Arresting 10 

Control of Suspects, including without limitation, 11 

Methods for Arrest and the Use of Less than Lethal 12 

Weapons, Training Concerning Active Assailant, 13 

Training in the Use of Firearms, and Writing of 14 

Reports. 15 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you.  Any 16 

Commissioners have a comment?  Go ahead, Scott.  17 

SCOTT JOHNSTON:  Last area.  Functions of 18 

a Peace Officer.  Topics:  Community Policing, 19 

Counter-Terrorism and Weapons of Mass Destruction, 20 

Courtroom Demeanor, including, without limitation, 21 

The Giving of Testimony, Crisis Intervention, Ethics 22 

in Law Enforcement, Handling of Persons with Mental 23 

Illness, History and Principles of Law Enforcement, 24 

and Survival of Peace Officers.  And that would 25 



 

52 

complete Item Number 11. 1 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you, Scott.  Any 2 

questions or comments from the Commission?  Okay.  3 

Reaching out to the public.  Is there anybody who 4 

would like to address this issue?  Seeing none, 5 

looking for a motion.  6 

ANTHONY DEMEO:  Tony DeMeo for the record.  7 

Make a motion that we or that the P.O.S.T. 8 

Commission adopts the Statewide Standardized 9 

Performance Objectives for the Reserve minimum 10 

standard of training. 11 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you, Tony.  Do I 12 

have a second?  13 

KAREN COYNE:  Coyne.  Second. 14 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you, Karen.  All in 15 

favor? 16 

COMMISSIONERS:  Aye. 17 

RONALD PIERINI:  Anybody opposed?  So 18 

carried.  Number 12.  Discussion, public comment and 19 

for possible action.  P.O.S.T. Commission to 20 

consider a request from Nevada Department of Public 21 

Safety for an Executive Certificate for Captain 22 

Thomas A. Jackson.  Mr. Clark? 23 

RICHARD CLARK:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  24 

Dick Clark for the record.  Captain Jackson has met 25 



 

53 

the training, education, and positional experience  1 

-- experience or requirements for the Executive 2 

Certificate.  He has a letter of request on file to 3 

the Commission from Colonel Troy Abney, Chief of the 4 

Highway Patrol, Nevada Highway Patrol, and we 5 

recommend issuance of the P.O.S.T. Executive 6 

Certificate. 7 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you, Mr. Clark.  Do 8 

we have any questions from our Commissioners?  9 

Hearing none, reaching out to the public.  Does 10 

anyone -- Mr. Wright, would you like to say 11 

something? 12 

JIM WRIGHT:  No.  That’s okay. 13 

RONALD PIERINI:  Okay.  I don’t see 14 

anything from the -- from the public, so I’m looking 15 

for a motion. 16 

MARSHALL EMERSON:  Marshall Emerson for 17 

the record.  I’ll make a motion to accept the 18 

consideration from the Nevada Department of Public 19 

Safety for an Executive Certificate for Captain 20 

Thomas A. Jackson. 21 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you, Marshall.  Do 22 

I have a second?  23 

ANTHONY DEMEO:  Tony DeMeo for the record.  24 

I’ll second. 25 



 

54 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you, Tony.  All in 1 

favor? 2 

COMMISSIONERS:  Aye. 3 

RONALD PIERINI:  So carried.  Public 4 

Comments.  Is there anybody in the audience that 5 

would like to make a comment that we didn’t -- of 6 

topics that we did not cover or maybe you have 7 

concerns or have maybe an issue that you want to 8 

have agendaized in the future?  Seeing none, we’ll 9 

go onto Number 14.  And this is dealing with the 10 

scheduling of our upcoming Commission meetings, 11 

which will be in October.  And, Mr. Clark, do you 12 

want to cover that?  13 

RICHARD CLARK:  Sure.  Thank you, Mr. 14 

Chairman.  Dick Clark for the record.  The October 15 

meeting is at the Palace Station in Las Vegas 16 

starting on October the 28th.  On that day, there’s 17 

-- they’re going to have the general session meeting 18 

and then there’s training, eight hours of training, 19 

on the 29th and 30th.  If we had to have two 20 

meetings at this point, it would look like maybe a  21 

-- a P.O.S.T. workshop at maybe nine or ten in the 22 

morning on the 28th before the general session 23 

meeting for the Sheriffs and Chiefs.  I know they 24 

have an Executive Board Meeting earlier, but I don’t 25 



 

55 

believe -- well, other than Sheriff Watts, I don’t 1 

think anybody else is on the Executive Board. 2 

DAN WATTS:  And that hasn’t been decided 3 

yet.  4 

RICHARD CLARK:  And it hasn’t been 5 

decided?  Okay.  And then the general, or the 6 

regular meeting, we would look at having on the -- 7 

on the -- well, there’s eight hours of training on 8 

the 29th, so there’s also eight hours of training on 9 

the 30th, but if the Commission wanted to skip the 10 

last four hours of that training, you could have a 11 

P.O.S.T. Commission regular meeting at 13:00 or 12 

perhaps later after the training, depending on what 13 

the Commission wanted to do. 14 

RONALD PIERINI:  Let me make a couple of 15 

comments on this.  16 

RICHARD CLARK:  Yeah. 17 

RONALD PIERINI:  One of the things that -- 18 

even though an agenda may not be very full for 19 

October, I can tell you that I feel it’s very 20 

important that we meet because if we were to stop 21 

now with Commission meetings and wouldn’t have one 22 

all the way to February, that’s too long.  And so we 23 

-- we really do need to have one in October even if 24 

it’s a light kind of a schedule, which it very well 25 



 

56 

could be.  And my opinion is, is that all of us are 1 

there and paid -- will be paying money for the 2 

excellent training that we provided.  Would this 3 

Commission make it possible or feel okay about it 4 

that we have a P.O.S.T. Commission meeting at 6:00 5 

at night after the training?  And I think that’s a 6 

fair thing for us so all of us could go and that’s 7 

not including that of the banquet that would be the 8 

day before or whatever day that isn’t on. 9 

RICHARD CLARK:  That’s on the first date, 10 

actually. 11 

RONALD PIERINI:  Okay.  So the second day 12 

or whatever.  So whatever we come up, we’re going to 13 

have to figure out what the schedules are, what is 14 

available and then we’d like to post it if -- if 15 

there is not a problem with the Commissioners.  And 16 

does anybody have a problem if we do it at 6:00 at 17 

night and -- and go from that type of a scenario?  18 

At least we would be able to cover the training, so.  19 

GREG COX:  Mr. Chairman.  Greg Cox.  I 20 

would agree.  We can’t go to February to have 21 

another meeting.  I would agree.  If we have to have 22 

it at 6:00, then -- I live in Vegas, so I know it’s 23 

easier on me than some of you, but I would agree 24 

that we need to have the meeting.   25 



 

57 

RONALD PIERINI:  Okay.  Thank you.  1 

GREG COX:  And if that’s the time we need 2 

to have it, then we have to have it. 3 

RONALD PIERINI:  Okay.  Good.  So, I 4 

guess, and I’ll just make the motion that -- that we 5 

believe that it will be the last part of October and 6 

it will be in Las Vegas and we will contact you 7 

folks once we can get a schedule going as -- that’s 8 

my motion.  Karen, you want to second that?  9 

KAREN COYNE:  Karen Coyne.  I’ll second 10 

that. 11 

RONALD PIERINI:  Any other discussion?  12 

Okay.  All in favor? 13 

COMMISSIONERS:  Aye. 14 

RONALD PIERINI:  But I should have asked 15 

the public.  Does the public want to make any 16 

comments dealing with our next meeting?  I guess 17 

not.  Okay.  Why don’t we go into a discussion and 18 

public comment and for possible action for 19 

adjournment?  Usually, we have five or six people 20 

saying let’s adjourn.  Tony?  21 

ANTHONY DEMEO:  If I have to stay here 22 

until 8:00 or 9:00 at night, I will get a feeling 23 

what it’s going to be like in Vegas.  Tony DeMeo, 24 

second. 25 



 

58 

RONALD PIERINI:  Okay.  We got a first 1 

from Tony.  Do I have a second?  2 

DAN WATTS:  Dan Watts, second. 3 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you, Dan.  All in 4 

favor? 5 

COMMISSIONERS:  Aye. 6 

RONALD PIERINI:  Thank you very much.   7 

 8 

(MEETING ADJOURNED AT 2:37 p.m.)   9 

 10 

 11 

 12 

 13 

 14 

 15 

 16 

 17 

 18 

 19 

 20 

 21 

 22 

 23 

 24 

 25 



 

59 

 
  DENISE SHOEMAKER 
  COURT REPORTING SERVICES 

     C-E-R-T-I-F-I-C-A-T-I-O-N 1 

 2 

I certify that the foregoing is a true and accurate 3 

transcript of the electronic audio recording from 4 

the meeting in the above-entitled matter. 5 

 6 

 7 

 8 

 9 

 10 

 11 

       12 

    _8/7/13  13 

                                           DATE 14 

 15 

   16 

 17 

 18 

 19 

 20 

 21 

 22 

 23 

 24 

 25 



AGENDA ITEM #3 
 

Executive Directors Report 
 
 
 

 



NAME AGENCY
1. Albarran, Rosa I. II Lyon County Juvenile Probation
2. Avilez, David P. I West Wendover Police Department
3. Azevedo, Brandon D. I Storey County Sheriff's Office
4. Baty, Keegan D. I Carlin Police Department
5. Beltramo, Jason M. I Humboldt County Sheriff's Office
6. Blake, Morgan L. I Pyramid Lake Tribal Police Department
7. Borkowski, Andrew J. I NV Department of Wildlife
8. Byrum, Jason A. I Esmeralda County Sheriff's Office
9. Ely, Justin M. I Dept. of Ag, Div. of Livestock Identification
10. Fannon, Daniel T. I Carson City Sheriff's Office
11. Farnsworth, Anthony V. I NV Department of Wildlife
12. Glenn, Matthew D. I NV Department of Wildlife
13. Graves, Jason D. I Mineral County Sheriff's Office
14. Gutierrez, Jesse J. II Lyon County Juvenile Probation
15. Jim, Gerard E. I Reno-Sparks Indian Colony PD
16. Kharrl, Brian K. I Mineral County Sheriff's Office
17 Martin Taylor A I Carlin Police Department

CATEGORY II
July 29, 2013 - October 3, 2013

NEVADA POST ACADEMY
CLASS 43/44

July 29, 2013 - November 15, 2013
CATEGORY I

17. Martin, Taylor A. I Carlin Police Department
18. Maynez, Rudy M. I Churchill County Sheriff's Office
19. McOmie, Ian K. I Mesquite Police Department
20. Miller, Steven E. I Douglas County Sheriff's Office
21. Murry, Kevin R. I Carson City Sheriff's Office
22. Nunes, Luiz C. I Elko County Sheriff's Office
23. O'Farrell, Michael R. I Elko Police Department
24. Paddock, Rachel E. I 7th Judicial District Court
25. Parks, Ralph L. I Winnemucca Police Department
26. Pasciak, Phillip A. I NV Gaming Control Board
27. Rhein, Joshua O. I NV State Parks
28. Stevens, Loren P. I Elko County Sheriff's Office
29. Thaler, Sean M. I Douglas County Sheriff's Office
30. Young, Jeffrey P. I Storey County Sheriff's Office



MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Tim Bunting, Deputy Director    
 
From:  Boe Turner, PD Bureau Chief 
 
Date:  October 2, 2013 
 
Subject: Quarterly Report 1st Quarter FY-14 
 
             
   
Crown Point data indicates 
  
TRAINING PROVIDED  
 
E-learning Students                  474 
Training hours    2,984 
 
Classroom Students         39 
Training hours    1,560 
 
Total 
Students         513 
Training hours                4,544 
 
Projects 
  
Management Course Curriculum revision this quarter 
43 e-learn courses available 
Updating of the Statewide Performance Objectives is completed.  
Up-date State Certification exam 
 
Intermediate              133 
Advanced              110 
Supervisor     18 
Management     03 
Executive                                                        01 
Instructor                       None 
 
   



Court Assessment Distribution by budget AccountCourt Assessment Distribution by budget Account
(includes all distributions)

0.79%

16.61%

6.64%

12.43%

10.89% 9999 ‐ General Fund

1400 ‐ Courts

3774 ‐ P.O.S.T.

52.64%

4709 ‐ Repository

4895 ‐ Victims of crime

1041/42 ‐ Domestic Viol./ Prosecuting 
Attorney



Six Year Picture

5,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

Actual Income

Actual Expense

1,000,000

2,000,000
Carry Forward

Authority

‐1,000,000

0

FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13

2009 includes Lexipol, Crimeline and the Physical Fitness 
validation study



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
September 30, 2013 
 
 
Address 
Address 
Address 
Address 
 
 
Dear : 
 
This is to inform you that due to budget constraints and a considerable increase in the number of 
cadets in our academy, we must make significant changes in our fee structure that will impact 
your agency. 
 
Court assessments continue to come in under authority which reduces our operating funds 
therefore creating a revenue shortfall (see attached chart).  We have met with the Budget office, 
and there is no relief available until July 1, 2015.  Our agency has instituted many internal cost 
saving changes, including a reduction in travel, the use of e-forms, and a reorganization of staff, 
but these changes are not enough. 
 
As this situation directly affects you and your agency, your input, ideas and suggestions will be 
invaluable in helping us complete our mission and honor our obligations to you in this 
challenging time.  Changes will be made prior to the upcoming academy, scheduled to begin 
January 27, 2014.  Options we are considering are: 
 

• Increase cadet tuition to $2580.00 for CAT I cadets, and $2,430.00 for all CAT II cadets 
• Reduce the length of the academy from 16 weeks to 14 weeks (see attachment) 
• Eliminate the “live-in” requirement; thus eliminating the food allowance but dorm rooms 

would still be available 
• Require some on-line training as a pre-requisite to attending the academy (CPR, First 

Aid, etc.) 



 2 
 

 
 
These are difficult and critically necessary decisions.  Whatever action we take will be in effect 
through the current biennium.  I would very much like to hear from you before October 15th in 
order for us to implement the chosen option(s) and provide ample time for planning and 
implementation. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Richard P. Clark 
Executive Director 
Nevada Commission on POST 
 
/kjf 
Enclosures  (2) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
Subjects not required by the NAC’s: 
 
(Removing these items would remove approximately 2‐3 weeks of the academy.) 
 
1.   Spanish – We have disks  that cadets can watch and review and will allow  them  to get an 
understanding of basic conversational/everyday language. 
 
2.  Peace Officer Rights – Can be completed online 
 
3.  Introduction to Boxing – Can be incorporated into PT 
 
4.    OC  Spray  –  OC  is  becoming  outdated.    The  Taser  has  completely  dominated  the  Law 
Enforcement field.  Few officers carry it or deploy it. 
 
5.    Domestic  Violence  Case  Study  –  This  part  of  the  academy  is more  informational  than 
“required training”.  They will see more than their share of this during FTO and in the field. 
 
6.  Radio Applications – This can be done as a class we will use to fill in. 
 
7.    Livestock  Laws  –  Can  be  completed  online.    If  an  occurrence  of  livestock  smuggling  is 
encountered, the Brand Inspectors must be called. 
 
8.  Courtroom Security – Most agencies teach this class in‐house 
 
9.  Gaming Law – Gaming Law issues are handled by the Gaming Control Agents.  Usual calls for 
a Peace Officer  to a  casino  is  for  fights,  trespassing or  removing  someone  that  shouldn’t be 
there. 
 
10.  Wildlife Law – Violations of this law are handled by Game Wardens. 
 
 
 
 
 



MEMORANDUM 
 
To:   Dick Clark, Executive Director, POST 
 
From:  Tim Bunting. Deputy Director, POST 
 
Date:  October 9, 2013 
 
Subject:  Quarterly Report, Operations, and Special Projects, 1st Quarter FY-14 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 

1. Projects Update.   
 Annual Report.  FY 13 completed and distributed               

       1st  Quarter Budget.  See attached chart. 
 Curriculum Review. On going 

Policy and Procedures update.  No revisions 
 

2. Significant Events. 
 
3. Miscellaneous Comments. 

Budget shortfall and an increase in the number of cadets continue to be a problem.  
In a September 12 meeting with the budget director we were told there is nothing 
that the state can do to help relieve the problem. 

 
      4.  Budget.   
     1st quarter: Authorized $590,019, received $563,002, spent $427,356 
 

Quarterly

$0.00

$100,000.00

$200,000.00

$300,000.00

$400,000.00

$500,000.00

$600,000.00

$700,000.00

1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr

Authority
Income
Spent

 
 



Commission on 
Peace Officers’ Standards & Training 
Basic Training Bureau 
 
 
To:  Tim Bunting, Deputy Director 
 
From:  Orlando Guerra 
 
Date:  08 September 2013 
 
Subject: 1st Quarter Report 2014 (July, August, September) 
 
 
 
Projects: 

 
 

Performance objectives review (on going) 
Shoot house plans (on-going 
Clean up of all surrounding areas at POST in the works (on-going) 
Revising the boxing program. Making it more effective and user friendly.  
Working on simplifying the high/low risk traffic stop(s) block of instruction (more 
realistic, formal, structured, basic.  Doing more training in-house, and eliminating some 
of the cost of instructors.  
Work still being done to correct and simplify the building search and active assailant 
block of instruction (more buildings, more scenario problems). Doing more training in-
house and eliminating some of the cost on instructors and role players. 
Maintenance of POST patrol vehicles on-going process.   Basic Training taken over the 
role of oversees the maintenance requests of all the Academy patrol vehicles.  Doing 
more in-house to eliminate maintenance costs.  
Sprinkler system around Bldg #12 in place. All labor provided by Chief of BTC and 
B&G.  Cost to POST was $138.18.  

 
 
 

Bureau: 
 

Basic Training Bureau staff continues to review, scrub lesson plans and instructors lists to 
better provide the cadets with quality instruction. 
Class 43/44 is on its 11th week of training. Will graduate 15 November 2013.   
Working on last portion of fence (50-60 ft).  All labor will be accomplished by the 
Academy Chief and Cadets. 



Cadet from Nevada Youth Parole dismissed from Academy Class at the request of 
agency. 
Introduction to AR 15 rifle and familiarization went well.  Cadets picked up on it very 
well.  
All cadets doing well.  Nobody on light duty. 
Continue to identify more instructors for this coming class.  

  
 

Training Hours: 
 
• Category I 

 Classroom   451.5  hours 
 Cadet  12, 418 hours 

• Category II 
 Classroom     451.5hours 
 Cadet      1,266.5  hours 

 
• Instructor hours   7,774    hours 
 
 
Milo Use of Force Simulator 
                    None 

 
 



MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Tim Bunting, Deputy Director    
 
From:  Boe Turner, PD Bureau Chief 
 
Date:  October 2, 2013 
 
Subject: Quarterly Report 1st Quarter FY-14 
 
             
   
Crown Point data indicates 
  
TRAINING PROVIDED  
 
E-learning Students                  474 
Training hours    2,984 
 
Classroom Students         39 
Training hours    1,560 
 
Total 
Students         513 
Training hours                4,544 
 
Projects 
  
Management Course Curriculum revision this quarter 
43 e-learn courses available 
Updating of the Statewide Performance Objectives is completed.  
Up-date State Certification exam 
 
Intermediate              133 
Advanced              110 
Supervisor     18 
Management     03 
Executive                                                        01 
Instructor                       None 
 
   



1st Quarterly Report FY 2014 1

COMMISSION ON P.O.S.T. 
To:  Tim Bunting, Deputy Director 

From:  Scott Johnston, PSB Chief, via Elaine Moore-Cerda 

Cc:  ALL; “S” Drive  

Date Submitted:  10/02/2013 

Re:  Quarterly Activities Report  - 1st Quarterly Report FY 2014 

PROJECTS TRACKING – 
 
PROJECT STATUS 
Application Extender Legal Docs Cleanup Completed 
  
  
 
Audits/Compliance/ITR/Academy Audits:  
 
ITR Audit Report Pursuant to NAC 289.230 
 

ITR Audits  
July August September Total 

0 0 0 0 
 
Academy Audit Report Pursuant to NAC 289.300  
 

Academy Audits  
July August September Total 

0 0 0 0 
 

Course Audits  
July August September Total 

0 0 0 0 
 
Records and Certification Micro-Imaging Project: 
SNAPSHOT:   
 
No change 
 

 State Certification Examination  
 

Category # of Students 
 July August September Total 
Category I 0 22 16 38 
Category II 12 13 0 25 
Category III 67 67 13 147 
Reserve Limited 2 0 0 2 

Total 81 102 29 212 
 



1st Quarterly Report FY 2014 2

Basic Certificates Issued (Includes In-Lieu’s for each category) 
 
Category # Certificates Awarded 
 July August September Total 
Category I 30 7 8 45 
Category II 4 13 6 23 
Category III 0 41 5 46 
Reserve Limited 0 4 2 6 

Total 34 65 21 120 
  
 
Courses Certified 
 

Courses Certified  
July August September Total 

5 15 35 55 
 

“C” Numbers Assigned  
July August September Total 

0 0 0 0 
 

Academy “B” Numbers Assigned  
July August September Total 

1 0 0 1 
 
PAR’s Processed 
 

PAR’s processed (Paper)  
July August September Total 
70 11 5 86 

PAR’s Updates (Formatta)  
July August September Total 
164 83 132 379 

PAR’s Employment (Formatta)
July August September Total 
227 171 155 553 

 
 
Significant Events  
 
 EVENT 
1 The Commission continued with Rule making on regulation changes, approved 

revised performance objectives 
2 Conducted SNALET and NALET meetings 
3 Implemented new Formatta electronic submission of employment PAR’s 
4 POST Commission Meeting and Workshop.  Working on changes to annual 

continuing education.  The Commission approved all statewide standardized 
performance objectives. 

  
 



NEVADA
COMMISSION ON

PEACE OFFICERS' STANDARDS AND TRAINING
PERFORMANCE INDICATOR REPORT  

Date: October 2, 2013 
Fiscal Year: 2014

Indicator Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Workload
CERTIFICATES PROCESSED

Basic Previous FY 18 82 36 17 42 0 73 65 48 28 97 133 639
Current FY 34 65 21 120

Intermediate Previous FY 10 31 20 16 18 18 23 47 43 77 66 78 447
Current FY 73 35 25 133

Advanced Previous FY 11 25 17 16 16 11 23 35 37 66 53 182 492
Current FY 56 29 25 110

Supervisory Previous FY 7 3 6 7 4 4 6 5 4 13 2 20 81
Current FY 10 7 1 18

Management Previous FY 0 3 1 0 2 2 1 1 0 1 2 1 14
Current FY 1 1 1 3

Executive Previous FY 2 0 0 0 4 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 8
Current FY 1 0 0 1

Instructor Previous FY 0 4 0 0 1 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 9
Current FY 0 0 0 0

ON LINE IN-LIEU ELIGIBILITY REQUESTS
In-Lieu Attended/Completed # Attended 0 2 1 3

STATEWIDE TRAINING
Annual Mandatory Training *

Number of courses Previous FY 79 58 72 184 151 168 119 113 100 100 98 55 1,297
Current FY 73 99 263 435

Number of students attended Previous FY 861 760 1051 4435 2842 12213 691 1689 820 1195 670 348 27,575
Current FY 996 1236 2,911 5,143

Number of student hours Previous FY 3197 3793 4875 21772 12608 314032 3466 6227 4388 4757.5 2928 1356.01 383,400
Current FY 5,705.50 4,887.00 12,787.90 23,380

STATEWIDE TRAINING
Professional Development Training 

Number of courses Previous FY 93 117 45 97 94 133 89 38 72 133 121 1 1,033
Current FY 289 187 176 652

Number of students attended Previous FY 332 244 113 211 338 187 107 135 142 479 272 1 2,561
Current FY 417 299 302 1,018

Number of student hours Previous FY 3272 3311 3392 5416 2979.5 1175 1180 1079 2866 2692 1843 240 29,446
Current FY 3466 2799 2918 9,183

E-LEARNING (Self Study & On Line In-Lieu)    
E-Learning Students Previous FY 333 31 14 83 26 38 86 12 49 112 41 190 1,015

Current FY 217 97 160 474
Monthly Training Hours Previous FY 1164 852 1192 1284 1214 1226 1712 1020 1220 4706 6904 964 23,458

Current FY 1524 500 960 2,984
REQUESTS FOR COURSE CERTIFICATION / APPROVAL
Number of courses certified / approved Previous FY 22 49 18 37 11 0 21 9 17 0 10 15 209

Current FY 6 15 35 56
POST BASIC TRAINING - CATEGORY I

POST Academy Class # CLASS  44 CLASS  44 CLASS  44 CLASS  44 CLASS  44 No Academy CLASS 46 CLASS 46 CLASS 46 CLASS 46 CLASS 46 No Academy
Start date of the Academy July 30 Jan 28  
End date of the Academy Nov 16  May 16
Number of Cadets starting 32  32
Number of Cadets finishing pending   0
Classroom Hours Planned 20 156 188 168 120 152 192 176 134 134 1,440

Actual 30.5 256 165 452
Student Hours Planned 423 1,404 1,692 1,512 1,080 3,192 4,032 3,872 2,616 2,616  22,439

Actual 854 7,109 4,455 12,418

1 of 2



Indicator Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Workload
Cadet course evaluation rating     (1-5) Planned 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4.00

Actual 5 4.3 4.76 4.69
POST BASIC TRAINING - CATEGORY II

POST Academy Class # CLASS  43 CLASS  43 CLASS  43 CLASS  43 CLASS  43 No Academy CLASS 45 CLASS 45 CLASS 45 CLASS 45 CLASS 45 No Academy
Start date of the Academy July 30 Jan 28  
End date of the Academy Oct 11 Apr 11
Number of Cadets starting  0
Number of Cadets finishing pending    0
Classroom Hours Planned 20.0 152 152 192 100 152 152 192 48 2 1,162

Actual 30.5 256 165 452
Student Hours Planned 40.0 456 456 576 360 456 456 576 144 8 3,528

Actual 92 768 407 1,267
Cadet course evaluation rating     (1-5) Planned 4 4 4 4 4  4 4 4 4 4.0% 3.60

Actual 5 4.3 4.76 4.69
STATE CERTIFICATION EXAMINATION

Number of Academies administered State Cert Exam Previous FY 9 6 11 0 5 3 1 4 5 7 11 4 66
Current FY 6 5 3 14

Number of individual exams administered Previous FY 82 50 156 7 62 8 27 69 68 73 97 96 795
Current FY 81 102 29 212

Number of exams passed Previous FY 82 50 154 7 62 8 26 68 64 73 97 96 787
Current FY 81 102 29 212

Number of exams failed Previous FY 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 1 4 0 0 0 7
Current FY 0 0 0 0

PERSONNEL ACTION REPORT (PAR) 
Number of PAR's manually processed Previous FY 125 106 47 164 106 77 124 98 207 129 85 28 1,296

Current FY 70 11 5 86
Number of Formatta electronic PAR submissions Previous FY 135 82 133 66 116 129 157 106 96 142 110 133 1,405
processed Current FY 164 83 132 379
Number of Employment electronic PAR submissions Previous FY N/A N/A N/A N/A
(new process) Current FY 227 171 155 553

ACADEMIES AUDITED
Number of academies audited (programs) Goal 1.16 1.16 1.16 1.16 1.16 1.16 1.16 1.16 1.16 1.16 1.16 1.16 13.92

Completed 0 0 0 0
COURSES AUDITED

Number of courses audited Goal 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 12
Completed 0 0 0 0

ITR'S AUDITED
Number of agencies audited for compliance Goal 2.75 2.75 2.75 2.75 2.75 2.75 2.75 2.75 2.75 2.75 2.75 2.75 33

Completed 0 1 0 1
Number of records reviewed

Completed 0 12 0 12
SURVEY OF LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES

POST academy users - agencies surveyed Total 0 0 17 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 17

Course evaluation rating (1-5) Planned 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Actual 4.17

EXECUTIVE LEVEL TRAINING
2 per Fiscal Year Scheduled 1 2  3

Completed 1 0 0 2 3
POST COMMISSION MEETINGS Ely Las Vegas Reno Carson City

Scheduled 25-Jul 29/30-Oct 28-Feb  2-May 1

July 2012 - Consolidated Conducted / Facilitated / Managed Courses
to reflect Statewide Annual Mandatory Training and Professional Development Training
* Annual Training represents Mandatory and Critical Skills Training
Added updated PAR's

2 of 2



OCT 15,2013 Nevada Commission on POST Page: 1
Employee Certification Report01:17PM

Category I Basic Certificates - July - Sept 2013

Certificate Level Status Date Status Cert # Certified Expires Probation

Amani, David A. 30528
Basic: Category I 7-11-2013 Active 7-11-2013
Appah, Francis C. 30995
Basic: Category I 7-03-2013 Active 7-03-2013
Bletnitsky, Leonid 30478
Basic: Category I 7-09-2013 Active 7-09-2013
Brooks, Christopher M. 31184
Basic: Category I 7-17-2013 Inactive 7-09-2013 7-17-2018
Brooks, Jasmine G. 30476
Basic: Category I 7-09-2013 Active 7-09-2013
Campbell, Caleb B. 31469
Basic: Category I Cat I 9-19-2013 Active 9-19-2013 10-07-2013
Ciotti, Nicole C. 31470
Basic: Category I Cat I 9-19-2013 Active 9-19-2013 10-07-2013
Contreras, Adrian G. 27810
Basic: Category I 7-11-2013 Active 7-11-2013
Crook, Michael S. 31186
Basic: Category I 8-31-2013 Inactive 7-09-2013 8-31-2018
Davis, Kyle L. 31722
Basic: Category I Cat I 8-09-2013 Active 8-09-2013 8-26-2013
Dinino, Kenneth J. 31312
Basic In Lieu: Category I 7-17-2013 Active 7-17-2013
Ellis, Dustin A. 31471
Basic: Category I Cat I 9-19-2013 Active 9-19-2013 10-07-2013
Evans, Charles M. 31723
Basic: Category I Cat I 8-09-2013 Active 8-09-2013 9-09-2013
Goodwin, Michael T. 31810
Basic: Category I Cat I 9-23-2013 Active 9-23-2013 10-07-2013
Guardanapo, Shaun R. 31520
Basic In Lieu: Category I 7-03-2013 Active 7-03-2013
Henry, Richard L. 30431
Basic: Category I 7-09-2013 Active 7-09-2013



OCT 15,2013 Nevada Commission on POST Page: 2
Employee Certification Report01:17PM

Category I Basic Certificates - July - Sept 2013

Certificate Level Status Date Status Cert # Certified Expires Probation

Hooper, Timothy W. 27812
Basic: Category I 7-11-2013 Active 7-11-2013
Huebner, Kenneth C. 31189
Basic: Category I 7-17-2013 Inactive 7-09-2013 7-17-2018
Jackson, Daymond T. 31190
Basic: Category I 7-17-2013 Inactive 7-09-2013 7-17-2018
Jakob, Derek A. 31533
Basic: Category I Cat I 8-09-2013 Active 8-09-2013 9-09-2013
Kern, John L. 31191
Basic: Category I 7-09-2013 Active 7-09-2013
Lourenco, Christopher J. 31192
Basic: Category I 7-17-2013 Inactive 7-09-2013 7-17-2018
Lytle, Jeffrey K. 31472
Basic: Category I Cat I 9-19-2013 Active 9-19-2013 10-07-2013
MacLeod, Kenneth 19966
Basic: Category I 7-17-2013 Inactive 7-09-2013 7-17-2018
Mazur, Michael D. 30477
Basic: Category I 7-09-2013 Active 7-09-2013
Narvaez, Sergio R. 31473
Basic: Category I Cat I 9-19-2013 Active 9-19-2013 10-07-2013
O'Connor, Aron S. 31474
Basic: Category I Cat I 9-19-2013 Active 9-19-2013 10-07-2013
Pollard, Troy D. 30012
Basic: Category I 7-17-2013 Inactive 7-09-2013 7-17-2018
Principe, Jose R. 28473
Basic: Category I 7-17-2013 Inactive 7-09-2013 7-17-2018
Ragsdale, Jerry D. 27348
Basic: Category I 7-11-2013 Active 7-11-2013
Ramsey, Ronald L. 25305
Basic: Category I 7-11-2013 Active 7-11-2013
Reed, Melissa D. 31487
Basic: Category I Cat I 8-09-2013 Active 8-09-2013 9-09-2013



OCT 15,2013 Nevada Commission on POST Page: 3
Employee Certification Report01:17PM

Category I Basic Certificates - July - Sept 2013

Certificate Level Status Date Status Cert # Certified Expires Probation

Rhein, Noah C. 10430
Basic: Category I 7-09-2013 Active 7-09-2013
Robinson, James N. 30389
Basic: Category I 7-17-2013 Inactive 7-09-2013 7-17-2018
Rye, Kimberly A. 29074
Basic: Category I Cat I 9-19-2013 Active 9-19-2013 10-07-2013
Starling, Jack 28474
Basic: Category I 7-17-2013 Inactive 7-09-2013 7-17-2018
Sutton Sr., Victor T. 19760
Basic: Category I 7-08-2013 Active 7-08-2013
Tate, Christopher L. 28342
Basic: Category I 7-11-2013 Active 7-11-2013
Taylor, Kenny C. 30456
Basic: Category I 7-24-2013 Active 7-24-2013
Turner, Deanna M. 28343
Basic: Category I 7-11-2013 Active 7-11-2013
Vega, James E. 30494
Basic: Category I 7-09-2013 Active 7-09-2013
Wrath, Wayne R. 31197
Basic: Category I 7-17-2013 Inactive 7-09-2013 7-17-2018

Employees on report: 42



OCT 15,2013 Nevada Commission on POST Page: 1
Employee Certification Report01:18PM

Category II Basic Certificates - July - Sept 2013

Certificate Level Status Date Status Cert # Certified Expires Probation

Amani, David A. 30528
Basic: Category II 7-11-2013 Active 7-11-2013
Baca, Anthony J. 30244
Basic: Category II 7-12-2013 Active 7-12-2013 8-26-2013
Bosket, Jaare C. 31162
Basic: Category II 7-12-2013 Active 7-12-2013 8-26-2013
Doyle, Jennifer E. 28909
Basic: Category II 7-12-2013 Active 7-12-2013 8-26-2013
Grant, Angela J. 31429
Basic: Category II 7-12-2013 Active 7-12-2013 8-26-2013
Heath, Douglas C. 31319
Basic: Category II 7-12-2013 Active 7-12-2013 8-26-2013
Hooker, Brittney A. 31161
Basic: Category II 7-12-2013 Active 7-12-2013 8-26-2013
Johnson, Lisa M. 31160
Basic: Category II 7-12-2013 Active 7-12-2013 8-26-2013
Johnson, Re'Shey D. 31388
Basic: Category II 7-12-2013 Active 7-12-2013 8-26-2013
Kennedy, Jennifer M. 31389
Basic: Category II 7-12-2013 Active 7-12-2013 8-26-2013
Mason, Tynan O. 31320
Basic: Category II 7-12-2013 Active 7-12-2013 8-26-2013
Mitchell, Brandon Q. 30533
Basic: Category II 7-03-2013 Active 7-03-2013
Petrilla, Brian D. 31464
Basic: Category II 7-12-2013 Active 7-12-2013 8-26-2013
Shultz, Brian T. 27663
Basic: Category II 7-03-2013 Active 7-03-2013
Trapani, Kasi A. 30737
Basic: Category II 7-12-2013 Active 7-12-2013 8-26-2013
Wilson, Daniel L. 31461
Basic: Category II 7-03-2013 Active 7-03-2013



OCT 15,2013 Nevada Commission on POST Page: 2
Employee Certification Report01:18PM

Category II Basic Certificates - July - Sept 2013

Certificate Level Status Date Status Cert # Certified Expires Probation

Employees on report: 16



OCT 14,2013 Nevada Commission on POST Page: 1
Employee Certification Report03:04PM

Category II Basic - July 2013

Certificate Level Status Date Status Cert # Certified Expires Probation

Amani, David A. 30528
Basic: Category II 7-11-2013 Active 7-11-2013
Baca, Anthony J. 30244
Basic: Category II 7-12-2013 Active 7-12-2013 8-26-2013
Bosket, Jaare C. 31162
Basic: Category II 7-12-2013 Active 7-12-2013 8-26-2013
Doyle, Jennifer E. 28909
Basic: Category II 7-12-2013 Active 7-12-2013 8-26-2013
Grant, Angela J. 31429
Basic: Category II 7-12-2013 Active 7-12-2013 8-26-2013
Heath, Douglas C. 31319
Basic: Category II 7-12-2013 Active 7-12-2013 8-26-2013
Hooker, Brittney A. 31161
Basic: Category II 7-12-2013 Active 7-12-2013 8-26-2013
Johnson, Lisa M. 31160
Basic: Category II 7-12-2013 Active 7-12-2013 8-26-2013
Johnson, Re'Shey D. 31388
Basic: Category II 7-12-2013 Active 7-12-2013 8-26-2013
Kennedy, Jennifer M. 31389
Basic: Category II 7-12-2013 Active 7-12-2013 8-26-2013
Mason, Tynan O. 31320
Basic: Category II 7-12-2013 Active 7-12-2013 8-26-2013
Mitchell, Brandon Q. 30533
Basic: Category II 7-03-2013 Active 7-03-2013
Petrilla, Brian D. 31464
Basic: Category II 7-12-2013 Active 7-12-2013 8-26-2013
Shultz, Brian T. 27663
Basic: Category II 7-03-2013 Active 7-03-2013
Trapani, Kasi A. 30737
Basic: Category II 7-12-2013 Active 7-12-2013 8-26-2013
Wilson, Daniel L. 31461
Basic: Category II 7-03-2013 Active 7-03-2013



OCT 14,2013 Nevada Commission on POST Page: 2
Employee Certification Report03:04PM

Category II Basic - July 2013

Certificate Level Status Date Status Cert # Certified Expires Probation

Employees on report: 16



OCT 15,2013 Nevada Commission on POST Page: 1
Employee Certification Report01:21PM

Category III Basic Certificates - July - Sept 2013

Certificate Level Status Date Status Cert # Certified Expires Probation

Acevedo, Joel J. 31575
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Alvarado, Brandon L. 31576
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Bonner, Cody A. 31577
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Bridges, Christopher A. 31578
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Cruz, Brandon A. 31580
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Dalske, Micah L. 31581
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Davis, Kyle L. 31722
Basic: Category III Cat III 8-09-2013 Active 8-09-2013 8-26-2013
Davis, Ronald 31582
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Del Villar-Solis, Christopher 31583
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Dela Rosa, Ferdinand M. 30564
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Evans, Charles M. 31723
Basic: Category III Cat III 8-09-2013 Active 8-09-2013 9-09-2013
Ferris, Lukas D. 31584
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Ford, Michael W. 31585
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
French, Sean G. 31586
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Gallego, Rene 31587
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Garrett, Steven M. 31588
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013



OCT 15,2013 Nevada Commission on POST Page: 2
Employee Certification Report01:21PM

Category III Basic Certificates - July - Sept 2013

Certificate Level Status Date Status Cert # Certified Expires Probation

Hoffman, Chris W. 31589
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Jakob, Derek A. 31533
Basic: Category III Cat III 8-09-2013 Active 8-09-2013 9-09-2013
Kolakowski, David C. 31591
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Krol, Dariusz S. 31592
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Leach, Betty J. 31593
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
McGinnis, Christopher A. 31594
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Mendoza, Wilson K. 31595
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Mitchell, Ronald D. 31596
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Morgenstern, Bruce L. 31597
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Newman, Stephen R. 31598
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Petrova, Desislava K. 31599
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Pinkston, Tia-Maria 31600
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Potts, Ronnie M. 31601
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Reed, Melissa D. 31487
Basic: Category III Cat III 8-09-2013 Active 8-09-2013 9-09-2013
Rodriguez, Drew C. 31602
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Scott, Terence 31603
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013



OCT 15,2013 Nevada Commission on POST Page: 3
Employee Certification Report01:21PM

Category III Basic Certificates - July - Sept 2013

Certificate Level Status Date Status Cert # Certified Expires Probation

Smith, Brittany T. 31604
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Steffen, Christopher P. 31605
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Sterba, Jeremiah J. 31368
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Swanegan, Osmond X. 31606
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Thompson, Andrew J. 31607
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Torres, Francisco A. 31237
Basic: Category III Cat III 7-05-2013 Active 7-05-2013 8-27-2013
Trainer, Quinton M. 31608
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Trainer, Sidney L. 31369
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Valdepena, Kristy A. 31609
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013
Wharton, Krystyna C. 31802
Basic: Category III Cat III 8-16-2013 Active 8-16-2013 10-08-2013
Williams, Golwin A. 31610
Basic: Category III 7-19-2013 Active 7-19-2013 8-15-2013

Employees on report: 43



OCT 15,2013 Nevada Commission on POST Page: 1
Employee Certification Report01:24PM

Reserve Basic Certificates - July - Sept 2013

Certificate Level Status Date Status Cert # Certified Expires Probation

Cook, Kevin C. 31663
Reserve Limited Reserve 7-27-2013 Active 7-27-2013 9-24-2013
Menezes, Derek M. 31535
Reserve Limited Reserve 7-27-2013 Active 7-27-2013

Employees on report: 2



OCT 14,2013 Nevada Commission on POST 1
03:22PM

Page:
Courses by Course Title

Basic Academy Courses Certified July 2013-Sept 2013

Course Title Hours Status Approved Period Provider

B2770003 SSLEA Category I Academy 630.00 Active Silver State Law Enforcement Academy

Courses in this report: 1



OCT 14,2013 Nevada Commission on POST 1
03:18PM

Page:
Courses by Course Title

Courses Certified/Approved - 1st Quarter July - Sept 2013

Course Title Hours Status Approved Period Provider

P0000476 2013 Nevada Legislative Update 4.00 Active Nevada Commission on POST
P2220019 Addictions 203: An Overview of the Impact of Opioi 6.00 Active Division of Child Family Services
P2950025 Attitudes at Work 2.00 Active Relias Learning
P2930001 Basic Peer Support Course 24.00 Active D-Prep, LLC
P2950026 Bioterrorism 1.00 Active Relias Learning
P0000482 CA. Narc. Assoc. Pre-Institute Training 8.00 Active Nevada Commission on POST
P2480003 Cell Extraction Developement Instructor Course 16.00 Active American Council on Criminal Justice Tra
P2940001 Cell Phone Investigations 16.00 Active Police Technical
P2950003 Civil Liability & the Disciplinary Process in Corr 3.00 Active Relias Learning
P0750026 Civilian Self Defense 4.00 Active Las Vegas Metro Detention Center
P2950030 Comm. Essentials: Comm. Style Effectiveness 1.00 Active Relias Learning
P2950029 Communication Essentials: Navigating Conversations 1.00 Active Relias Learning
P2950017 Confidentiality of Health Info in Corr. Facilities 2.00 Active Relias Learning
P2950027 Corporate Compliance and Ethics 1.00 Active Relias Learning
P0750027 Crisis Intervention Team for CO's Recertification 8.00 Active Las Vegas Metro Detention Center
P2950028 Cultural Diversity 1.00 Active Relias Learning
P2950024 Customer Relations 2.00 Active Relias Learning
P0000481 Domestic Violence Investigations for L.E. 8.00 Active Nevada Commission on POST
P0020038 Effect. Investigate and Prosecute DV Strangulation 8.00 Active Reno Police Department
P0220014 Elder Abuse Investigation 4.00 Active Carson City Sheriff's Office
P2950004 Emergency Preparedness in the Corrections Setting 1.00 Active Relias Learning
P0000477 EVOC Instructor 40.00 Active Nevada Commission on POST
P0650003 Gang Resource Officer 10.00 Active Henderson Police Department
P0760146 Gangs in Clark County 9.00 Active Las Vegas Metro Police Department
P2950018 Grief and Loss in the Corrections Setting 2.00 Active Relias Learning
P0000479 Introductory Survival Spanish 40.00 Active Nevada Commission on POST
P0030003 Investigating Sexual Assault 8.00 Active Sparks Police Department
P0760147 Law Enforcement Officers Flying Armed 2.00 Active Las Vegas Metro Police Department
P2950005 Legal Issues Part 1: The U.S. Legal System 2.00 Active Relias Learning
P2950006 Legal Issues Part 2: Offender Lawsuits 2.00 Active Relias Learning
P2950007 Legal Issues Part 4: The Civil Justice Process 3.00 Active Relias Learning
P2950012 Managing Adult & Juv. Offenders with Chronic Ill. 2.00 Active Relias Learning
P2950008 Managing Inmates and Juveniles who Require Accommo 2.00 Active Relias Learning
P2950009 Managing Offender Resistance 2.00 Active Relias Learning
P2950019 Medication Administration in Corrections Part 2 2.00 Active Relias Learning
P2950020 Mental & Physical Health Issues for Older Inmates 2.00 Active Relias Learning
P2220018 Motiviational Interviewing Skills Practice 6.00 Active Division of Child Family Services
P1470042 Nevada Drug Investigation School (NDIS) 80.00 Active Nevada Department of Public Safety
P2950021 Nursing Health Assessment in Corrections 1.00 Active Relias Learning
P2950013 Offender Rights Part 3: Use of Force & Due Process 1.00 Active Relias Learning
P2950014 Offender Rights Part 4: Religion, Comm. & Searches 1.00 Active Relias Learning



OCT 14,2013 Nevada Commission on POST 2
03:18PM

Page:
Courses by Course Title

Courses Certified/Approved - 1st Quarter July - Sept 2013

Course Title Hours Status Approved Period Provider

P2950015 Offender Rights Part 5: Access to the Legal System 1.00 Active Relias Learning
P0760144 Optimal Motivation 4.00 Active Las Vegas Metro Police Department
P2950022 Overview of PTSD for Corrections Officers 1.00 Active Relias Learning
P0000480 Pedestrian/Bike Accident Reconstruction 40.00 Active Nevada Commission on POST
P0760145 Personal development 6.00 Active Las Vegas Metro Police Department
P0020037 Police Cyclist Refresher Course 10.00 Active Reno Police Department
P2950002 PREA: Investigation Protocols 3.00 Active Relias Learning
P2950001 PREA: Sexual Abuse: Dynamics, Detection, and Repor 2.00 Active Relias Learning
P2950010 Prea: What It Means for You and Your Agency 2.00 Active Relias Learning
P0020039 PTO Training 10.00 Active Reno Police Department
P0000478 Rapid Deployment 32.00 Active Nevada Commission on POST
P0760148 S/W Prep and Execution fpr DUI Blood Draws 8.00 Active Las Vegas Metro Police Department
P2960002 Spanish for Corrections 20.00 Active Spanishonpatrol.com
P2960001 Spanish for Law Enforcement 20.00 Active Spanishonpatrol.com
P0760149 Strategic Community Policing & Problem Solving 16.00 Active Las Vegas Metro Police Department
P2950016 Supervising Offenders: Nonverbal Comm. Skills 2.00 Active Relias Learning
P2950011 Supervising Offenders: Verbal Communication Skills 2.00 Active Relias Learning
P0250002 TASER INSTRUCTOR COURSE 16.00 Active City of Las Vegas Detention & Enfor
P2950023 Women's Phy. Health: Med. Issues, Inft. Dis., STDs 1.00 Active Relias Learning

Courses in this report: 60



AGENDA ITEM #4 
 

DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

The Commission will discuss, receive public comment and possibly take action to adopt proposed 
amendments as outlined in LCB file R188-12. 

 
 
 

 



 

--1-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R188-12 

PROPOSED REGULATION OF THE PEACE OFFICERS’ 

STANDARDS AND TRAINING COMMISSION 

LCB File No. R188-12 

June 21, 2013 

EXPLANATION – Matter in italics is new; matter in brackets [omitted material] is material to be omitted. 

 

AUTHORITY: §§1-5, NRS 289.510. 
 

A REGULATION relating to peace officers; revising provisions governing the training of peace 
officers; authorizing the Executive Director of the Peace Officers’ Standards and 
Training Commission to temporarily reinstate a basic or reserve certificate under 
certain circumstances; revising the requirements for obtaining intermediate and 
advanced certificates; revising provisions governing courses of training above the level 
of basic training; and providing other matters properly relating thereto. 

 

 Section 1.  NAC 289.230 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 289.230  1.  To maintain a basic certificate or reserve certificate, the officer must annually 

complete 24 hours of additional training prescribed by the administrator of the employing agency 

of the officer and approved by the Executive Director. The employing agency shall ensure that 

its officers receive the required training. The employing agency shall notify each officer of the 

requirements of this section and the penalties set forth in subsection 3 for failure to comply with 

this section. After an officer completes such training, the employing agency shall submit 

verification of completion of training to the Executive Director [on a form approved by the 

Commission.] by any means approved by the Executive Director. Verification must be 

submitted before January 31 following the year in which training was required. 

 2.  If the Executive Director has not received verification of completion of training pursuant 

to subsection 1 before January 31 following the year in which training was required, the 



 

--2-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R188-12 

Executive Director shall notify the administrator of the employing agency that he or she has not 

received the verification required by subsection 1 and that if the verification is not received on or 

before March 1 of that year, the Executive Director will place the administrator on the agenda for 

the next scheduled meeting of the Commission to explain the delay in the submission of the 

verification. If the Executive Director has not received verification of completion of training 

pursuant to subsection 1 on or before March 1 following the year in which training was required, 

the Executive Director shall place the administrator of the employing agency on the agenda for 

the next scheduled meeting of the Commission. 

 3.  Upon the request of the Commission or its designee, the employing agency shall make 

available for inspection the records of all officers to verify that they have complied with the 

continuing education requirement. The Commission will notify each officer and his or her 

employing agency of any noncompliance. The Commission will suspend the certificate of any 

officer who does not obtain the required training within 60 days after the date on which he or she 

received the notice of noncompliance. The Executive Director may temporarily reinstate the 

suspended certificate of an officer upon receiving documentation from the officer which 

demonstrates that he or she has complied with the continuing education requirement. The 

temporary reinstatement of the suspended certificate is effective upon the Executive Director’s 

approval of the temporary reinstatement and expires on the date on which the Commission 

determines whether to reinstate the certificate. The Commission will reinstate the suspended 

certificate or temporarily reinstated certificate of an officer upon receiving documentation from 

the officer which demonstrates that he or she has complied with the continuing education 

requirement. 



 

--3-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R188-12 

 4.  Except as otherwise provided in subsections 6 and 7, as part of the continuing education 

required pursuant to subsection 1, an officer must: 

 (a) If the officer is authorized to use a firearm, at least biannually demonstrate a minimum 

level of proficiency in the use of each firearm he or she is authorized to use. An officer who does 

not demonstrate a minimum level of proficiency with the use of any firearm he or she is 

authorized to use may not carry or use the firearm until he or she participates in a remedial 

course established by the employing agency to ensure that the officer achieves and maintains a 

satisfactory level of proficiency. 

 (b) If the officer is authorized to use an impact weapon, chemical weapon, electronic 

incapacitating device or other less than lethal weapon, at least annually demonstrate a minimum 

level of proficiency in the use of each such weapon or device he or she is authorized to use. An 

officer who does not demonstrate a minimum level of proficiency with the use of any such 

weapon may not carry or use that weapon until the officer participates in a remedial course 

established by the employing agency to ensure that the officer achieves and maintains a 

satisfactory level of proficiency. 

 (c) If the duties of an officer require him or her to use defensive tactics, demonstrate annually 

a minimum level of proficiency in the use of defensive tactics, including, without limitation, 

techniques related to applying handcuffs, taking down suspects, self-defense and retention of 

weapons. 

 (d) If the employing agency of the officer authorizes the use of a carotid restraint or lateral 

vascular neck restraint, demonstrate annually a minimum level of proficiency in those 

techniques. 



 

--4-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R188-12 

 (e) Review annually each policy of the employing agency which addresses the use of force in 

any situation in which the agency or the officer may become involved. 

 5.  Each employing agency shall establish and provide the courses set forth in subsection 4 to 

its officers and establish the minimum level of proficiency that an officer must demonstrate in 

each course. 

 6.  An officer: 

 (a) Who voluntarily leaves his or her employment as a peace officer for at least 12 

consecutive months but not more than 60 consecutive months; 

 (b) Whose employment as a peace officer is terminated for any reason for at least 12 

consecutive months but not more than 60 consecutive months; or 

 (c) Who, during a period of continuous employment as a peace officer, is absent from his or 

her duties as a peace officer because of medical leave, military leave or other approved leave for 

at least 12 consecutive months, 

 must satisfy the requirements of paragraphs (b) to (e), inclusive, of subsection 4 and 

demonstrate a minimum level of proficiency in the use of each firearm he or she is authorized to 

use before resuming his or her duties as a peace officer. 

 7.  An officer who instructs a course pursuant to subsection 4 is not required to comply with 

the continuing education requirements of subsection 4 to which the instruction applies if the 

officer: 

 (a) Instructs a course in the subject for which the officer is qualified and approved by the 

administrator of the officer’s agency during each calendar year; 

 (b) Participates at least once every 3 years in a course of training for instructors that is 

approved by the Executive Director; and 



 

--5-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R188-12 

 (c) Demonstrates to the Commission or its designee at least once every 3 years proficiency in 

the subject that he or she instructs. 

 8.  Each agency shall maintain documentation of the courses provided pursuant to subsection 

4. Such documentation must include, without limitation, the qualifications of each instructor who 

provides training, a description of the training provided and a list on a form that has been 

approved by the Executive Director of each officer who completes the training. 

 Sec. 2.  NAC 289.240 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 289.240  The Executive Director shall grant an intermediate certificate to an officer upon 

submission of proof satisfactory to the Executive Director that the officer [meets the following 

minimum requirements: 

 1.  Forty hours of training concerning the skills of officers, consisting of courses certified by 

the Executive Director relating to the physical and technical aspects of the requirements of duty, 

including, without limitation: 

 (a) Firearms; 

 (b) Self-defense; and 

 (c) Use of equipment. 

 2.  Forty hours of training concerning investigative skills, consisting of courses certified by 

the Executive Director covering various aspects and types of investigation, including, without 

limitation: 

 (a) Homicide; 

 (b) Interview and interrogation; 

 (c) Arson; 

 (d) Scientific methods; and 



 

--6-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R188-12 

 (e) Other investigative studies. 

 3.  Forty hours of training concerning human development, consisting of courses certified by 

the Executive Director relating to the human aspects of the duties of a peace officer, including, 

without limitation: 

 (a) Stress; 

 (b) Leadership; and 

 (c) Community relations and other related fields. 

 4.  Forty hours of courses certified by the Executive Director in legal subjects such as civil 

liability and criminal law. 

 5.  Forty hours of elective training in any courses relating to peace officers. These courses 

may include excess courses from the categories set out in subsections 1 to 4, inclusive. 

 6.  Six units of credit from an accredited college or university, including three units of 

English composition. 

 7.  A] : 

 1.  Has a valid basic certificate [. 

 8.  Three] ; 

 2.  Is currently employed as a peace officer by an agency; and 

 3.  Meets the minimum requirements set forth in one of the following paragraphs: 

 (a) The officer: 

  (1) Has 2 years of experience as a peace officer employed by a Nevada agency [. 

 9.  Current employment as a peace officer by an agency.] ; 



 

--7-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R188-12 

  (2) Holds a bachelor’s degree or a higher degree from a college or university accredited 

by a national or regional accrediting body recognized by the United States Department of 

Education; and 

  (3) In addition to the training required by NAC 289.230, has successfully completed 20 

hours of training in courses concerning the duties of peace officers, consisting of courses 

certified pursuant to NAC 289.310. 

 (b) The officer: 

  (1) Has 4 years of experience as a peace officer employed by a Nevada agency;  

  (2) Holds an associate’s degree from a college or university accredited by a national or 

regional accrediting body recognized by the United States Department of Education; and 

  (3) In addition to the training required by NAC 289.230, has successfully completed 40 

hours of training in courses concerning the duties of peace officers, consisting of courses 

certified pursuant to NAC 289.310. 

 (c) The officer: 

  (1) Has 6 years of experience as a peace officer employed by a Nevada agency; 

  (2) Has earned 45 units of credit from a college or university accredited by a national or 

regional accrediting body recognized by the United States Department of Education; and 

  (3) In addition to the training required by NAC 289.230, has successfully completed 80 

hours of training in courses concerning the duties of peace officers, consisting of courses 

certified pursuant to NAC 289.310. 

 (d) The officer: 

  (1) Has 8 years of experience as a peace officer employed by a Nevada agency; 



 

--8-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R188-12 

  (2) Has earned 30 units of credit from a college or university accredited by a national or 

regional accrediting body recognized by the United States Department of Education; and 

  (3) In addition to the training required by NAC 289.230, has successfully completed 120 

hours of training in courses concerning the duties of peace officers, consisting of courses 

certified pursuant to NAC 289.310. 

 (e) The officer: 

  (1) Has 10 years of experience as a peace officer employed by a Nevada agency; 

  (2) Has earned 15 units of credit from a college or university accredited by a national or 

regional accrediting body recognized by the United States Department of Education; and 

  (3) In addition to the training required by NAC 289.230, has successfully completed 160 

hours of training in courses concerning the duties of peace officers, consisting of courses 

certified pursuant to NAC 289.310. 

 (f) The officer: 

  (1) Has 12 years of experience as a peace officer employed by a Nevada agency; and 

  (2) In addition to the training required by NAC 289.230, has successfully completed 200 

hours of training in courses concerning the duties of peace officers, consisting of courses 

certified pursuant to NAC 289.310. 

 Sec. 3.  NAC 289.250 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 289.250  The Executive Director shall grant an advanced certificate to an officer upon 

submission of proof satisfactory to the Executive Director that the officer : [meets the following 

minimum requirements:] 

 1.  [A] Has a current basic certificate ; [.] 

 2.  [A] Has a current intermediate certificate ; [.] 



 

--9-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R188-12 

 3.  [Six] Is currently employed as a peace officer by an agency; and 

 4.  Meets the minimum requirements set forth in one of the following paragraphs: 

 (a) The officer: 

  (1) Has 4 years of experience as a peace officer [. 

 4.  Six units of credit from an accredited college or university in addition to the units 

required for the intermediate certificate, including three units of courses related to 

communication, including, without limitation, public speaking and development of instructors. 

 5.  Two hundred hours of training in any courses relating to peace officers in addition to the 

training completed for the basic and intermediate certificates.] ; 

  (2) Holds a bachelor’s degree or a higher degree from a college or university accredited 

by a national or regional accrediting body recognized by the United States Department of 

Education; and 

  (3) In addition to the training required by NAC 289.230, has successfully completed 40 

hours of training in courses concerning the duties of peace officers, consisting of courses 

certified pursuant to NAC 289.310. 

 (b) The officer: 

  (1) Has 6 years of experience as a peace officer; 

  (2) Holds an associate’s degree from a college or university accredited by a national or 

regional accrediting body recognized by the United States Department of Education; and 

  (3) In addition to the training required by NAC 289.230, has successfully completed 80 

hours of training in courses concerning the duties of peace officers, consisting of courses 

certified pursuant to NAC 289.310. 

 (c) The officer: 



 

--10-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R188-12 

  (1) Has 8 years of experience as a peace officer; 

  (2) Has earned 45 units of credit from a college or university accredited by a national or 

regional accrediting body recognized by the United States Department of Education; and 

  (3) In addition to the training required by NAC 289.230, has successfully completed 160 

hours of training in courses concerning the duties of peace officers, consisting of courses 

certified pursuant to NAC 289.310. 

 (d) The officer: 

  (1) Has 10 years of experience as a peace officer; 

  (2) Has earned 30 units of credit from a college or university accredited by a national or 

regional accrediting body recognized by the United States Department of Education; and 

  (3) In addition to the training required by NAC 289.230, has successfully completed 240 

hours of training in courses concerning the duties of peace officers, consisting of courses 

certified pursuant to NAC 289.310. 

 (e) The officer: 

  (1) Has 12 years of experience as a peace officer; 

  (2) Has earned 15 units of credit from a college or university accredited by a national or 

regional accrediting body recognized by the United States Department of Education; and 

  (3) In addition to the training required by NAC 289.230, has successfully completed 320 

hours of training in courses concerning the duties of peace officers, consisting of courses 

certified pursuant to NAC 289.310. 

 (f) The officer: 

  (1) Has 14 years of experience as a peace officer; and 



 

--11-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R188-12 

  (2) In addition to the training required by NAC 289.230, has successfully completed 400 

hours of training in courses concerning the duties of peace officers, consisting of courses 

certified pursuant to NAC 289.310. 

 Sec. 4.  NAC 289.310 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 289.310  1.  An agency or other provider of training may apply for certification above the 

level of basic training for a course by submitting to the Executive Director [:] , by any means 

approved by the Executive Director, a request to certify the course on a form approved by the 

Executive Director and: 

 (a) A concise synopsis of the course, including, without limitation, the title of the course, the 

intended goals of the course and specific objectives for the students in the course; 

 (b) A detailed lesson plan, including, without limitation, a chronological list of the major 

subject headings; 

 (c) A list of the intended instructors, including, without limitation, a brief resume of 

experience in the subject area and experience in instructing for each instructor; 

 (d) The total amount of hours of instruction; 

 (e) A description of the written or practical examinations on the material covered by the 

course which is to be graded on a pass or fail basis and which measures accomplishment of the 

objectives by the students, including, without limitation, an examination at the beginning and end 

of the course; and 

 (f) A bibliography of all resource materials used to prepare the course. 

 2.  The Executive Director shall award certification of a course to an agency or other 

provider of training which did not comply with the provisions of subsection 1 for a course which 

has been certified by another state or other comparable agency if the submitting agency or other 



 

--12-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R188-12 

provider of training presents the supporting documents concerning the subject matter and 

instructors. 

 3.  A request to certify a course must be approved [and signed] by the administrator of the 

agency or other provider of training or the administrator’s designee. If the course offers training 

in legal issues and subjects relating to legal liability, the legal adviser of the agency or other 

provider of training must approve the course . [and sign the request for certification.] 

 4.  The Executive Director shall review courses certified pursuant to this section periodically 

for compliance with the provisions of this section. The Executive Director shall notify an agency 

or other provider of training that provides such a course of any noncompliance.  

 5.  The Executive Director shall revoke the certification of a course if the agency or other 

provider of training that provides the course: 

 (a) Requests revocation of the certification of the course; 

 (b) Has not provided the course during any period of 24 consecutive months; or 

 (c) Does not comply with the provisions of this section. 

 6.  [A training course offered by a private vendor must be sponsored by a law enforcement 

agency or an accredited university or college. 

 7.]  An agency or other provider of training whose course has been certified shall [, within 

15 working days after the completion of the course and on a form that has been approved by the 

Executive Director, submit to the Executive Director:] maintain on file, and make available for 

inspection upon the request of the Commission or its designee: 

 (a) A roster of the peace officers who attended the course; 

 (b) Each officer’s results on the examination; and 

 (c) An evaluation of the course by each peace officer who attended the course. 



 

--13-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R188-12 

 [8.] 7.  An agency or other provider of training whose course is currently accredited by an 

organization, such as the National Accreditation Committee or the American Correctional 

Association, which: 

 (a) Is nationally recognized; and 

 (b) Gives accreditation to courses for peace officers, 

 is not required to apply to the Executive Director for accreditation of the course. Such an 

agency or other provider of training shall [, within 15 working days after the completion of a 

course and on a form that has been approved by the Commission, submit to the Executive 

Director] maintain on file, and make available for inspection upon the request of the 

Commission or its designee, a roster of the peace officers who attended the course , [and] each 

officer’s results on the examination [.] and an evaluation of the course by each peace officer 

who attended the course. 

 8.  An agency or other provider of training whose course has been certified shall issue a 

certificate of completion to all peace officers who successfully complete the course of training. 

The certificate must contain: 

 (a) The certification number assigned to the course by the Commission; 

 (b) The name of the course; 

 (c) The hours of training earned for the course; and 

 (d) The date on which the course was presented. 

 9.  The employing agency of a peace officer who attends a course certified pursuant to this 

section shall, upon receipt of the certificate of completion issued to the peace officer pursuant 

to subsection 8, report the peace officer’s successful completion of the course to the Executive 

Director by any means approved by the Executive Director. 



 

--14-- 
LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R188-12 

 Sec. 5.  NAC 289.320 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 289.320  Upon making a final decision to deny the certification of a course pursuant to NAC 

289.300 or 289.310, the Executive Director shall provide the affected agency or other provider 

of training with written notification of that decision. The agency or other provider of training 

may appeal the decision by filing a written request for appeal with the Executive Director within 

30 days after the date set forth on the written notification. The request for appeal must set forth 

specific reasons why the agency or other provider of training believes the denial is improper. 

The Commission will place the matter on the next available agenda for a meeting of the 

Commission. 

 



AGENDA ITEM #5 
 

DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 
 

The Commission will discuss and possibly take action to continue the rulemaking process to amend 
NAC 289.230, which establishes the requirements for mandatory annual continuing education, to 
include proposed changes to the annual 24 hour continuing education training requirement. 

 
 
 
 

 



NOTATION:  Wording in bold italic is proposed draft changes. 

289.230  1.  To maintain a basic certificate or reserve certificate, the officer must annually 

demonstrate proficiency as provided in subsection 4, and complete  12   24 hours of additional 

agency in-service training which may include, but not limited to, topics consisting of legal 

issues, agency policies and procedures, driving, first aid, cardiopulmonary resuccitation, 

bloodborne pathogens, sexual harassment or any other agenc in-service training as may be 

prescribed by the administrator of the employing agency of the officer. and approved by the 

Executive Director. The employing agency shall ensure that its officers receive the required 

training. The employing agency shall notify each officer of the requirements of this section and 

the penalties set forth in subsection 3 for failure to comply with this section. After an officer 

completes such training, the employing agency shall submit verification of completion of 

training to the Executive Director  by any means approved by the Executive Director. 

Verification must be submitted before December  January 31 following the year in which 

training was required. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

  NAC 289.230 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 289.230  1.  To maintain a basic certificate or reserve certificate, the officer must 

annually demonstrate proficiency as provided in subsection 4, and complete 24 hours of 

additional training prescribed by the administrator of the employing agency of the officer and 

approved by the Executive Director. The employing agency shall ensure that its officers receive 

the required training. The employing agency shall notify each officer of the requirements of this 

section and the penalties set forth in subsection 3 for failure to comply with this section. After an 

officer completes such training, the employing agency shall submit verification of completion of 

training to the Executive Director  by any means approved by the Executive Director. 

Verification must be submitted before January 31 following the year in which training was 

required. 

 2.  If the Executive Director has not received verification of completion of training 

pursuant to subsection 1 before January 31 following before December 31 the year in which 

training was required, the Executive Director shall notify the administrator of the employing 

agency that he or she has not received the verification required by subsection 1 and that if the 

verification is not received on or before March 1 of that year, the Executive Director will place 

the administrator on the agenda for the next scheduled meeting of the Commission to explain the 

delay in the submission of the verification. If the Executive Director has not received verification 

of completion of training pursuant to subsection 1 on or before March 1 following the year in 

which training was required, the Executive Director shall place the administrator of the 

employing agency on the agenda for the next scheduled meeting of the Commission. 



 3.  Upon the request of the Commission or its designee, the employing agency shall 

make available for inspection the records of all officers to verify that they have complied with 

the continuing education requirement. The Commission will notify each officer and his or her 

employing agency of any noncompliance. The Commission will suspend the certificate of any 

officer who does not obtain the required training within 60 days after the date on which he or she 

received the notice of noncompliance. The Executive Director may temporarily reinstate the 

suspended certificate of an officer upon receiving documentation from the officer which 

demonstrates that he or she has complied with the continuing education requirement. The 

temporary reinstatement of the suspended certificate is effective upon the Executive Director’s 

approval of the temporary reinstatement and expires on the date on which the Commission 

determines whether to reinstate the certificate. The Commission will reinstate the suspended 

certificate or temporarily reinstated certificate of an officer upon receiving documentation from 

the officer which demonstrates that he or she has complied with the continuing education 

requirement. 

 4.  Except as otherwise provided in subsections 6 and 7, as part of the continuing 

education required pursuant to subsection 1, an officer must: 

 (a) If the officer is authorized to use a firearm, at least biannually demonstrate a 

minimum level of proficiency in the use of each firearm he or she is authorized to use. An officer 

who does not demonstrate a minimum level of proficiency with the use of any firearm he or she 

is authorized to use may not carry or use the firearm until he or she participates in a remedial 

course established by the employing agency to ensure that the officer achieves and maintains a 

satisfactory level of proficiency. 



 (b) If the officer is authorized to use an impact weapon, chemical weapon, electronic 

incapacitating device or other less than lethal weapon, at least annually demonstrate a minimum 

level of proficiency in the use of each such weapon or device he or she is authorized to use. An 

officer who does not demonstrate a minimum level of proficiency with the use of any such 

weapon may not carry or use that weapon until the officer participates in a remedial course 

established by the employing agency to ensure that the officer achieves and maintains a 

satisfactory level of proficiency. 

 (c) If the duties of an officer require him or her to use defensive tactics arrest and 

control tactics, demonstrate annually a minimum level of proficiency in the use of defensive 

tactics, including, without limitation, techniques related to applying handcuffs, taking down 

suspects, self-defense and retention of weapons. 

 (d) If the employing agency of the officer authorizes the use of a carotid restraint or 

lateral vascular neck restraint, demonstrate annually a minimum level of proficiency in those 

techniques. 

 (e) Review annually each policy of the employing agency which addresses the use of 

force in any situation in which the agency or the officer may become involved. 

 5.  Each employing agency shall establish and provide the courses set forth in 

subsection 4 to its officers and establish the minimum level of proficiency that an officer must 

demonstrate in each course. 

 6.  An officer: 

 (a) Who voluntarily leaves his or her employment as a peace officer for at least 12 4 

consecutive months but not more than 60 consecutive months; 



 (b) Whose employment as a peace officer is terminated for any reason for at least 12 4 

consecutive months but not more than 60 consecutive months; or 

 (c) Who, during a period of continuous employment as a peace officer, is absent from his 

or her duties as a peace officer because of medical leave, military leave or other approved leave 

for at least 12 4 consecutive months, 

 must satisfy the requirements of paragraphs (b) to (e), inclusive, of subsection 4 and 

demonstrate a minimum level of proficiency in the use of each firearm he or she is authorized to 

use before resuming his or her duties as a peace officer. 

 7.  An officer who instructs a course pursuant to subsection 4 is not required to comply 

with the continuing education requirements of subsection 4 to which the instruction applies if the 

officer: 

 (a) Instructs a course in the subject for which the officer is qualified and approved by the 

administrator of the officer’s agency during each calendar year; 

 (b) Participates at least once every 3 years in a course of training for instructors that is 

approved by the Executive Director; and 

 (c) Demonstrates to the Commission or its designee at least once every 3 years 

proficiency in the subject that he or she instructs. 

 8.  Each agency shall maintain documentation of the courses provided pursuant to 

subsection 4. Such documentation must include, without limitation, the qualifications of each 

instructor who provides training, a description of the training provided and a list on a form that 

has been approved by the Executive Director of each officer who completes the training. 

 



AGENDA ITEM #6 
 

DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION. 
 

 Hearing pursuant to NAC 289.290(1)(g) on the revocation of Aaron Hughes, formerly of the Elko 
Police Department, for a felony conviction of Incest.  The Commission will decide whether to revoke 
Mr. Hughes’s Category I Basic Certificate which was previously suspended upon the original 
indictment. 
. 

 
 
 
 

 







































































AGENDA ITEM #7 
 

DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

Hearing pursuant to NAC 289.290(1)(g) on the suspension of Armando Flores, formerly of the Clark 
County Juvenile Justice Services, for felony indictment of Attempted Theft.  The Commission will decide 
whether to suspend the Category II Basic Certification. 

. 

 
 
 
 

 















































AGENDA ITEM #8 

DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 
 Hearing pursuant to NAC 289.290(1)(g) on the revocation of Edward Lattin III, formerly of the 

Nevada Department of Public Safety, for a felony conviction of Reckless Driving.  The Commission 
will decide whether to revoke the Category I Basic Certification. 

 
 
 
 

 





































AGENDA ITEM #9 
 

DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

 Hearing pursuant to NAC 289.290(1)(g) on the revocation of James Segura, formerly of the Las 
Vegas Metropolitan Police Department, for  felony conviction of Attempted Discharge of Firearm in 
a Structure. The Commission will decide whether to revoke the Category I Basic Certification. 
. 

 
 
 
 

 











































AGENDA ITEM #10 
 

DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

POST Commission to consider a request from the Henderson Police Department for an Executive 
Certificate for Captain Bobby Long. 

 
 
 
 

 















AGENDA ITEM #11 
 

DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

POST Commission to consider a request from the Douglas County Sheriff’s Office for an Executive 
Certificate for Captain Joseph Duffy. 

 
 
 
 

 





















AGENDA ITEM #12 
 

DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

POST Commission to consider a request from the Department of Public Safety for an Executive 
Certificate for Captain Chad Hastings. 

 
 
 
 

 















AGENDA ITEM #13 
 

DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

POST Commission to consider a request from the Department of Public Safety for an Executive 
Certificate for Captain Susan K. Aller-Schilling. 

 
 
 
 

 





































AGENDA ITEM #14 
 

DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

Request from the Mineral County Sheriff’s Office requesting a six-month extension of time pursuant to 
NRS 289.550 to complete the certification process for a peace officer that has not completed the  process 
within the one year time period for their employee Deputy Jason Graves.    

 
 
 
 

 











AGENDA ITEM #15 
 

DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 
Request from the Pyramid Lake Police Department requesting a six-month extension of time pursuant to 
NRS 289.550 to complete the certification process for a peace officer that has not completed the process 
within the one year time period for their employee Morgan Blake.   

 
 
 
 

 











AGENDA ITEM #16-18 
 
 
 

16.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

The Commission may not take action on any matter considered under this item 
until the matter is specifically included on an agenda as an action item. 

 
 

17.  DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

Schedule upcoming Commission meeting 
 
 

18.  DISCUSSION, PUBLIC COMMENT, AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
 

Adjournment 


	2013 LOGO FRONT PAGE OF COMMISSION BOOK.pdf
	1 WORKSHOP ON PROPOSED REGULATIONS.pdf
	2 Notice of Workshop  to Solicit Comments 10-28-13 POST.pdf
	3 Notice of  Public Meeting of Workshop 10-28-12.pdf
	4 Agenda 1 Workshop.pdf
	5 Workshop language 289.230.pdf
	6 Agenda 2 & 3 Workshop.pdf
	1 I Public Comment Hearing.pdf
	2 Notice of Intent Public Comment Hearing 10-29-2013-mdj revisions.pdf
	3 Oct 29 Public Comment Agenda.pdf
	Items 1 & 2 Public Comment Hearing.pdf
	1 II Regularly Scheduled Meeting.pdf
	2 Oct 29 PCM Agenda.pdf
	1 II Regularly Scheduled Meeting Agenda Item 1 _a b_.pdf
	Emerson resignation.pdf
	Wright Governor Appt Letter.PDF
	1 II Regularly Scheduled Meeting Agenda Item 2.pdf
	2 POST WORKSHOP 7 24 13 - Revised.pdf
	3 PCM 7 25 13 _revised_.pdf
	II Regularly Scheduled Meeting Agenda Item 3.pdf
	Roster Update 9-12-2013 (2).pdf
	1 Court Assessment Distribution by budget Account.pdf
	2 Six Year look v2.pdf
	3 Draft of Letter to Sheriff's and Chiefs.pdf
	4 Subjects not required by the NAC.pdf
	1st Qtr Admin.pdf
	1st QTR Report  BTB.pdf
	1st Qtr Report PDB.pdf
	1st Qtr Report PSB.pdf
	Cat I Basics Juy to Sept 2013.pdf
	Cat II Basic July to Sept 2013.pdf
	Cat II Basic July.pdf
	Cat III Basic July to Sept 2013.pdf
	B courses July - Sept 2013.pdf
	P courses July - Sept 2013.pdf
	II Regularly Scheduled Meeting Agenda Item 4.pdf
	R188-12P.pdf
	II Regularly Scheduled Meeting Agenda Item 5.pdf
	Oct 2013 PCM draft language revised for 289.230.pdf
	II Regularly Scheduled Meeting Agenda Item 6.pdf
	Item 6 Revocation HUGHES.pdf
	II Regularly Scheduled Meeting Agenda Item 7.pdf
	Item 7 Suspension FLORES.pdf
	II Regularly Scheduled Meeting Agenda Item 8.pdf
	Item 8 Revocation LATTIN.pdf
	II Regularly Scheduled Meeting Agenda Item 9.pdf
	Item 9 Revocation SEGURA.pdf
	II Regularly Scheduled Meeting Agenda Item 10.pdf
	Item 10 Executive LONG.pdf
	II Regularly Scheduled Meeting Agenda Item 11.pdf
	Item 11 Executive DUFFY.pdf
	II Regularly Scheduled Meeting Agenda Item 12.pdf
	Item 12 Executive HASTINGS.pdf
	II Regularly Scheduled Meeting Agenda Item 13.pdf
	Item 13 Executive SHILLING.pdf
	II Regularly Scheduled Meeting Agenda Item 14.pdf
	Item 14 GRAVES 6 month ext.pdf
	II Regularly Scheduled Meeting Agenda Item 15.pdf
	Item 15 BLAKE 6 month ext.pdf
	II Regularly Scheduled Meeting Agenda Items 16-18.pdf



